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To facilitate the growth and

development of the debt securities
To enhance the stability of the

banking sector through the offering

and mortgage-backed securities

markets in Hong Kong
of a reliable source of liquidity,

thereby reducing the concentration

and liquidity risks of mortgage
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To promote wider
home ownership in

Hong Kong

i\
\ ‘\\,



CONTENTS

11

18

21

45

107

112

114

208
210

212

214

Financial Highlights
Chairman’s Statement

Board of Directors
Management Team
Organisation Structure
Corporate Governance Report
Calendar of Events

Business Overview

Financial Review

Report of the Directors
Independent Auditor’s Report
Financial Statements

Annex A List of Approved Seller/Servicers as at end of December 2009

Annex B List of Mortgage Reinsurers, Primary Dealers and Selling Group Members of Debt Issuance
Programme, Placing Banks of Retail Bond Issuance Programme, Programme Arrangers and
Dealers of Medium Term Note Programme and Programme Arranger and Dealers of Bauhinia
MBS Programme

Annex C  Key Business Statistics

Abbreviations Used in this Report



The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited Annual Report 2009

FINANCIAL
HIGHLIGHTS

1,037,707
1,006,469
8,768,789
22,688,680
784,650

43,788,716

59,750,624
44,495,073

2,020,394
11,592,494

" The risk-in-force excludes exposure that has been covered by reinsurance arrangement.
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CHAIRMAN’S
STATEMENT

Operating in a difficult environment against the
backdrop of the global financial crisis, the
Corporation has demonstrated its resilience and

ability to perform its strategic policy roles of:

e promoting financial stability by purchasing
loan assets from local banks in a prudent
commercial manner to provide banks with

liquidity

e promoting wider home ownership through

the Mortgage Insurance Programme

e facilitating the further growth and development

of the debt market in Hong Kong
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Promoting Banking and Financial

Stability

Total local asset purchases in 2009 amounted
to HK$5.7 billion. The Corporation provides
liquidity to banks by purchasing assets from
them. This role as liquidity provider was
especially prominent during the “rainy days” of
the Asian financial turmoil and the recent global
financial crisis. As the market has stabilised due
to abundant liquidity inflows, banks have less
need to offload their assets in return for liquidity.
Nevertheless, the Corporation continues to
provide an important, readily available platform
to help banks meet their needs for liquidity and

prudent capital and balance sheet management.

Promoting Wider Home
Ownership

The Corporation’s Mortgage Insurance
Programme (“MIP”) continues to provide an
effective channel for promoting wider home
ownership in Hong Kong, benefiting first-time
homebuyers in particular. In 2009, the MIP loan
drawdown reached a record high of HK$36
billion and the usage rate (in terms of the amount
of loans drawn down as a percentage of total
market mortgage drawdown) increased to 18%,

compared with 11% in 2008. Since 1999,
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the MIP has helped over 73,000 families to attain
home ownership, with loan drawdown totalling
over HK$151 billion. The average loan size
under the MIP is HK$2.1 million, indicating that
the MIP mainly helps first-time buyers to acquire

homes.

The overall performance of mortgage loans
under the MIP has been satisfactory, with the
ratio of loans that had been delinquent for more
than 90 days standing at 0.003% at the end of
2009. This is primarily attributable to the
Corporation’s stringent mortgage underwriting
criteria, which not only help to limit the risk
exposure of the Corporation, but also serve as
a benchmark that helps to maintain the quality

of banks’ mortgage portfolios.

Facilitating Debt Market

Development

The Corporation maintains its excellent credit
ratings of “AA+” from Standard & Poor’s and
“Aa2” from Moody’s, at the same level as the
HKSAR Government. The Corporation
continues to play an active role in promoting
the development of the bond market and helps
to reinforce Hong Kong’s position as an
international financial centre. The Corporation
acts as a pivotal intermediary in channelling
liquidity from long-term insurance, pension and

investment funds to the mortgage markets,

thereby helping to make home ownership more
affordable and accessible to a wider spectrum

of the population in Hong Kong.

The Corporation raised a total amount of
HK$22.7 billion in 2009 through a variety of debt
instruments and remained the most active
corporate debt issuer in the Hong Kong-dollar
debt market for the ninth consecutive year. The
total outstanding amount of issued debt and
mortgage-backed securities stood at HK$46.5
pbillion on 31 December 2009.

Performance in 2009

The Corporation achieved good financial results
in 2009. Profits after tax reached a record high
of HK$1,006 million, an increase of 66% over
2008. The return on shareholder’s equity was
16.2%, and the capital-to-assets ratio was
9.5%. The Corporation declared a final dividend

of HK$500 million.

The Corporation operates on prudent commercial
principles and the strong performance in 2009
was mainly attributable to the significant loan
purchases made in response to banks’ liquidity
needs during the global financial crisis, the
favourable interest-rate environment and
excellent loan quality, and the Corporation’s
prudent business development strategy and

strong commitment to risk management.
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The strong performance strengthens the
Corporation’s financial position and greatly
enhances its ability to perform its strategic

functions in pursuit of its policy objectives.

Outlook for 2010

2010 will be another challenging year. The
potential impact of the exit strategies of the US
and other governments on the Hong Kong
economy is uncertain and may be a cause
for concern. The possibility of a double-dip
economic downturn cannot be ruled out.
Maintaining the financial stability of Hong Kong
is therefore of the utmost importance. Against
this backdrop, the Corporation will continue to
reinforce its business focus in Hong Kong to
fulfil its core objectives. The Corporation will
strive to contribute further to the development
of Hong Kong’s housing-finance system and
to complement the Government’s policies
through product innovation, making mortgage
financing more accessible to homebuyers. The
Corporation’s prudent criteria for purchasing
mortgage loans and underwriting loans
under the MIP will provide a useful benchmark
in the market to maintain the high quality of

mortgage loans.
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In pursuing its business and funding activities,
the Corporation will maintain a strong emphasis
on risk management and good corporate
governance. It will focus on further enhancing
its risk management framework with a view to
improving its effectiveness and strengthening

its readiness to meet the challenges ahead.

Apart from its business objectives, the
Corporation is also committed to fulfilling its
responsibilities to its staff and its corporate
social responsibility. It will continue to encourage
staff to take part in social activities and charitable
events to promote a healthy work-life balance

and foster a culture of care for the community.

Finally, | would like to thank my fellow Directors,
Management and all staff of the Corporation for
their dedication and hard work in 2009. | look
forward to another successful year for the

Corporation in 2010.

John C Tsang

Chairman



BOARD OF

DIRECTORS

The Honourable

John TSANG Chun-wah, JP

Chairman
Financial Secretary

Professor the Honourable

K C CHAN, sBs, JP
Director

Secretary for Financial
Services and the Treasury

Professor the Honourable

Anthony CHEUNG Bing-leung,
GBS, BBS, JP

Director

Member of Executive Council
Chairman

Consumer Council

Mr. Norman CHAN Tak-lam, SBS, JP

Deputy Chairman

(appointed on 1 October 2009)

Chief Executive

Hong Kong Monetary Authority

The Honourable

Eva CHENG, s»r

Director

Secretary for Transport and
Housing

The Honourable

Ronald Joseph ARCULLI,
CVO, GBS, OBE, JP

Director

(retired on 16 April 2009)
Member of Executive Council
Senior Partner, King & Wood
Chairman, Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited

M. Joseph YAM Chi-kwong, GBS, JP
Deputy Chairman
(retired on 1 October 2009)

Mr. Peter PANG Sing-tong, Jr Mzr. Eddie YUE Wai-man, JP

Executive Director
Deputy Chief Executive

Hong Kong Monetary Authority

Dr. the Honourable

David LI Kwok-po,

GBM, GBS, LLD (Cantab), JP
Director

Legislative Councillor
Chairman and Chief Executive
The Bank of East Asia, Limited

Executive Director
Deputy Chief Executive
Hong Kong Monetary Authority

The Honourable
Abraham SHEK Lai-him,
SBS, JP

Director
Legislative Councillor



The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited

The Honourable

Andrew LEUNG Kwan-yuen,
SBS, JP

Director

Legislative Councillor

Chairman, Sun Hing Knitting
Factory Limited

Mr. Geoffrey Jay MANSFIELD
Director

M. Lester Garson HUANG, Jp
Director

(appointed on 16 April 2009)
Partner

P, C. Woo & Co.

The Honourable

CHAN Kin-por, Jp

Director

Legislative Councillor

Member of the China Advisory Board
Munich Reinsurance Company
Hong Kong Branch

Mr. Eddie TAN Cheng-soo
Director

Regional Treasurer

Asia Pacific

Citibank, N.A.

The Honourable

Tanya CHAN

Director

(appointed on 16 April 2009)
Legislative Councillor

The Honourable

Starry LEE Wai-king
Director

(appointed on 16 April 2009)
Legislative Councillor

Mr. Eddy FONG Ching, GBs, JP
Director

Chairman

Securities and Futures
Commission

The Honourable

SIN Chung-kai, sBs, Jp
Director

(retired on 16 April 2009)
Deputy Chairman of the
Democratic Party

Annual Report 2009

The Honourable

CHAN Kam-lam, sBs, Jr
Director

(retired on 16 April 2009)
Legislative Councillor

Ms. Louisa CHEANG
Director

(appointed on 16 April 2009)
Regional Director, Personal
Financial Services
Asia-Pacific

The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited

Mr. David LAM Yim-nam
Director

(retired on 16 April 2009)
Deputy Chief Executive

Bank of China (Hong Kong)
Limited



MANAGEMENT
TEAM

B (from left to right)

Ms. Susie Cheung

Mr. Desmond Cheng
Mr. James H. Lau Jr., JP
Mr. Raymond Liu

W (from left to right)
Front Row

Ms. Angela Leung
Mr. Godfrey Wong
Ms. Irene Mok

Ms. Josephine Chan

Second Row

Ms. Kathleen Yeung
Mr. Calvin Tam

Mr. Raymond Luk
Mr. Maurice Yip

Mr. Wayne Law

Ms. Joyce Wong
Mr. Zarino Tong



The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited Annual Report 2009

ORGANISATION
STRUCTURE

Vice President

(Treasury)
Mr. Calvin Tam

Senior Vice . .
President Vice President
T (Finance) — (Financial Control)
i Ms. Kathleen Yeung
Mr. Raymond Liu
Vice President
(Information Technology)
Mr. Zarino Tong
Vice President
(Operations)
Senior Vice Ms. Irene Mok
— President — . .
(Operations) Vice President
P (Marketing and Business
Development)
Ms. Angela Leung
Chief Executive
— Officer —
Mr. James H. Lau Jr., Jp Vice President
(Mortgage Insurance)
Senior Vice Mr. Maurice Yip
, , - Preslldent — Vice President
Audit Committee (Risk) (Pricing and
Mr. Desmond Cheng Quantitative Risk)
Corporate Risk Vice President
Management (Risk Management)
Committee
Asset and General Counsel and Legal Counsel
Liability L Company Secretary L Ms. Josephine Chan
Committee Mr. Godfrey Wong
Ms. Susie Cheung Mr. Wayne Law
Credit
Committee
Transaction
Approval Chief Internal
Committee Auditor
OpcEten Mr. Raymond Luk
Risk Vi -
) ice President
Lol Administration and

uman Resources)
Ms. Joyce Wong






The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited

CORPORATE

Annual Report 2009

GOVERNANCE REPORT

Corporate Governance Practices

The Corporation is committed to ensuring a high
standard of corporate governance to improve the
overall accountability, transparency and long-term
sustainability of its operations to meet its three key
objectives. The Corporation’s corporate governance
practices are set out in the “Corporate Governance
Code” (the “Code”) approved by the Board. The Code
is premised on the principles of fairness, transparency,
accountability and responsibility to all stakeholders
and has been issued to the shareholders and the
Directors. The Code is also available on our website

and is accessible by the public.

Throughout 2009, the Corporation has complied with
the provisions of the Code. Maintaining a robust and
sensible framework of corporate governance for the
effective and prudent management of the Corporation

has always been a top corporate priority.

Enhanced Corporate Governance
Measures Adopted by the
Corporation in 2009

Best Practice Checklist on Good
Governance and Internal Control in Public
Organizations published by the
Independent Commission Against
Corruption (“ICAC”) in November 2009
(“Best Practice Checklist”)

In light of the recent publication of the Best Practice
Checklist by the ICAC, Management has augmented the
Corporation’s Self-assessment Form to provide a more
comprehensive checklist for departments to verify due

compliance with the best practice.

Strengthening of Risk Oversight and

Management

In 2009, the Corporation further strengthened its
accountability and responsibility to all stakeholders by
establishing a new division to assist the Chief Executive
Officer in risk oversight and management and to make

regular enterprise level reporting to the Board.

The new division also examines compliance with risk
appetite and risk policies, the general risk management
practices and any necessary adjustment to the overall

risk management framework of the Corporation.

Two new committees (the Corporate Risk Management
Committee and the Operational Risk Committee) have
also been established to provide a platform for more

focused assessment of risk issues.

Shareholders

All the shares of the Corporation are beneficially owned
by the Financial Secretary of Hong Kong as Controller of

the Exchange Fund. Therefore, whilst the Corporation

11



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

operates under prudent commercial principles, the Board
endeavours to ensure that the Corporation delivers its
performance based on good corporate governance
practices which are commensurate with the best

international standards.

The Board

The Board is responsible for leading the Corporation and
promoting its success in a responsible and effective
manner. In fulfilling its responsibility in terms of providing
strategic leadership and effective control of the
Corporation, the Board meets in person at least once
every three months to oversee the Corporation’s
business strategy and policies, budgeting and
planning, organisational and financial performance,
risk management, human resources as well as
community relations, and on other occasions whenever
a Board decision is required on major issues. In order
to ensure that well-balanced decisions are made by
the Board, the Directors of the Corporation include
officials from the government and regulators,
representatives from the political parties, banking sector,
insurance sector, industry associations, the accounting
and legal professions, and also the Consumer Council.

During 2009, the Board held four quarterly meetings.

Directors are requested to declare their direct or indirect
interests, if any, in any transactions to be considered by
the Board at Board meetings and withdraw from the
meetings as appropriate. In respect of each financial

reporting period, the Corporation will seek confirmation

12

from the Directors in respect of their material interests in
transactions involving the Corporation or its subsidiaries.
Contracts which are significant to the Corporation’s
business in which a Director has a material interest and/
or material related party transactions are disclosed in the
Report of the Directors by reference to Note 33 to the

financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009.

As at 31 December 2009, there were 18 Directors, all
of whom had been duly appointed by the Financial
Secretary in his capacity as shareholder of the
Corporation. Information about the Directors is set out
in the Report of the Directors published in the Annual
Report. All Directors (with the exception of the four
Executive Directors) are non-executive and independent
of the Corporation’s Management. An updated list of the
Directors is published on the Corporation’s website
(www.hkmc.com.hk). Whilst not actively involved in the
day-to-day management of the Corporation, Non-
Executive Directors do play an important role in bringing
their independent judgment and considerable knowledge
and diverse expertise to the Board’s deliberations,
which in turn provide effective steer to Management in
pursuit of the Corporation’s policies. The Corporation

does not remunerate its Directors.

Whenever a Director is newly appointed, the Corporation
will provide a briefing and an induction package to the
Director on the business activities, strategies and
objectives of the Corporation to ensure that he or she is

informed of the affairs of the Corporation.
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The term of a Non-Executive Director is typically one year.
Non-Executive Directors are typically appointed at an
Annual General Meeting. Under the Articles of Association
of the Corporation, all Non-Executive Directors will retire
at the next Annual General Meeting following their

appointment but are eligible for re-election.

The Corporation maintains a directors and officers liability
insurance policy for its Directors and officers against legal
proceedings and other claims arising in the course of

discharge of their duties.

Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer

In 2009, the post of Chairman was held by Mr. John C.
Tsang. The post of Chief Executive Officer was held by
Mr. James H. Lau Jr. The segregation of the posts of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer ensures a clear
division of responsibilities between the Board and the
executive functions of the Corporation’s Management. The
Board is responsible for laying down strategic direction
and business guidelines, approving financial objectives
and closely monitoring the Corporation’s performance on
an on-going basis. The Chief Executive Officer, who is
accountable to the Board, is responsible for leading
Management in implementing the Board’s decisions in a
proper and efficient manner. The Chief Executive Officer
ensures that adequate information relating to the
Corporation’s business will be reported to the Board on a

regular basis.
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Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is directly accountable to the
Board and her main duty is to ensure that all company
secretarial procedures are followed by the Corporation
and the Board. In addition, the Company Secretary
oversees the preparation of meeting agendas and Board
papers and ensures that they are distributed to Directors
in a timely and comprehensive manner prior to each Board
meeting and the Annual General Meeting of the
Corporation. Directors have free access to the advice and
services of the Company Secretary concerning corporate
governance matters, and she provides guidance to
Directors to make appropriate declarations to avoid

conflicts of interest.

The Board meeting schedule for 2009 was provided to
Directors in advance to facilitate Directors’ attendance
at Board meetings. Board papers were sent to Directors
at least seven days before the relevant Board meeting
so that Directors could be properly briefed before the
Board meeting. The Board papers typically contained
comprehensive background and/or explanatory
information about the subject matters and included
supporting documents, analyses, research findings,
projections, budgets and forecasts, where appropriate.
However, any Director adjudged to have a conflict of
interests in the subject matter under discussion in a
Board paper would not be provided with the relevant

Board paper.

3
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All the minutes of Board meetings were taken in
sufficient detail, including the matters considered,
decisions reached, concerns raised by Directors and
dissenting views expressed at the meetings. All minutes
of Board meetings and Audit Committee meetings are
kept by the Company Secretary and made available
for inspection by any Director, except as regards any
materials with respect to an agenda item in which that
Director is perceived to have a conflict of interest, in
such case, the relevant Board papers and Board minutes

would be withheld from such Director.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee members during the year were:

° Dr. David Li, Chairman, Non-Executive Director

° Mr. Peter Pang, Executive Director

° Mr. Eddie Yue, Executive Director

o Mr. Ronald Arculli, Non-Executive Director (until
16 April 2009)

° Mr. Eddy Fong, Non-Executive Director

. Mr. Chan Kam Lam, Non-Executive Director (until
16 April 2009)

o Mr. Andrew Leung, Non-Executive Director (from
16 April 2009)

o Mr. Abraham Shek, Non-Executive Director (from

16 April 2009)

Audit Committee Meeting

- 14

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the
Corporation’s financial statements, the composition and
accounting principles adopted in such statements, the
results of the financial audits and the Corporation’s
management procedures to ensure the adequacy and
effectiveness of internal control systems. The Terms of
Reference of the Audit Committee are published on the

Corporation’s website.

The Audit Committee holds regular meetings with
Management, Chief Internal Auditor and external auditors,
and special meetings may be called to review significant
control or financial issues. The Audit Committee also
meets on an ad hoc basis to consider special issues
requiring its attention. The Chairman of the Audit
Committee summarises the reviews conducted by the
Audit Committee and highlights the major issues in a
report for submission to the Board for consideration by
Directors. During 2009, the Committee met on three

occasions.

Internal Auditor

The Corporation has an Internal Audit Department which
operates independent of Management and plays a major
role in monitoring the internal control systems of the
Corporation. The Internal Audit Department is led by the
Chief Internal Auditor who reports directly to the Chairman
of the Audit Committee on all matters relating to the
internal control systems. The Chief Internal Auditor also
reports to the Chief Executive Officer on the day-to-day

administrative functions of the Internal Audit Department,
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and is entitled to communicate freely with the Chairman

of the Audit Committee without reference to Management.

Each year, the Audit Committee formally approves the
annual Internal Audit Plan drawn up by the Chief Internal
Auditor based on his independent risk assessment and
other risk management issues observed by him at
the regular Operational Risk Committee meetings.
In accordance with the annual Internal Audit Plan, the
Internal Audit Department adopts a risk-based audit
approach in conducting its periodic independent
reviews of the Corporation’s internal control systems. After
each review, the Internal Audit Department discusses
the audit findings and recommendations with the
relevant department heads and Senior Management.
Regular internal audit reports are first submitted to
the Internal Audit Committee which is chaired by an
Executive Director. The membership composition of
the Internal Audit Committee comprises two Executive
Directors, the Chief Executive Officer, the Senior Vice
Presidents, General Counsel and the Chief Internal
Auditor. The internal audit reports and meeting minutes
prepared for the Internal Audit Committee are then
submitted to the Audit Committee for further review and,

thereafter, to the Board of Directors for information.

Over the years, Management has taken an active
approach in considering the audit findings and

recommendations made by the Chief Internal Auditor
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and monitors closely their implementation. In 2009, the
Internal Audit Department conducted 15 reviews and

one ad hoc investigation.

External Auditors

The Corporation’s external auditors are PricewaterhouseCoopers.
Detailed information in respect of the Auditors’ remuneration
is disclosed in the Corporation’s financial statements. The
external auditors are allowed to communicate freely with
the Chief Internal Auditor and the Audit Committee. To
ensure the independence of the external auditors, the
external auditors would issue a letter to the Audit
Committee prior to the commencement of audit work
confirming their independence in accordance with the
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Such a
letter was issued by PricewaterhouseCoopers to the Audit

Committee in July 2009.

Financial Reporting

The Corporation aims to present a clear, balanced and
comprehensible assessment of its financial position and
prospects. Directors are responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements, and there is a statement by
the auditors about their reporting responsibilities in the
Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements. The Annual
Report contains a statement from the Corporation’s

auditors explaining their responsibility to form an

LISH
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independent opinion, based on their audit, on the
financial statements prepared by the Directors and to
report their opinion. The Directors ensure that financial
statements are prepared so as to give a true and fair
view of the financial status of the Corporation. For the
reporting and disclosure of the Corporation’s financial
statements and business performance, the Corporation
aims at providing a comprehensive disclosure of the
Corporation’s performance, position and prospect to

its stakeholders and the general public.

Internal Control

The Board has the overall responsibility for the
Corporation’s internal control systems and, through
the Audit Committee, conducts periodic review on the

effectiveness and efficiency of the systems.

In December 2009, the Board approved the establishment
of the Corporate Risk Management Committee, which is
chaired by an Executive Director, to oversee the financial
and non-financial risks of the Corporation from an
enterprise-wide perspective. In addition, the Board
further approved the establishment of the Operational
Risk Committee to bring all the operational risk items
under regular review and monitoring. The other
committees already set up to ensure the efficient
operation and prudent risk management of the
Corporation include the Credit Committee, Transaction

Approval Committee and Asset and Liability Committee.

- 16

All of the above executive risk committees (other than the
Corporate Risk Management Committee) are chaired by
the Chief Executive Officer, and all such committees
operate under prudent guidelines and procedures.
Detailed description of these four executive risk
committees and the risk management framework of the
Corporation are set out in the section on Business
Overview. The internal control systems are designed
to provide reasonable assurance against material
misstatement or loss, manage risks of failure in the
operational systems and the achievement of business
objectives, safeguard assets against unauthorised
use, ensure the maintenance of proper accounting records
for internal use and publication and assure compliance

with applicable legislation and regulations.

In March 2010, the Chief Internal Auditor duly conducted
an independent review of the Self-assessment Forms
provided by each Department in relation to compliance
with the Code for 2009. Based on the audit findings on
the Corporation’s internal control systems and the Self-
assessment Forms for the year, the Chief Internal Auditor
was of the opinion that there had been no material breach

of the Code in 2009.

Code of Conduct

The Corporation requires the highest standards of
integrity and conduct from its staff members. The

requirements and the relevant legal obligations are
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clearly set out in a code of conduct (“Code of Conduct”)
incorporated into the Staff Handbook. The Code of
Conduct also sets out, in particular, provisions as regards
potential conflicts of interest situations which may arise
between the staff members and the Corporation in respect
of which the staff members should be aware, and other
provisions designed to ensure that they carry out their
work properly, ethically, impartially and free from any

suggestion of improper influence.

A copy of the Code of Conduct is posted on the
Corporation’s intranet to make it readily accessible

by all staff members.

Staff members are required to give written confirmation of
their compliance with the Code of Conduct on an annual
basis. Based on the confirmation received from the staff
members, Management was satisfied that staff members

had complied with the Code of Conduct during 2009.
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Communication

The Corporation attaches great importance to
communications with the public at large. The Annual
Report of the Corporation contains comprehensive
information on its business strategies and developments.
The Corporation’s website (www.hkmc.com.hk) offers
timely access to the Corporation’s press releases and its
other business information. The Corporation also
maintains a hotline telephone system to service enquiries

from the public.

Conclusion

The Board was satisfied with the corporate governance
practices of the Corporation during 2009. In 2010, the
Corporation will continue to review its corporate
governance framework with a view to updating the
Code to improve those practices in light of ongoing
experience, regulatory changes, international trends
and developments in order to enhance the Corporation’s
efficiency and effective management in pursuit of its

business objectives.

1
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CALENDAR OF
EVENTS

APRIL 16

Financial Results for 2008 and
Business Performance

JUNE 19

Issuance of HK$1 billion 15-year
Callable Zero Coupon Bond, the largest
in the local bond market

JUNE 11

Publication of the Annual Report for 2008

JULY 10

Opening Ceremony
of Bauhinia HKMC
Corporation Limited
in Shenzhen
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AUGUST 4

Debut public benchmark issuance of US$500 million
fixed rate notes under the Medium Term Note
Programme

SEPTEMBER 11 OCTOBER 1

Half-Year Financial Results for 2009 Appointment of Mr. Norman T. L. Chan as

Deputy Chairman and Executive Director

OCTOBER 21

Launch of a special scheme
under the Corporation’s Fixed
Adjustable Rate Mortgage
Programme, with fixed-rate
periods ranging from one to
10 years

N

OCTOBER 23 o DECEMBER 10

Announcement of refinements to the Eligibility Enhancement of the Risk-based Pricing
Criteria of the Mortgage Insurance Programme Scheme under the Mortgage Insurance
Programme

aav. AL AN TAR
S Z0 N “.A»"‘\ .b‘.“-‘
| KA N\

vaN WaN I M\ 2 |\







The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited

BUSINESS
OVERVIEW

Despite the challenges of the global financial crisis, the
Hong Kong economy witnessed early signs of market
rebound in 2009 after experiencing a sharp downturn early
in the year. Amid the volatile market conditions, the
Corporation continued to operate under prudent principles
and play its strategic role as a liquidity provider for
promoting banking and financial stability. Along with the
great resilience shown in the local property market, the
Corporation also once again demonstrated its important
role of promoting home ownership in Hong Kong through

a rising usage of its mortgage insurance products.

Performance Highlights

The Corporation continued to provide timely liquidity to
the banking sector, while the market was recuperating
from the aftershocks of the global financial tsunami.
The Corporation’s mortgage insurance products were also
well received by homebuyers who could buy their homes

with a reduced downpayment.

The major achievements of the Corporation for the year

include:

° Purchase of a total of HK$8.8 billion of assets,
including HK$1.7 billion of residential mortgage
loans and HK$4 billion of commercial mortgage loan
in Hong Kong, and HK$3.1 billion of residential
mortgage loans in Korea in the form of mortgage-

backed securities.

° Drawdown of mortgage insurance coverage for
newly originated mortgage loans reaching a record
high of HK$36 billion in total, achieving a usage rate
(in terms of drawdown loan amount against total

market mortgage drawdown) of 18%.

o Issuance of HK$22.7 billion of debt securities in a
cost-effective manner, maintaining the Corporation’s

position as the most active corporate issuer in the

Annual Report 2009

Hong Kong dollar debt market for nine consecutive

years.

° Safeguarding excellent asset quality, with a
delinquency ratio (above 90-day ratio) of 0.003%
for the mortgage insurance portfolio; a combined
delinquency ratio (above 90-day ratio and
rescheduled loan ratio) of 0.12% for the Hong Kong
residential mortgage portfolio (same as the industry
average of 0.12%), and 0.07% across all asset
classes as at 31 December 2009.

° Maintaining long-term foreign and local currency
debt ratings of AA+ and Aa2 by Standard & Poor’s
(“S&P”) and Moody’s Investors Service, Inc.
(“Moody’s”) respectively.

The Corporation registered very solid financial results for
2009:

o Profit after tax of HK$1,006 million, which was
HK$401 million or 66% up from 2008.

° Net interest spread improved to 1.7% amid
favourable interest rate environment, compared to
1.1% in 2008.

° Return on assets of 1.6%, an increase of 0.5
percentage point over 2008.

° Return on shareholder’s equity of 16.2%, an increase
of 5.7 percentage point over 2008.

o Capital-to-assets ratio remained strong at 9.5%, well

above the minimum requirement of 5%.

° Cost-to-income ratio of 12.4%, significantly lower
than the banking industry average of 49.3%.
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Operational Highlights

Overall Business Strategy

The Corporation focuses on fulfilling its roles to maintain
banking stability, promote home ownership and develop
Hong Kong’s debt market. The Corporation strived to
maintain its capacity and capability so that it could
discharge its responsibilities effectively and efficiently.

Mortgage Insurance

In light of a sharp rise in the prices of the high-end
residential property market, the Corporation took steps
in October 2009 to tighten certain eligibility criteria for
the Mortgage Insurance Programme (“MIP”) to reduce risk

exposure to luxurious and non owner-occupied properties.

The Corporation further refined the MIP’s Risk-based
Pricing Scheme in December 2009 so that a greater
number of borrowers can be eligible for premium
discounts and the range of premium discounts has been
widened as well.

The MIP usage rate (in terms of drawdown loan amount
against total market mortgage drawdown) increased from
11% in 2008 to 18% in 2009. This reflects an increasing
demand for mortgage insurance.

The Corporation continued to provide regular training for
the frontline staff and credit personnel of the MIP
participating banks. This is an integral part of the strong
partnership between the Corporation and banks in
promoting mortgage insurance to the public.

The Corporation maintained a high degree of processing
efficiency for MIP applications through automation and
use of the internet platform.

Fund-raising

. Issuance of a total of HK$22.7 billion of corporate
debts with tenor up to 15 years in a prudent and
cost-effective manner to support asset purchase
activities and redemption of maturing debts.

° For the ninth year in a row, the Corporation was the

most active corporate issuer in the Hong Kong dollar

debt market, with issuance of HK$17.2 billion of debt
securities in the local institutional market.

o Issuance of the Corporation’s first-ever 15-year
callable zero coupon bond for HK$1 billion in total,
which was the largest ever in Hong Kong and helped
to promote the development of the local bond
market.

° Debut public benchmark issuance of US$500 million
of fixed rate notes under the Medium Term Note
Programme to raise funds in the international market
and to broaden the Corporation’s investor base and

funding sources.

Market Overview

General Economic Conditions

Hong Kong experienced a severe setback leading to a
deep contraction in the early part of 2009 as a result of
the global financial tsunami triggered by the sub-prime
crisis in the US. However, driven by the robust growth of
the Mainland China economy, the Hong Kong economy
showed great resilience in weathering the market
turbulence and witnessed signs of recovery from the
second quarter of 2009. The global economy also started
to stabilise somewhat in the second half of the year,
following the concerted policy actions taken by different
countries across the globe to restore market confidence.
The Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (“HKSAR Government”) also took timely measures
to stabilise the financial markets and banking system,
alleviate liquidity pressure, support enterprises and
preserve employment, thereby giving impetus to the local

economy and restoring confidence.

For 2009 as a whole, Hong Kong’s Gross Domestic
Product (“GDP”) shrank by 2.7% in real terms,
representing the first annual recession since 1998.
Nevertheless, the quick revival of the economy saw the
GDP growth back in positive territory of 2.6% in real terms
in the fourth quarter of 2009. The labour market also
demonstrated much resilience. Against the backdrop of
deteriorating external market conditions, the
unemployment rate in Hong Kong surged to 5.4% in
mid-2009, but gradually came down to 4.9% at the end

of the year.
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Interest Rate Environment

The liquidity condition of the Hong Kong banking sector
eased in 2009. The Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
(“HIBOR”) continued to soften amid continued inflow of
funds. The Best Lending Rates (“BLRs”) in the market
remained at 5% and 5.25% throughout the year. As the
competition in mortgage lending intensified, banks
adopted increasingly aggressive pricing strategies by
cutting mortgage rates, and in some cases offering
HIBOR-based mortgage rates, to gain market share. The
BLR-based gross mortgage rates for new mortgage loans
drifted down from 3.25% — 3.5% p.a. in early 2009 to
2.25% - 2.5% p.a. by the end of the year (Figure 1).
HIBOR-based mortgage rate was even as low as HIBOR
+ 0.65% by year end, which was generally below 1% p.a.

Figure 1:
Best Lending Rates and Average Gross Mortgage Rate

Best Lending Rates

~———— Weighted Average Gross Mortgage Rate

Source: HKMA

Property Market

The residential property market staged a sharp rebound
in 2009, attributable to the accommodative market
conditions of low interest rates underpinned by a strong
influx of funds. Both property price and transaction volume
for residential properties picked up sharply. According to
the Private Domestic Price Index on overall housing
published by the Rating and Valuation Department, the
residential property prices in December 2009 were 28%

up from a year ago. The Land Registry statistics showed
that the total volume and value for residential property
transactions saw a strong rebound by 20% and 24% year-
on-year to about 115,000 cases and HK$426 billion in
2009 respectively (Figures 2 and 3).

Figure 2:
Private Domestic Price Index (1999=100)
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Figure 3:

Agreements of Sale and Purchase of Residential Building
Units
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Mortgage Market
The buoyant property market in 2009 made mortgage

lending an attractive business particularly as banks had
ample liquidity. Banks were aggressive in cutting interest
rates to compete in the mortgage market which they
perceived to be of low risk. According to the Monthly
Residential Mortgage Survey conducted by the Hong
Kong Monetary Authority (“HKMA”), the proportion of
newly approved mortgage loans priced at more than 2.5%
below the BLR was less than 1% in early 2009, but surged
to around 40% by year end. Moreover, borrowers were
increasingly inclined to opt for HIBOR-based mortgages
to take advantage of the prevailing low HIBOR
environment. As a result, the proportion of newly approved
HIBOR-based mortgage loans climbed to a record high
of 62% in December 2009 (Figure 4).

Figure 4:
Pricing of New Residential Mortgage Loans Approved
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In line with the buoyant property market activities, the
mortgage loan origination volume also exhibited a
prominent uptrend in 2009. The HKMA’s Monthly
Residential Mortgage Survey showed that the total
outstanding value of overall residential mortgage loans
registered a 7.4% increase to HK$698 billion at the end
of the year (Figure 5).

Figure 5:
New Residential Mortgage Loans Made
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The asset quality of residential mortgage loans remained
at high quality with low delinquency ratio in 2009, owing
to the prudent underwriting standards adopted by industry
practitioners and the effective regulation and monitoring
of the mortgage market by the HKMA. According to the
HKMA'’s survey, the delinquency ratio of mortgage loans
overdue for more than 90 days remained stable at about
0.05% in the first three quarters of 2009 and trended down
to 0.03% by the end of the year. The combined ratio,
which takes into account both delinquent and rescheduled
loans, declined from 0.19% in January to 0.12% in
December 2009 (Figure 6).

Figure 6:
Delinquency Ratio of Residential Mortgage Loans
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Banking Sector Exposure

Due to the rebound in banks’ mortgage lending, the total
outstanding value of mortgage loans for private residential
properties rose to HK$647 billion at the end of 2009, up
from HK$593 billion a year ago, accounting for about one-
fourth of the total loans for use in Hong Kong (Figure 7).
Taking into account the loans for building and
construction, as well as property development and
investment, the amount of property-related loans totalled
HK$1,269 billion and represented about half of the total
loan book of banks. Such a high exposure to property-
related lending indicates that a sharp downturn in the
property market could have an adverse impact on the
overall stability of the banking system, although banks in

Hong Kong in general have a strong capital base.

Figure 7:
Total Loans and Private Residential Mortgage Loans of All
Authorized Institutions
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Asset Acquisition

In 2009, the Corporation acquired a total of HK$8.8 billion

of local and overseas mortgage assets.

Given the possible sharp increase in mortgage interest
rate as global economy started to recover, the Corporation
launched a special scheme under its Fixed Adjustable
Rate Mortgage Programme promoting mortgage loans
with fixed-rate periods ranging from one to 10 years in
2009, which was well received by homebuyers. The fixed-
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rate products primarily aimed at providing an alternative
choice of financing to the borrowers, as well as allowing
them to be shielded from future fluctuation in interest rates.
The Corporation also successfully purchased the
commercial mortgage loan valued at HK$4 billion under
the Link REIT refinancing arrangement in 2009.

The Corporation concluded the fourth mortgage purchase
transaction in the form of private bilateral mortgage-
backed securitisation with a leading financial institution in
Korea for an amount of HK$3.1 billion in 2009. The
overseas mortgage purchase transactions are structured
with very robust risk mitigation arrangements such as
requiring a low loan-to-value (“LTV”) ratio and a sizeable
equity piece to be retained by the seller to take the first
loss. Currency and interest rate risks are also fully hedged

through cross-currency swaps.

Mortgage Insurance

Over the years, the MIP has repeatedly demonstrated its
effectiveness in assisting potential homebuyers to
overcome the hurdle of requiring a substantial down
payment for the purchase of a property. From the
perspective of the banking industry as a whole, the MIP
allows banks to engage in higher LTV lending without
incurring additional credit risk and affecting the overall
stability of the banking system. In all, the programme
creates a win-win situation for both the homebuyers and
the banks.

Since its inception in March 1999, the MIP has gained
increasing public acceptance and has played an
instrumental role of promoting home ownership in Hong
Kong. For 2009 as a whole, the volume of loans drawn
down amounted to a record high of HK$36 billion and
the usage rate (in terms of drawdown loan amount against
total market mortgage drawdown) increased from 11% in
2008 to 18% in 2009 (Figure 8). It is notable that 90% of
MIP applications received are for secondary market
properties. The figure demonstrates that mortgage
insurance is instrumental in assisting homebuyers in the

secondary market.
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Since 1999, the MIP has helped over 73,000 families to
enjoy home ownership, with loan drawdown totalling over
HK$151 billion. The average loan size under the MIP is
HK$2.1 million, indicating that the MIP assists mainly first-
time homebuyers in acquiring their homes.

Figure 8:

Mortgage Loan Amount Drawn Down and Usage Rate* of
MIP
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Refinements of MIP

In light of a sharp rise in the prices of the high-end
residential property market, the Corporation took steps
in October 2009 to tighten certain MIP eligibility criteria.
The Corporation suspended the MIP coverage in respect
of non owner-occupied properties and reduced the
maximum loan amount to HK$12 million and HK$6 million

for 90% and 95% LTV mortgages respectively.

On the other hand, the Corporation received good
responses from banks and homebuyers on the Risk-based
Pricing Scheme (“RBPS”) launched in May 2006. With new
access to the consumer credit data held by the credit
reference agency, TransUnion Limited, the Corporation
further expanded the scope of RBPS in December 2009
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and increased the maximum premium discount level for
85% LTV mortgages to 30% and 90% LTV mortgages to
25%, and extended the RBPS to 95% LTV mortgages,
granting homebuyers a premium discount up to 15%.

Training and Marketing

The Corporation keeps the MIP participating banks well
informed of any new developments on the MIP and
consults them on new initiatives. The Corporation regularly
organises training seminars on MIP product features and
eligibility criteria for banks and other market players such
as estate agents and referral companies, so that their
frontline staff can better understand and explain the details
of MIP to their customers.

Joint Venture in Shenzhen

In July 2009, the Corporation started up its business in
Shenzhen by establishing a guarantee company, Bauhinia
HKMC Corporation Limited, which is a joint venture with
Shenzhen Financial Electronic Settlement Centre, an entity
operating under the supervision of the People’s Bank of
China.

At the initial stage, the joint venture company provides
mainly short-term bridging mortgage guarantee for
residential property transactions and refinancing in the
secondary mortgage market. This strategy provides an
opportunity for the Corporation to have a deeper and fuller
understanding of the operation and risk management for
the mortgage market in Shenzhen.

Apart from bridging mortgage guarantee, the Corporation
will continue to explore suitable business opportunities,
including other types of mortgage and non-mortgage
guarantee products, as and when appropriate.

Joint Venture in Malaysia

Cagamas HKMC Berhad is a joint venture with Cagamas
Berhad and incorporated in Malaysia in 2008. The joint
venture provided mortgage guarantee on conventional
and Islamic mortgage portfolios.
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Funding

The local and global capital markets were adversely
affected by the global financial crisis at the beginning of
2009. However, as the year progressed, various liquidity
and stimulus measures implemented by the governments
worldwide started to take effect, and the market stress
began to ease. Debt market activities revived and credit
spreads narrowed. Notwithstanding the volatile market
conditions, the Corporation managed to secure prudent
pre-funding to cater for loan purchases and refinancing.
Given the Corporation’s strong background as a wholly
government-owned entity and its solid credit ratings, as
well as investors’ flight-to-quality inclination, the
Corporation continued to be the most active Hong Kong
dollar corporate issuer for the ninth year. In 2009, a total
amount of HK$22.7 billion of debts were raised. At the
end of 2009, the Corporation’s total outstanding debt
amounted to HK$44.5 billion.

The Corporation is committed to developing the local debt
market through regular debt issuance and introduction of
new debt products. As one of the most active bond issuers
in Hong Kong, the Corporation will continue to issue debts
in both local institutional and retail markets, and diversify
its funding sources and investor base to overseas
institutional markets. This will not only help to broaden
the Corporation’s funding base, but also provide
institutional and retail investors with high quality debt
instruments to satisfy their need for portfolio diversification

and yield enhancement.

The Corporation has three debt issuance programmes
which allow the issuance of debt securities in an efficient
and effective manner. With its strong credit ratings, the
Corporation’s debt issues are well received by the
investing community such as pension funds, insurance
companies, investment funds, charities, government-
related funds as well as retail investors. The Corporation
maintains a pro-active approach in updating investors
regularly in the local and regional markets such as
Mainland China, Japan and Singapore.
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Debt Issuance Programme

The Debt Issuance Programme (“DIP”) is the Corporation’s
main platform for raising Hong Kong dollar funding. The
DIP was established in July 1998 targeting at institutional
investors in the Hong Kong dollar debt market. It was set
up with an initial programme size of HK$20 billion and
subsequently increased to HK$40 billion in 2003. The DIP
provides a flexible and efficient platform for the
Corporation to issue debts and transferable loan
certificates with tenor up to 15 years. Apart from plain
vanilla debts, the Corporation also issued high quality
structured products to meet the investor demand. A total
of six Primary Dealers and 16 Selling Group Members
appointed under the DIP provided wide distribution
channels for both public and private debt issues.

During 2009, the Corporation drew down 51 DIP debt
issues for a total amount of HK$15.5 billion. In June 2009,
the Corporation issued 15-year callable zero coupon
bonds for HK$1 billion, being the largest issue and the
longest tenor in the local bond market, to meet the
growing investors’ appetite for long-term debt products
in Hong Kong. At the end of 2009, the total outstanding
amount of DIP debt securities was HK$30.6 billion.

Retail Bond Issuance Programme

The Corporation is dedicated to promoting the local retail
bond market with an objective of broadening the
Corporation’s investor base outside its already strong
institutional investor community. In November 2001, the
Corporation successfully pioneered a new offering
mechanism for the retail bond market in Hong Kong.

To further spur the development of the retail bond market,
the Corporation established the HK$20 Billion Retail Bond
Issuance Programme and made a debut issue in June
2004. Under this programme, banks acting as Placing
Banks use their retail branch networks, telephone and
electronic banking facilities to place debt securities issued
by the Corporation to retail investors. To ensure the
liquidity of such retail bonds, the Placing Banks are
committed to making firm bid prices for the bonds in the
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secondary market. Over the years, the Corporation’s retail
bonds have gained widespread recognition as a safe and
simple investment choice with reasonably attractive
returns, giving retail investors an opportunity to invest in
high-grade debt securities issued by a wholly government-
owned corporation. When market environment is
conducive, the Corporation aims to issue retail bonds
regularly to provide an additional investment tool for Hong

Kong retail investors.

Since 2001, the Corporation has issued a total amount of
HK$13.7 billion retail bonds. At the end of 2009, the total
outstanding amount of retail bonds stood at HK$1.9
billion.

Medium Term Note Programme

The Corporation established the multi-currency US$3
Billion Medium Term Note (“MTN”) Programme in June
2007 to raise funds in the international market and to
broaden its investor base and funding sources. The multi-
currency feature of the programme enables the
Corporation to issue notes in major currencies including
Hong Kong dollar, US dollar, euro and yen to meet the
demand of both local and overseas investors. All foreign
currency denominated MTN debts are fully hedged into
either US dollar or Hong Kong dollar. The programme
incorporates flexible product features and offering
mechanisms for both public issues and private placements
so as to increase its appeal to investors with different
investment horizons and requirements. An extensive
dealer group comprising 10 major international and
regional financial institutions has been appointed to
support future MTN issuance and provide secondary
market liquidity.

During 2009, the Corporation launched 11 MTN private
debt issues, including debts denominated in US dollar
and Singapore dollar, totalling HK$3.4 billion equivalent.
The Corporation also made a debut public issue of
US$500 million of debt securities under the MTN
Programme, which was very well received by other
government entities in the region, pension funds,
insurance companies and investment funds. The issue
has set a benchmark for other top-tier corporate bond
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issuers in Hong Kong, and has helped to develop the
regional bond market at the same time. At the end of
2009, the total outstanding amount of MTN debts was
HK$12 billion.

Revolving Credit Facility provided by the
Exchange Fund

During the Asian Financial Crisis, the Exchange Fund
through the HKMA extended a HK$10 billion Revolving
Credit Facility to the Corporation in January 1998. The
Facility aims at enabling the Corporation to maintain
smooth operation under exceptional circumstances so
that it can better fulfill its mandate of promoting banking
and financial stability in Hong Kong. Whilst the Corporation
obtains long-term funding from the local and international
debt markets to fund its operation, the Facility stands as
a liquidity fallback for the Corporation. In light of the global
financial crisis in 2008, the size of the Facility was
subsequently increased to HK$30 billion in December
2008, which demonstrated the HKSAR Government’s
recognition of the importance of and further support to
the Corporation.

The drawing of the Revolving Credit Facility in 2008 was
used to partially fund the acquisition of Hong Kong
residential mortgage assets from local banks amid the
distorted capital market. During 2009, the Corporation
fully repaid the amount drawn under the Revolving Credit
Facility by using the funds raised from its cost-effective
debt issuance.

Credit Ratings

The Corporation’s ability to attract investment in its debt
securities is underpinned by the strong credit ratings which
are equivalent to those of the HKSAR Government
accorded by Moody’s and S&P.

Credit Ratings of the HKMC

Moody’s Standard & Poor’s
Short-term  Long-term  Short-term  Long-term
Local Currency P-1 Aa?2 A-1+ AA+
(Outlook) (Positive) (Stable)
Foreign Currency P-1 Aa2 A-1+ AA+
(Outlook) (Positive) (Stable)
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The credit rating agencies have made very positive
comments on the credit standing of the Corporation. The
following comments are extracts from the credit rating
reports of Moody’s and S&P after their annual surveillance
in May 2009, and the rating affirmation report of S&P in
August 2009:

Moody’s

“There is strong intrinsic economic relationship between
the HKMC and the HKSAR Government, given its status
as a mortgage product provider and the importance of
land and property in the Hong Kong economy.”

“The expected high level of (government) support reflects
the HKMC'’s status as a wholly-owned Government entity
to carry out critical functions in enhancing financial and
banking stability in Hong Kong by providing liquidity for
the mortgage and property markets via banks and housing
agencies, promoting home ownership, and spearheading
the development of the debt and securitisation markets
in Hong Kong.”

“The HKMC’s asset-liability management is well
developed within the constraints of the local markets
in terms of the availability of tools and long-term
funding. Its ability to assess and manage risk has
resulted in risk levels well within its own guidelines and,
in some cases, superior to some of its larger international

peers.”

“Over the years, the HKMC has demonstrated a strong
ability to secure funding, even when liquidity in the system
had shrunk during unexpected circumstances thanks to
special exemptions or privileges for its securities and its

strong fundamentals.”

S&P

“We affirmed the ratings to reflect the equalisation
with the ratings on its sole owner, the Government of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. In our
opinion, there is an almost certain likelihood that the
Hong Kong government would provide timely and
sufficient extraordinary support to the HKMC in the
event of financial distress.”
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“On a standalone basis, the ratings reflect the HKMC'’s
prudent credit risk management, strong liquidity, and
satisfactory capital base.”

“The HKMC has a traditional and generally prudent
approach to risk management. Recognising credit risk as
its focus of risk appetite, the Corporation has adopted
stringent policies, a simple and effective business model
and management structure, and various hedging tools to

largely mitigate other types of risks.”

“The HKMC'’s liquidity position is adequately managed...
The Corporation also maintains a reasonably high level of
liquid assets in the form of marketable debt securities,
cash and bank deposits, which provides a liquidity
fallback.”

Mortgage-Backed Securitisation

The Corporation has established two mortgage-backed
securitisation programmes for issuance of mortgage-
backed securities (“MBS”) in an efficient and effective
manner. These two programmes — the Guaranteed
Mortgage-Backed Pass-Through Securitisation
Programme and the Bauhinia Mortgage-Backed
Securitisation Programme — were the first-ever
securitisation programmes set up in the Hong Kong debt
market.

MBS are powerful financial instruments that can channel
long-term funding from the debt market to supplement
the need for long-term financing generated by mortgage
loans. Banks and financial institutions can make use of
MBS to manage risks inherent in mortgage loans, such
as credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and asset
liability maturity mismatch risk. A deep and liquid MBS
market can help to enhance the development of an
efficient secondary mortgage market and further promote

Hong Kong as an international financial centre.

The Corporation made no MBS issuance in 2009 due to
a fall in investor demand and unfavourable market

conditions following the global financial crisis.
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Guaranteed Mortgage-Backed Pass-
Through Securitisation Programme

This first MBS securitisation programme of the
Corporation was established in October 1999 targeting
at banks that not only wanted to off load mortgage loans
but also wished to enjoy the benefits of holding MBS

guaranteed by the Corporation.

The back-to-back structure under this programme allows
the Corporation to acquire mortgage loans from a bank
and then sell the mortgage loans directly to a bankruptcy
remote special purpose entity (“SPE”). The SPE in turn
issues MBS to the bank as investor of the security.
Through this back-to-back exercise, the bank can convert
illiquid mortgage loans into liquid MBS. Furthermore, as
far as the capital adequacy requirement is concerned,
MBS guaranteed by the Corporation are assigned a 20%
risk asset weighting under the Banking (Capital) Rules as
opposed to 35% - 100% for mortgage loans, thereby
allowing banks to utilise their capital more efficiently. Since
the inception of the programme, four series of MBS with
a total amount of HK$2.8 billion have been issued.

Bauhinia Mortgage-Backed Securitisation
Programme

The Bauhinia Mortgage-Backed Securitisation Programme
established in December 2001 is a US$3 billion multi-
currency mortgage-backed securitisation programme. The
programme provides a convenient, flexible and cost-
efficient platform for the Corporation to issue MBS with
various product structures, credit enhancements and
distribution methods. MBS issued under the Bauhinia
Mortgage-Backed Securitisation Programme have the
trading and settlement characteristics of a eurobond.
Trading of the MBS in the secondary market is therefore
made more convenient and efficient.

Since the inception of the Bauhinia Mortgage-Backed
Securitisation Programme, the Corporation has
successfully securitised HK$10.4 billion of mortgage loans
through five public issues and one private placement
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issue. The debut MBS issue under the programme with a
size of HK$2 billion was done in March 2002. The second
issue of HK$3 billion done in November 2003 was the
largest ever Hong Kong dollar denominated residential
MBS. The third public issue of HK$2 billion, split into two
portions for institutional and retail investors respectively,
was done in November 2004. This was the first time in
the whole of Asia that retail investors were given the
opportunity to invest in MBS. The fourth MBS issue of
HK$1 billion was done in November 2005. The fifth public
issue of HK$2 billion, split into three senior tranches rated
“Aaa/AAA” and one subordinated tranche rated “Aaa/AA”,
was done in November 2006. This was the first-ever

partially guaranteed MBS under the programme.

Risk Management

The Corporation operates under prudent commercial
principles, and the principle of “prudence before
profitability” guides the design of the overall risk
management framework and discipline in day-to-day
business execution. Over the years, the Corporation has
continuously made refinements to its well-established,
robust and time-tested risk management framework.
There were two important developments in the area of
risk governance in 2009.

Corporate Risk Management Committee

To further strengthen the overall risk governance, the
Board approved the establishment of a Corporate Risk
Management Committee (“CRC”) in December 2009 to
manage all financial and non-financial risks from an
enterprise-wide perspective. The CRC drives and monitors
improvement efforts in governance, policies and tools. It
also assigns priorities and responsibilities to individual
departments in enhancing the risk management
framework. The Committee is chaired by an Executive
Director, with members including another Executive
Director, Chief Executive Officer, Senior Vice President
(Operations), Senior Vice President (Finance), General

Counsel and Senior Vice President (Risk).
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Risk Oversight and Management

The Board also approved the establishment of a risk
division in 2009 to further enhance the corporate risk
governance through strengthening risk oversight and risk
management. It makes regular reports to the CRC and
the Board on the key risk issues faced by the Corporation,
relevant actions taken to address such issues, compliance
with risk appetite and risk policies, general risk
management practices and any necessary adjustments
to the overall risk management framework of the

Corporation.

The five major risk areas faced by the Corporation
comprise credit risk, market risk, operational risk, legal

risk and leveraging risk.

(a) Credit Risk
Credit risk is the primary risk exposure for the Corporation.
It represents the risk of default by loan borrowers and

counterparties.

(i) Defaultrisk
To address default risk effectively, the Corporation
adheres to a four-pronged approach to safeguard
and maintain the quality of its asset and MIP
portfolios:

° Careful selection of Approved Sellers/
Servicers/Reinsurers

° Prudent asset purchase criteria and insurance
application eligibility criteria

° Effective due diligence process

° Enhanced protection for higher-risk mortgages
or transactions

Losses may arise if there is a shortfall in the recovery
amount for defaulted loans under the Mortgage

(ii)
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Purchase Programme (“MPP”). To mitigate such
default risk, the Corporation has adopted a set of
prudent loan purchase criteria and conducts
effective due diligence review as part and parcel of
the loan purchase process in order to maintain the
credit quality of loans purchased. In addition,
depending on the projected risk exposure of the
underlying loan portfolio, credit enhancement
arrangements such as reserve fund for absorbing
credit losses will be agreed with the seller on a deal-
by-deal basis so as to reduce the potential credit
losses arising from the borrower’s default.

Similarly, losses may also arise from default on loans
under the MIP insurance coverage. Each MIP
application is underwritten by the Corporation in
accordance with a set of prudent eligibility criteria,
and each claim from a participating bank will be
audited by the Corporation to ensure the fulfillment
of all MIP coverage conditions and to detect any
fraud elements. As a result, the default risk for loans
with MIP coverage is greatly reduced. To reduce
possible concentration of such default risk, the
Corporation transfers a portion of the risk-in-force
to Approved Reinsurers by way of a reinsurance risk-
sharing arrangement.

Seller/Servicer counterparty risk

Counterparty risk may arise from failure of a Seller/
Servicer of an acquired portfolio to remit scheduled
payments to the Corporation in a timely and
accurate manner. The Corporation adopts a
counterparty risk limit framework that limits the
aggregate amount of assets it can purchase from
the Approved Sellers. There are also individual limits
on the maximum amount of assets that the
Corporation can purchase from a counterparty. The
risk limit framework acts as a good device for
managing the counterparty exposure on the basis
of risk profile of each Seller/Servicer and to avoid

concentration of acquisition from a few sellers only.
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(iii) Reinsurer counterparty risk

(iv)

v)
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Reinsurer counterparty risk refers to the failure of
an Approved Reinsurer to make claim payment to
the Corporation. In order to mitigate counterparty
risk effectively, the Corporation has established a
framework for the assessment of mortgage
reinsurers’ financial strengths, credit ratings and

relevant experience in mortgage insurance.

Treasury counterparty risk

Treasury counterparty risk arises when a delay or
failure of treasury counterparties in making payment
with respect to treasury instruments transacted with
the Corporation. The Corporation adopts a prudent
treasury counterparty limit framework, under which
each potential treasury counterparty is assessed on
the basis of its credit ratings, financial strengths,
capability in treasury products, etc. Based on the
evaluation results, a treasury counterparty limit will
be assigned to each specific type of treasury

instrument exposure.

Control mechanism

Portfolio performance and analysis reports are
compiled on a regular basis to provide Management
with up-to-date information on critical credit risk
indicators such as loan delinquency ratios, equity
positions and cumulative credit losses, so as to
enable timely review and swift responses to changes
in the operating environment. Stress tests on the
retained portfolio and mortgage insurance portfolio
are conducted to analyse the Corporation’s financial
capability to weather extreme scenarios.

The counterparty limits of all Sellers and Servicers
are subject to regular review whereby their financial
strengths, management capabilities, loan servicing
quality and transaction experience are taken into
consideration for renewal and/or adjustment in limit.
The limits for treasury counterparties are reviewed
and adjusted on a regular basis based on their

financial strengths, as well as the capital base of

(vi)

the Corporation. To date, the Corporation has not
experienced any loss on a treasury transaction due
to credit default by a counterparty.

The Corporation also performs annual review of
Approved Reinsurers’ financial strengths, business
proposal, reinsurance arrangement and management
capabilities. The result of the review is used for
determining the on-going business allocation and

risk-sharing portion.

Governance

At the heart of the Corporation’s credit risk
management framework are two committees:
the Credit Committee and the Transaction
Approval Committee.

Credit Committee

The Credit Committee is responsible for setting the
Corporation’s overall credit policies and eligibility
criteria, particularly for asset acquisition and
mortgage insurance. The Committee operates under
the framework approved by the Board. It is the
approval authority for accepting applications to
become Approved Sellers/Servicers under the MPP
and Approved Reinsurers under the MIP. It is also
responsible for setting risk exposure limits for the
counterparties. Should business and operating
environment change drastically, credit policies will
be immediately subject to review and timely
measures based on the findings will be presented
to the Committee for approval.

Transaction Approval Committee

The Transaction Approval Committee is the forum
for in-depth analyses of pricing economics and
associated credit risk for business transactions,
taking into consideration the latest market conditions
and business strategies approved by the Board.
Major transactions approved by the Committee are

subject to endorsement by an Executive Director.
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The Credit Committee and the Transaction Approval
Committee are both chaired by the Chief Executive Officer
with members including Senior Vice President
(Operations), Senior Vice President (Finance), General
Counsel, Senior Vice President (Risk) and senior staff from
the relevant functional departments.

(b) Market Risk

Market risk arises when the Corporation’s income or the
value of its portfolios decreases due to movements in the
market prices. Market risk consists of interest rate risk,
asset-liability maturity mismatch risk, liquidity risk and

currency risk.

(i) Interest rate risk

Net interest income is the predominant source of
earnings for the Corporation. It represents the
excess of interest income (from the Corporation’s
loan portfolio, cash and debt investments) over
interest expenses (from debt issuance and other
borrowings). Interest rate risk arises when changes
in market interest rates affect the interest income
or interest expenses associated with the assets
and liabilities respectively.

The primary objective of interest rate risk management
is therefore to limit the potential adverse effects
arising from interest rate movements on interest
income/expenses, while maintaining a stable
earnings growth. The interest rate risk faced by the
Corporation is two-fold, namely, interest rate
mismatch risk and basis risk. Interest rate mismatch
risk is the most substantial risk affecting the
Corporation’s net interest income. It arises mainly
as a result of the differences in the timing of interest
rate re-pricing for the Corporation’s interest-earning
assets and interest-bearing liabilities. Interest rate
mismatch risk is most evident in the loan portfolio
where the majority of the loans earn floating interest
rate (benchmarked against the Prime rate, the
HIBOR or Composite Interest Rate), whilst the
majority of the Corporation’s liabilities are fixed-rate
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debt securities. The Corporation therefore makes
prudent use of a range of financial instruments such
as interest rate swaps, interest rate swaptions, basis
swaps, forward rate agreements and the issuance
of MBS to manage the interest rate mismatch risk.
The proceeds of the fixed-rate debt securities are
generally swapped into HIBOR-based funds via
interest rate swaps in order to better match with
the floating-rate income from the mortgage assets.

The Corporation also uses duration gap as an
indicator to monitor, measure and manage interest
rate mismatch risk. Duration gap measures the
difference in interest rate re-pricing intervals between
assets and liabilities. The wider the duration gap,
the higher the interest rate mismatch risk, and vice
versa. A positive duration gap means that the
duration of assets is longer than that of the liabilities,
and represents a greater risk exposure to rising
interest rates. On the other hand, a negative duration
gap indicates a greater risk exposure to declining
interest rates. Depending on the prevailing interest
rate outlook and market conditions, the Corporation
proactively re-balances the duration gap of its asset-
liability portfolio under the guidance and supervision
of the Asset and Liability Committee (*“ALCO”). A
cap of three months for the duration gap has been
set to limit the interest rate mismatch risk. In 2009,
the average duration gap was kept at around one
month, indicating that the Corporation handles
interest rate mismatch risk in a very prudent manner.

Basis risk represents the difference in basis of the
Corporation’s interest-earning assets that are Prime-
based and interest-bearing liabilities that are HIBOR-
based. There are limited financial instruments
currently available in the market to hedge the Prime-
HIBOR basis risk fully. In general, basis risk can only
be effectively addressed when mortgage assets and
non-mortgage assets are based on HIBOR to match
the funding base or when related risk management

instruments become more prevalent or economical.
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(i)
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Over the past few years, the Corporation has
consciously adopted the strategy of acquiring more
HIBOR-based assets and as at the end of 2009,
about 56% of the Corporation’s mortgage assets
and non-mortgage assets are HIBOR-based loans.
As a result, the Prime-HIBOR basis risk for the
Corporation has been substantially reduced. In
addition, the issuance of Prime-based MBS and the
use of hedging derivatives have also been deployed
to mitigate the basis risk of the Prime-based portion

of the Corporation’s loan portfolio.

Asset-liability maturity mismatch risk

Even though the contractual maturity of a mortgage
loan can go up to 30 years, the actual average life
of a portfolio of mortgage loans is much shorter.
The average life will depend on the speed of
scheduled mortgage repayments and unscheduled
prepayments. Higher prepayment rates will shorten
the average life of a portfolio of mortgage loans. In
Hong Kong, prepayment occurs for two main
reasons: (i) housing turnover — borrowers repaying
their mortgage loans upon the sale of the underlying
property; and (i) refinancing — borrowers refinancing

their mortgage loans to obtain lower mortgage rates.

Asset-liability maturity mismatch risk can be more
specifically characterised as reinvestment risk and
refinancing risk. Reinvestment risk refers to the risk
of a lower return from the reinvestment of proceeds
received by the Corporation from prepayments and
repayments of its loan portfolio. Refinancing risk is
the risk of refinancing liabilities at a higher level of
interest rate or credit spread. The Corporation will
be exposed to refinancing risk (in both funding
amount and cost of funds) when it uses short-term
liabilities to finance long-term floating-rate loan
portfolio.

Reinvestment risk is managed through the on-going
efforts to purchase new loans to replenish the
rundown in the retained portfolio and through the
investment of surplus cash in debt securities or cash
deposits to fine-tune the average life of the overall

pool of assets.

(iii)

Refinancing risk is managed through the issuance
of callable bonds and transferable loan certificates.
The call option included in callable bonds and
transferable loan certificates allows the Corporation
to adjust the average life of its liabilities to match
more closely with that of the overall pool of assets.
In this regard, the Corporation has the flexibility of
issuing debt securities on a broad spectrum of
maturities ranging from one month to 15 years. This
again serves to adjust the average life of the overall
liability portfolio in a dynamic fashion. In addition,
refinancing risk can be mitigated by adjusting the
maturities of assets in the investment portfolio and
off-loading mortgage assets through securitisation
of mortgage loans as MBS.

Asset-liability maturity gap ratio (ratio of average life
of total interest earning assets to average life of total
interest bearing liabilities) is used to monitor and
manage the maturity mismatch risk, with a target
ratio set by the ALCO to ensure a proper balance in
the average life of the Corporation’s assets and
liabilities.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk represents the risk of the Corporation
not being able to repay its obligations such as
redemption of maturing debt or to fund the
committed purchases of loan portfolios. Liquidity risk
is managed through monitoring the daily inflow and
outflow of funds and projecting longer-term inflow
and outflow of funds across a full maturity spectrum.
The Corporation measures its liquidity risk with a
target liquid asset ratio (ratio of liquid asset to total
assets) set by the ALCO to monitor and manage its
liquidity position. The Corporation manages pre-
funding prudently through well-diversified funding
sources so that all foreseeable funding commitments
can be met when they fall due, in order to support
the growth of its business and the maintenance of
a well-balanced liability portfolio. Such diversification
allows the Corporation to pursue a strategy of pre-
funding at the lowest possible cost, whilst at the
same time offering safeguards against the inability
to raise funds in distorted market conditions. The

current funding sources include:
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Shareholders’ Capital: authorised capital of
HK$3 billion, of which HK$2 billion is fully paid
up. Accumulated shareholders’ funds
amounted to HK$6.7 billion as at 31 December
2009.

HK$40 Billion Debt Issuance Programme:
there are six Primary Dealers and 16 Selling
Group Members which underwrite and
distribute debts to institutional investors under
the DIP. The Transferable Loan Certificate Sub-
Programme under the DIP provides a further
diversification of funding sources and
broadening of investor base.

HK$20 Billion Retail Bond lIssuance
Programme: this debt issuance programme
has 19 Placing Banks which assist in offering
retail bonds to investors.

US$3 Billion Medium Term Note Programme:
there are 10 Dealers which underwrite and
distribute local and foreign currency debts to
the international institutional investors under

the programme.

US$3 Billion Bauhinia Mortgage-Backed
Securitisation Programme: with a total of eight
Dealers, this multi-currency mortgage-backed
securitisation programme permits the
Corporation to originate MBS in both the local
and international markets.

Cash and Debt Investment Portfolio: the
portfolio comprises mainly cash and bank
deposits, commercial papers, high-quality
certificates of deposit and notes that can be
readily converted into cash.

HK$30 Billion Revolving Credit Facility: the
Exchange Fund commits to provide the
Corporation with HK$30 billion in revolving
credit.

(iv)
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° Money Market Lines: the Corporation has
procured money market lines from a large
number of local and international banks for

short-term financing.

Given the strong background as a wholly government-
owned entity and solid credit ratings, the Corporation
enjoys advantage in raising funds from the debt
market with both the institutional and retail funding
bases. This is supplemented by the Corporation’s
portfolios of highly liquid investments which are held
to enable it to respond swiftly and smoothly to
unforeseen liquidity requirements. The HK$30 Billion
Revolving Credit Facility from the Exchange Fund
further provides the Corporation with a liquidity
fallback even when exceptional market strains last
for a prolonged period of time.

The Corporation implements its liquidity risk
management framework in response to changes
in market conditions. The Corporation has
continuously monitored the impact of recent market
events on its liquidity positions, and has pursued
prudent pre-funding strategy which has helped to
contain the impact of the global financial turmoil on
its liquidity.

Currency risk

Currency risk arises from the impact of foreign
exchange rate fluctuations on the Corporation’s
financial position and foreign currency denominated
cash flows. The Corporation manages its currency
risk in strict accordance with the investment
guidelines approved by the Board and under the
supervision of the ALCO which sets daily monitoring
limits on currency exposure. So far, the Corporation
has primarily limited its net foreign currency exposure
to US dollar only.

The Corporation does not speculate in foreign
currencies and all the foreign currency exposure in
the asset-liability portfolio must be fully hedged into
either Hong Kong dollar or US dollar. In accordance
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with this prudent risk management principle, the net
exposure of the foreign currency denominated debts
issued under the MTN Programme and the overseas
residential mortgage loans purchased were fully

hedged with the use of cross-currency swaps.

Control mechanism

Transaction execution is segregated among front,
middle and back offices to ensure adequate checks
and balances. The Treasury Department, acting as
the front office, is responsible for monitoring financial
market movements and executing transactions in
the cash, derivatives, debt and securitisation
markets in accordance with the strategies laid down
by the ALCO. The Financial Control Department
assumes the middle office role and monitors the
compliance with treasury counterparty and market
risk limits. The Operations Department, acting as
the back office, is responsible for deal verification,
confirmation, settlement and payment process.

Governance

Asset & Liability Committee

The ALCO manages the Corporation’s asset-liability
portfolio based on prudent risk management
principles. It has the authority to set market risk
management policies and limits to facilitate day-to-
day market risk management. Regular meetings are
held to review the latest financial market
development and the asset-liability portfolio mix.
Furthermore, it also oversees the implementation of
risk management and investment guidelines
approved by the Board.

The ALCO is chaired by the Chief Executive Officer,
with members including Senior Vice President
(Finance), Senior Vice President (Operations), Senior
Vice President (Risk) and senior staff from the
relevant functional departments.

(c) Operational Risk

Operational risk represents the risk of losses arising from

inadequacies or failure of internal processes, people,

systems or external interruptions.

@)

Control mechanism

The Corporation adopts a bottom-up approach in
identifying operational risk by carrying out in-depth
analysis on new products, business activities,
processes, system enhancements and due diligence
review of new operational flows. Comprehensive
validation rules, management information system
reports and audit trails are put in place to track and
report any error and deficiency.

The Corporation actively manages operational risk
through its comprehensive systems with well-
established internal controls, authentication
structure and operational procedures. Operational
infrastructures are well designed to support launch
of new products in different business areas,
including asset acquisition, mortgage insurance,
treasury operations, bond issuance, securitisation
and overseas business. Rigorous review to identify
possible operational risk and to ensure adequate
segregation of duties will be conducted before
the implementation of operational or system

infrastructure.

To prevent potential human errors and to ensure
efficient and effective discharge of daily operations,
the Corporation pursues advanced technological
solution with robust business logics and controls to
carry out its operational activities and business
processes. Steps have been taken to ensure the
accuracy, availability and security of these systems
as they are critical to business operations and risk
management.
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The Corporation has taken careful steps to institute
adequate checks and balances in financial controls
to ensure its operations are properly directed and
controlled. Effective financial controls also help to
minimise the financial risks and safeguard the assets
against inappropriate use or loss, including

prevention and detection of fraud.

The Corporation’s Information Security Manual
(“ISM”) documents security standards and practices
relating to information and data security for
observance by all staff. All system security measures
must follow the requirements stated in the ISM. The
Corporation implements various security measures,
such as double firewall protections, intrusion
detection systems, virus alert and quarantine
system, and vulnerability scanning system so as to
minimise its exposure to external attacks. Internally,
the Corporation also has a virtual Local Area
Network and workstation security policies to reduce
the damages in the event of a malicious intrusion.
The Corporation engages external consultants for
testing out the intrusion vulnerability in order to
enhance system security as appropriate.

To ensure a high degree of compliance, the
Corporation’s core operating systems and
processes are subject to regular audit and review
by internal and external auditors. Furthermore, all
staff are required to sign an undertaking to comply
with the requirements in the ISM every year. The
ISM is updated whenever there is a new security
measure or a new system. Any changes to the ISM
require Senior Management’s approval.

To ensure the business recovery procedures are
practical and to facilitate continuous improvement,
a business recovery drill is conducted by both IT
and user departments every year. Daily back-up and
off-site storage of back-up tapes are put in place to
protect the Corporation from IT disasters.

(i)
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Governance

Operational Risk Committee

In December 2009, the Board approved the
establishment of the Operational Risk Committee
(“ORC”) as a formal platform to bring all operational
risk items, as well as legal risk of the Corporation,

under regular review and monitoring.

The ORC is chaired by the Chief Executive Officer,
with members including Senior Vice President
(Operations), Senior Vice President (Finance),
General Counsel, Senior Vice President (Risk) and

senior staff in the relevant functional departments.

(d) Legal Risk

Legal risk is the risk arising from uncertainty in the

application or interpretation of laws, regulations and legal

documents, or failure to comply with the statutory,

regulatory or legal obligations.

@)

Control mechanism

The Legal Office, headed by General Counsel and
Company Secretary, advises the Corporation on
legal matters with a view to controlling legal risk.
When new products or business activities are
considered, the Legal Office will advise on the
relevant laws and regulatory environment, as well
as the legal documentation, and identify possible
legal pitfalls with a view to protecting the best
interests of the Corporation. Where appropriate,
external counsel will be engaged to assist the Legal
Office in providing full legal support to the
Corporation. The Legal Office works closely with the
other departments of the Corporation and advises
on legal issues and documentation.

The General Counsel and Company Secretary
ensures that company secretarial arrangements, for
example, arrangements relating to the holding of

Board meetings and general meetings, distribution
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of Board papers, passing of resolutions and
maintenance of meeting minutes etc., comply with
the applicable laws and regulations, as well as the
constitutional documents of the Corporation and the
Code on Corporate Governance. The General
Counsel and Company Secretary also provides
advice and support to the Directors with a view to
ensuring that best practices relating to Board
procedures, avoidance of conflicts of interest and
other aspects of corporate governance are
observed.

(i) Governance

The ORC is the governance committee for legal risk.

(e) Leveraging Risk

To ensure the Corporation will not engage in excessive
leveraging in expanding its business activities to over a
certain proportion of its capital base, the Financial
Secretary of the HKSAR Government has issued
Guidelines on the Capital-to-Assets Ratio (“CAR”) of the
Corporation. The minimum CAR stipulated in the

Guidelines is 5%.

In accordance with the capital requirement laid down in
the Guidelines, the maximum leverage of the Corporation
should be maintained at a healthy and low level. As at
31 December 2009, the Corporation has a capital base
of HK$6.3 billion and a CAR at 9.5% which is well above
the minimum requirement of 5%.

Capital adequacy and prudent use of regulatory capital
are monitored daily by Management in accordance with
the Guidelines issued by the Financial Secretary. The Chief
Executive Officer is required to submit a quarterly report
to the Board by reference to the Guidelines. An early
warning system will alert Management when the ratio
drops below 6%. Any breach or likely breach of the

Guidelines must be reported to the Financial Secretary.
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Process Management and
Information Technology

A well-tested operational framework supported by
robust and innovative business processes, system
automation and control are the key to ensure efficiency
and effectiveness in the Corporation’s daily operations.
Throughout the past decade, the Corporation has
devoted significant resources to developing and
upgrading its business operations, internal control and
application systems to support its missions and
strategies.

In 2009, the Corporation started to revamp its treasury
system infrastructure. The new solution aims to bring in
further enhancement on the timeliness of developing new
treasury and hedging products, better risk management
integration across various products, counterparts and
regions, better integration and more reliable collaboration
between the front, middle and back offices, as well as
more robust and responsive adaptations to meet with the
future regulatory and reporting requirements. It is expected
that the new treasury system will be launched in the first

quarter of 2011 after a comprehensive trial.

To monitor the quality of overseas assets, a dedicated
application system, namely the Portfolio Information
Processing System, was put in place in 2008. The system
produces management reports and helps to verify massive
loan data for analytical and effective monitoring purposes.
Moreover, the Corporation has continued to strengthen
the MIP processing systems to further streamline the
underwriting and servicing operations, and to cater for
introduction of new products and risk management

initiatives.
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Riding on the Corporation’s know-how and expertise on
document imaging and paperless operations adopted for
the MIP operations, the Corporation will establish an IT
infrastructure to streamline the treasury and mortgage
operations in order to better cope with the increasing
transaction volume and sophistication. This automation
on indexing, filing and retrieval of vast amount of paper
documents is essential to upgrade the current platform
for timely transaction management and operational
control. It will also provide the extra benefit of unifying the
filing and retrieval process for the straight-through-
processing of trade confirmations, securities settlement,
payment authentication and document storage. This
scalable infrastructure can be extended to document
imaging needs for other new business operational areas

in future.

To support the joint venture in Shenzhen, the Corporation
has set up a dedicated project team to identify the
operational risks and design the operation infrastructure,
internal control systems and IT infrastructure to enable
the commencement of business in September 2009.
Continuous enhancements have been made to strengthen
the internal control and process automation to meet with
the operational and business needs. The process
management team of the Corporation will continue to work
with the local expertise in Shenzhen to further improve
the operational infrastructure in 2010.

Business Continuity Plan

The Corporation has conducted a comprehensive review
by integrating the disaster recovery plan and the business
continuity plan of respective business and operational
units into the corporate-wide business continuity plan
which provides a robust decision-making and reporting
framework in response to any disastrous event that may
result in damages to any of the three core resources of
the Corporation, namely office premises, information

systems and human resources.

The Corporation has also expanded its off-site back-up
and disaster recovery centre to enhance the resilience of
its business operations and to ensure that its IT systems
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can continue to operate even in the event of a core system
failure or other unexpected major disruptions. In case of
a contingency situation that restricts staff access to its
main office in Central, a certain portion of the staff
members will be arranged to work from home with remote
computer access to continue the key operations. The
corporate business continuity plan and the above
operational risk mitigation measures are reviewed and
tested annually with staff participation so as to strengthen
the staff’'s readiness and operational robustness.

Corporate Social Responsibility

In recognition of the Corporation’s contributions to the
community and its commitment to corporate social
responsibility in the past year, the Hong Kong Council of
Social Service awarded the Corporation with the honour
of “Caring Organisation 2009/10” under its Caring

Company Scheme for the second year.

As a socially responsible organisation, the Corporation
cares for both its staff and the community. The Corporation
has underlined its commitment to corporate social
responsibility by caring for its employees’ well-being,
participating in charity activities and implementing

environmental protection measures.

Caring Company Recognition Ceremony
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Care for Employees

Staffing and Remuneration

With the Corporation’s core missions in enhancing stability
of banking sector, promoting wider home ownership and
facilitating the development of debt securities market, it
attracts and grooms talents in its key business areas of
mortgage purchase, mortgage insurance and debt
issuance. The Corporation provides employees with
competitive remuneration packages and fringe benefits,
promising career path and development opportunities, as
well as a healthy and safe working environment. It also
adopts family-friendly practices by offering a five-day week
to help the employees maintain a good work-life balance,
as well as comprehensive medical and dental insurance
plans which cover both the employees and their family
members.

Through system automation and process re-engineering,
the Corporation has maintained a lean and efficient
workforce, notwithstanding the increase in the scope of
purchases and the complexity of the products it offers.
The permanent establishment of the Corporation was 144

and the staff turnover rate was 6.61% in 2009.

Training and Development

The Corporation recognises the importance of on-going
trainings and has devoted considerable resources to
enhancing its employees’ professional knowledge and
skills continuously. In 2009, the Corporation arranged both
internal and external courses to help the employees
improve their managerial and technical skills. The in-house
training sessions covered a range of topics from credit
default swap and legal knowledge, to self-development
and Putonghua, while the external courses covered
various topics such as mortgage-related issues, credit
management, risk management, finance and accounting,
corporate governance, information technology and
management skills. In addition, all new staff members were
provided with an induction session which would give them
an overview of the Corporation’s operations as well as

their specific scope of work.
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Self-Development Workshop

Credit Rating Training

Health and Safety

As a caring employer, the Corporation is dedicated to
looking after both the physical and mental health of its
staff. An Employee Support Programme is in place to
provide confidential external counseling and consultation
services to the employees and their family members when
needed. A vaccination programme for prevention of
influenza and a health check programme at privileged

rates were also offered to the staff for participation.

The Corporation has further reviewed and strengthened
its contingency plans, such as a split-team arrangement,
to ensure a swift response to a possible outbreak of
influenza pandemic. The contingency plans aim to prevent
the spread of communicable diseases among the
employees and to minimise any unexpected or sudden
disruption to the business operations. Periodic drills are
organised to make sure the staff are conversant with the
activation of the back-up facilities, the contingency plans
and the communication arrangements in case of

emergency.



The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited

Employee Relations and Staff Activities

To promote a better work-life balance and foster a family-
friendly working place, the HKMC Staff Club, composed
of members from various departments, regularly organises
different staff activities to cultivate better relationships and
communication among the employees. The activities, such
as Bowling Fun Day, staff gatherings and sharing sessions
are well received by the employees and their family
members. The Corporation also participates in friendly
table tennis and soccer games with other organisations

for the enjoyment of staff and building team spirit.

To ensure effective communication within the Corporation,
the Staff Homepage of the Corporation’s intranet is
frequently updated to facilitate sharing of useful
information across different departments. There is also a
Staff Suggestion Scheme which encourages staff
members to make suggestions on how to improve the

work flow and the work place.

Bowling Fun Day

Care for the Community

Charity and Social Activities

The Corporation strongly encourages staff to support
charity and fund-raising activities. In 2009, the Corporation
staff made donation to the victims of a typhoon disaster
in Taiwan. Other charity donation campaigns during the
year included the Dress Special Day and the Walk for
Millions for the Community Chest, and a fund-raising event
for education projects in the Mainland China. Same as
the previous years, Blood Donation Day for the Hong Kong
Red Cross was also held in 2009.

Voluntary Service — Visiting the Elderly

Flag Day

Dress Special Day

Walk for Millions

Annual Report 2009
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In addition, the Corporation partnered with some social
service organisations to take part in a number of voluntary
services in 2009, including a Flag Day organised by the
Hong Kong AIDS Foundation, and visits to the elderly and
low-income families organised by the Salvation Army. The
Corporation staff members are keen to participate in
various voluntary services by devoting their time and effort
to showcase their concern for the needy in the society.

Among the active volunteers in the Corporation, Alex Luk,
Amy Wong and Cherry Lo would like to share their
experience and thoughts on their contributions to

voluntary services:

&My family joined a charity programme and an eleven-
year-old boy, Xiao Tao, from Henan came to stay at our
home during the Lunar New Year in 2009. Xiao Tao’s
parents died of AIDS when he was still a toddler. During
his stay, we not only provided him with accommodation
and new clothes, but also our care and concern, which |
think was the most important. Although Xiao Tao only
stayed with us for a short time and we couldn’t do much
to change the plight he was living in, | still hope our sincere
concern could give him some comfort and encourage him
to fight against the challenges. On the day when Xiao Tao
left, | encouraged him to study hard and asked him to
write to me. | hope all of us can help build a brighter future
for the children.”

Alex Luk

Information Technology Department
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&|n February 2009, nine months after the devastating
Sichuan earthquake on 12 May 2008, | joined a volunteer
team which aimed to provide medical services and
rehabilitation trainings to the earthquake survivors in
Sichuan. The team consisted of physiotherapists, nurses,
social workers and other professionals. | was responsible

for providing administrative support.

The area we visited abounded with people who had lost
their beloved families and properties, and many of them
became crippled during the tragedy. Most of them were
still living in temporary partition houses and tents during
the freezing winter. Despite the adversity, the victims did
not show any signs of succumbing. On the contrary, they
displayed a great degree of perseverance, resilience and
aspiration for a new life in their efforts to rebuild homes.
Those hopeful faces and grateful smiles deeply touched
my heart, reminding me how lucky | am. | wish | could

have chances to visit them again in the future.”

Amy Wong
Risk Management Department
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&Since 2003, | have been serving as a volunteer for the
Senior Citizen Home Safety Association and the Hong
Kong Red Cross First Aid Team. My target groups are the
elderly, the handicapped, children and people from broken
families. | find it very meaningful to help the people in need,
and am very happy that | have built a close bonding with
the other volunteers from all walks of life.

Most of the Hong Kong people are living in affluence, but
there are still many fighting against poverty, who need
the care, support and help from the society. Although |
am not as great as Mother Theresa, | often remind myself

of not missing any chance to help the others.”

Cherry Lo
Operations Department

Student Programmes

To help nurture talents for the future, the Corporation
provides a number of internship and placement
programmes for undergraduates so that they can have a
taste of the real business world and better prepare
themselves for their future career. The students who have
joined the progarmmes are all very pleased with the
valuable learning and working opportunities they have
been exposed to.

Annual Report 2009

Environmental Protection

The Corporation has continuously supported and
implemented various green measures to make the office
more environmentally-friendly. It has strived to raise the
staff awareness of waste reduction and energy
conservation. Employees are encouraged to adopt a
paperless working practice by using more electronic
communication means. They are also encouraged to
collect waste paper and used toner cartridges for
recycling, as well as to switch off their computers before
they leave the office every day. Since 2006, the
Corporation has undertaken new measures to better
control the office temperature in the interest of energy
efficiency. The Corporation welcomes its staff to make
suggestions for a greener office and encourages its
suppliers to use or offer more environmentally-friendly

products whenever possible.

2010 Outlook

While the economy is gradually recovering from the global
financial crisis, the prospect of a double dip recession
cannot be ruled out. The Corporation will continue to play
its critical role as a liquidity provider to promote banking
and financial stability in Hong Kong. It will also continue
to promote home ownership for Hong Kong families
through enhancement of its MIP to better serve the

homebuyers and the banking sector.

The Corporation will also focus on developing new
mortgage products in Hong Kong to complement
Government initiatives and meet the needs of society. It
will also keep on contributing to the development of debt
and securitisation markets through regular issuance and

product innovation.
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FINANCIAL
REVIEW

Given the economic stimulus and liquidity measures by
governments and central banks across the globe, the
global economy showed clear signs of improvement in
the second half of 2009. The HKSAR Government
implemented the strategies of “stabilising the financial
system, supporting enterprises and preserving
employment” in the shortest possible time and provided
impetus to the local economy and restored people’s
confidence. For 2009 as a whole, the economy registered
a year-on-year decline of 2.7% in real terms, as compared
to a growth of 2.4% in 2008. Underpinned by strong influx
of liquidity, the local economy showed a significant upturn
later in the year. By the end of 2009, Hang Seng Index
rebounded by 52% from the end of 2008 and the local
property prices rose nearly 25% from the trough hit in
December 2008 on investment demand, recouping all the
price correction during the financial crisis. Luxury
residential units recorded even larger gains and made
record prices since the peak in 1997. The positive wealth
effects from the booming asset markets lifted consumer
confidence, boosted local spending and improved
unemployment. Retail sales have seen a significant
rebound in recent months registering an increase of 12.8%
in the final quarter as compared to a decline of 3.4% in

Figure 1
Summary of Financial Performance

2009 2008

HK$ million HK$ million

Operating profit before impairment 1,111 670
Profit before tax 1,150 634
Profit attributable to shareholders 1,006 605
Return on shareholders’ equity 16.2% 10.5%
Return on assets 1.6% 1.1%
Cost-to-income ratio 12.4% 17.5%
Capital-to-assets ratio 9.5% 8.7%

Annual Report 2009

the first three quarters, reflecting a return of consumer
confidence. The unemployment rate steadily came down
for four consecutive months, registering 4.9% for the final
quarter of 2009.

Income Statement

Financial Performance

Riding on the strong rebound of the Hong Kong economy
and the property market’s rally amid the favourable interest
rate environment, the Corporation managed to achieve
good financial results in 2009. Profits attributable to
shareholders amounted to HK$1,006 million in 2009
(Figures 1 and 2), recording a year-on-year growth of
66.3%, which was mainly attributable to the full-year effect
of the significant loan purchases made in response to
banks’ liquidity needs during the global financial crisis,
the favourable Prime-HIBOR spread and excellent loan
quality.

Operating profit before impairment increased by HK$441
million, or 65.8%, to HK$1,111 million, supported by the
key drivers, net interest income that grew 46.2% and other
income which rebounded by 127.5%.

Figure 2
Profit Attributable to Shareholders

HK$ million
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The return on shareholders’ equity rose to 16.2% (2008:
10.5%), while the return on assets climbed to 1.6% (2008:
1.1%). Although the increased resources to enhance risk
management lifted the operating expenses by 11.3%, the
significant rise in operating income by 56.3% improved
the cost-to-income ratio to 12.4% (2008: 17.5%). The
capital-to-assets ratio remained robust at 9.5% (2008:
8.7%), well above the guideline of a minimum at 5%

stipulated by the Financial Secretary.

Figure 3
Net Interest Income

2009 2008

HK$’000 HK$’000

Interest income 1,338,301 1,825,214

Interest expense (300,594) (1,115,364)

Net interest income 1,037,707 709,850

Average interest-earning assets 60,017,628 53,515,092

Net interest margin 1.7% 1.3%
Net interest spread on

interest-bearing liabilities 1.7% 1.1%

T Netinterest spread on interest-bearing liabilities = Return on interest-earning assets
— Funding cost on interest-bearing liabilities

Average loan portfolio rose by HK$10.5 billion as
compared to 2008, following the significant mortgage
purchases in late 2008 to provide banking liquidity, which
was offset partially by the reduction in cash and available-
for-sale investments of HK$4.2 billion and thus resulted
in a net increase of HK$6.5 billion average interest earning
assets in 2009. This improved the net interest income for
the year by 46.2% from HK$710 million to HK$1,038
million (Figure 3). The net interest spread on interest-
bearing liabilities rose to 1.7%, compared to 1.1% for
2008, mainly reflecting the favourable Prime-HIBOR
spread. Taking into account the shareholders’ equity, the
net interest margin improved from 1.3% to 1.7%.
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Other Income
Other income reported a sharp increase of 127.5% to
HK$232 million in 2009 (2008: HK$102 million). The key
item was the mortgage insurance premium earned from
the MIP (Figure 4).

Figure 4
Major Sources of Other Income

HK$ million
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The Corporation operates the MIP business on a risk-
sharing basis with approved reinsurers. Whereas the new
residential mortgage loans drawn down in the market
increased from HK$184.8 billion in 2008 to HK$199.3
billion in 2009, the Corporation’s new business
underwritten under MIP rose from HK$20.4 billion to
HK$36 billion due to the significant improvement in usage
rate (in terms of drawdown loan amount against total
market mortgage drawdown) from 11% to 18%. The risk-
in-force borne by the Corporation grew by 102.9% to
HK$11.6 billion in 2009. As a result, the net premiums
earned before claims incurred for the year increased by
26.7% from HK$135 million to HK$171 million. After
reserving the additional provisions for outstanding claims
of HK$22 million, the net premiums earned after provisions
increased by 60.2% from HK$93 million to HK$149 million.
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Change in fair value of financial instruments recorded a
gain of HK$13 million (2008: HK$43 million fair value loss)
amid a stable interest rate environment in 2009. Against
2008, the swing in mark-to-market value represented a
drop in hedging costs and mark-to-market losses from
asset-liability management in 2009.

Dividend income of HK$42 million from listed investment
securities equivalent to a dividend yield of about 5% was
received in 2009 (2008: HK$43 million), arising from the
investments in bond fund and real estate investment trust.

Early prepayment fees were HK$20 million, 23.1% lower
than that in 2008 (2008: HK$26 million), reflecting the
decrease in mortgage refinancing activities in 2009.

An exchange gain of HK$6 million was recorded as
compared to a loss of HK$40 million in 2008, primarily
due to the revaluation on US dollar net exposures.

Operating Expenses

The Corporation continued to maintain stringent cost
controls and improved operating efficiency. Operating
expenses recorded an increase of 11.3% to HK$158
million as compared to 2008, but HK$17 million lower
than that of the approved budget. Staff costs rose by
11.3% to HK$108 million, mainly for the establishment of
the Risk function and further enhancement of credit risk
management capabilities, accounting for 68.6% of the
total operating expenses (2008: HK$97 million and
68.5%). Premises rental and the related costs increased
slightly by HK$1 million to HK$14 million, mainly
attributable to the increase in office area. Depreciation
charges on assets increased by 22.2% to HK$11 million
(2008: HK$9 million) (Figure 5).
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Figure 5
Operating Expenses
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Allowance for Loan Impairment

Asset quality remained strong, with the delinquency ratio
stayed at 0.04% in 2009, the same level as 2008.
Collective assessment for loan impairment of HK$37
million was written back in 2009 (Figure 6) in light of the
general rebound of the property market and a reduction
of loan portfolio by HK$7 billion to HK$43.8 billion.

Figure 6
(Write-back) / Provisions of Loan Impairment Allowances

HK$ million
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In respect of the overseas mortgage loan portfolio, the
asset quality remained healthy as a result of stringent
purchasing criteria and prudent risk mitigation. No
collective assessment for loan impairment was needed
for 2009 (2008: nil).
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Total allowance for loan impairment accounted for 0.03%
of the outstanding principal balance (HK$43.8 billion) of
the loan portfolio as at end-2009, generally similar to the
local market level (Figure 7).

Figure 7
Ratios

2009 2008

Delinquency ratio for
loan portfolio overdue

for more than 90 days 0.04% 0.04%

Total allowance for loan
impairment as a
percentage of the gross

loan portfolio 0.03% 0.10%

Financial Position Sheet

Total assets fell by HK$5.8 billion to HK$59.8 billion (2008:
HK$65.6 billion) (Figure 8), mainly due to the reduction of
loan portfolio by HK$7 billion to HK$43.8 billion. Surplus
cash from the mortgage receipts was invested in short-
term investment securities to bridge the redemption of
matured debt securities issued.

Figure 8
Asset Deployment
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Loan Portfolio

During the year, the Corporation made a purchase of
HK$8.8 billion loan assets (2008: HK$26 billion), including
HK$5.7 billion of mortgage assets in Hong Kong and

HK$3.1 billion of residential mortgage portfolio in Korea.

At the end of 2009, the outstanding balance of local
residential mortgage portfolio and securitised portfolio
stood at HK$22 billion and HK$1.3 billion respectively.
The outstanding balance of Korean residential mortgages
was HK$15.4 billion. The commercial mortgage portfolio,

backed by local commercial buildings, was HK$4 billion.

The average prepayment rate of the loan portfolio
(including securitised mortgages) increased from 13.8%
in 2008 to 16.3% for 2009. Mainly due to the normal run-
off and competitive refinancing activities in the local
mortgage market, the loan portfolio recorded a net
reduction by HK$7 billion to HK$43.8 billion (Figure 9).

A significant improvement in the property market price
saw loan impairment provisions fall by HK$37 million to
HK$14 million. During the year, the loans written off
amounted to HK$3 million (2008: HK$4 million), which
were offset by the recovery of HK$3 million of loans
previously written off (2008: HK$5 million).

Figure 9
Loan Portfolio, Net

2009 2008
HK$°000 HK$°000

Mortgage portfolio

Residential

— Hong Kong 21,980,141 27,624,099
— Overseas 15,441,285 15,905,032
Commercial 4,000,000 4,000,000
Securitised portfolio 1,314,685 1,878,761
Non-mortgage portfolio 1,066,616 1,402,756
43,802,727 50,810,648

Allowance for loan
impairment (14,011) (50,536)
Loan portfolio, net 43,788,716 50,760,112
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Investment Securities

The Corporation adopts a prudent and low-risk approach
in managing its surplus funds and investment activities in
accordance with the approved investment guidelines. The
Corporation’s investment portfolio is mainly made up of
bank deposits, short-term commercial paper, certificates
of deposit, bonds, yield-based government bond funds
and real estate investment trust. The liquid investment
portfolio serves as a buffer to support the Corporation’s
business operations, enabling it to respond quickly and
smoothly to unforeseen liquidity requirements. As at 31
December 2009, the total investment portfolio stood at
HK$9.4 billion which included HK$3.6 billion of available-
for-sale investments and HK$5.8 billion of held-to-maturity
investments. The increase in investment portfolio from
HK$7.7 billion in 2008 was due to the active pre-funding
activities in 2009, in contrast with the contraction in 2008
to meet funding needs following the outbreak of financial
crisis. With the prudent investment guidelines and asset
and liability management, the Corporation did not directly
or indirectly hold any sub-prime investment, special
investment vehicles, collateralised debt obligations or debt
securities issued by the failed financial institutions in its
portfolios. There were no impairment losses or provisions
against the investment portfolio in 2009 (2008: nil).

Debt Securities Issued

The Corporation issued a total of HK$22.7 billion of debts
in 2009, comprising HK$15.5 billion debts under the DIP
and HK$7.2 billion under the MTN. All non-Hong Kong
dollar debts issued under MTN were swapped into Hong
Kong dollar or US dollar liabilities. As at 31 December
2009, the total outstanding balance of debts issued rose
slightly by 4% or HK$1.7 billion to HK$44.5 billion as
compared with 2008. The rise reflected the net increase
after redemption of HK$19.6 billion debts matured in 2009
and the change in fair value of debt securities issued.
Without taking into account the expected full and partial
prepayments, the average life of the loan portfolio at the
end of 2009 was nine years on a contractual basis while
86.7% of the Corporation’s outstanding debts would
mature within five years, given that the Corporation has

issued debts with tenors from one month to 15 years.

Annual Report 2009

Mortgage-Backed Securities Issued

During the year, the Corporation did not issue any MBS.
As at 31 December 2009, the total outstanding balance
of the MBS issued dropped by 37.5% or HK$1.2 billion
to HK$2 billion from 2008, reflecting the redemption of
MBS in 2009.

Advance from the Exchange Fund

The Corporation has a HK$30 billion Revolving Credit
Facility from the Exchange Fund as back-up liquidity.
During the year, the Corporation repaid all outstanding
advances (HK$8 billion from 2008) under the facility.

Overseas Businesses

The Corporation acquired HK$3.1 billion of Korean
mortgage portfolio in 2009, and the outstanding balance
stood at HK$15.4 billion by year end.

The Corporation has joint ventures in Malaysia (50%
owned) and in Shenzhen, China, (90% owned) with an
investment of HK$121 million and HK$102 million
respectively, together representing 0.4% of the
Corporation’s total assets. The jont venture in Malaysia
engages in mortgage guarantee business and recorded
a share of profit of HK$1.9 million in 2009 as compared
to a loss of HK$8,000 in 2008. The joint venture in
Shenzhen started its bridging mortgage guarantee
business in late 2009 and incurred a loss of HK$4.3
million mainly due to the initial set-up cost. The
aggregate profit contribution from the overseas
businesses amounted to HK$126 million (2008: HK$52
million), or 11% of the Corporation’s profit before tax in
2009.

Cash Flow Management

In 2009, the Corporation generated HK$1.2 billion
(HK$0.6 billion in 2008) of cash flows from operating
activities before changes in operating assets and liabilities,
derived mainly from net interest income received.
Repayment on mortgage portfolio was used to finance
debt securities redemption and invest in short-term
available-for-sale investment portfolio. Net increase in cash
amounted to HK$1.1 billion in 2009, which compared
favourably to HK$338 million in 2008.
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Capital Management

The Financial Secretary has approved the following capital
adequacy framework to account for different levels of risk

Figure 10

Product

embedded in the financial products under the MPP, the
two MBS Programmes, non-residential mortgage loans,
non-mortgage loans and the MIP (Figure 10).

Minimum Capital-to-Assets Ratio
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The capital base, defined as shareholders’ equity
excluding hedging reserve plus the allowance for loan
impairment under collective assessment, grew by 12.5%
from HK$5.6 billion in 2008 to HK$6.3 billion in 2009 amid
the earnings growth. At the end of 2009, the aggregate
amount of the Corporation’s on-balance sheet assets and
off-balance sheet exposure was HK$66.2 billion, which
mainly consisted of HK$35.2 billion of risk-weighted
mortgage loans, HK$1.7 billion of hire purchase assets,
HK$9.4 billion of investment securities, HK$4.1 billion of
cash and bank balances, HK$11.6 billion of risk-weighted
mortgage insurance exposure, HK$2.8 billion of
replacement costs and potential future credit exposures
of derivative contracts, HK$0.3 billion of risk-weighted
guarantee exposure under the MBS programmes and
HK$1.1 billion of other assets. The CAR stood at a healthy
level of 9.5%, well above the minimum level of 5%
stipulated by the Financial Secretary (2008: 8.7%).

Dividend

At the Annual General Meeting held on 20 April 2010
Shareholders, having considered the exceptional financial
performance of the Corporation in 2009, approved a final
dividend of HK$0.25 (2008: HK$0.125) per share, totalling
HK$500 million (2008: HK$250 million), representing
49.7% of the profit after tax.

Annual Report 2009
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting their report together with the
audited financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (for the
purpose of this report, including the special purpose entities used for issuing
mortgage-backed securities) (together the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2009.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Company are:

(1) to purchase portfolios of mortgages or loans secured on properties or
other collateral situated in Hong Kong or elsewhere, to acquire rights,
interest and benefits under hire purchase or leasing arrangements made
in respect of motor vehicles and other assets, or other debentures,
receivables, financial assets and choses in action of all kinds from their
originators, issuers, owners or vendors;

S

to acquire, by purchase or otherwise, any assets from government bodies
and agencies and related organisations, statutory bodies and public
bodies and to hold, sell, transfer, dispose of and deal in any such assets
so purchased or acquired;

&

to securitise mortgage portfolios through special purpose entities by
way of issuing mortgage-backed securities to investors; and

=

to provide mortgage insurance cover to Authorized Institutions in respect
of mortgage loans originated by such Authorized Institutions and secured
by residential properties.

The corporate information and principal activities of the subsidiaries, jointly
controlled entity of the Company and special purpose entities used for issuing
mortgage-backed securities are shown in Notes 22, 23 and 34 respectively
to the financial statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2009 are set out
in the consolidated income statement on page 114 together with particulars
of the proposed dividend.
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Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 118.

Fixed Assets

Details of the movements in fixed assets of the Group and of the Company
during the year are set out in Note 24 to the financial statements.

Debt Securities Issued

The Company issued notes to banks and institutional investors under its
HK$40 Billion Debt Issuance Programme and US$3 billion Medium Term
Note Programme during the year ended 31 December 2009, totalling
HK$22.7 billion for the purposes of providing general working capital and
refinancing, at the total consideration of HK$22.1 billion. The Company did
not issue any debt securities under its Retail Bond Issuance Programme
during the year ended 31 December 2009. A summary of the debt securities
issuance and redemption activities is set out in Note 29 to the financial
statements.

Mortgage-backed Securities Issued

The special purpose entities did not issue any mortgage-backed securities
under the Guaranteed Mortgage-backed Pass-through Securitisation
Programme or the US$3 Billion Bauhinia Mortgage-backed Securitisation
Programme in 2009. A summary of the mortgage-backed securities
redemption activities is set out in Note 30.

Directors

The Directors of the Company who served during the year were as follows:

The Honourable John TSANG Chun Wah, JP

Chairman and Executive Director

Mr. Norman CHAN Tak Lam, SBS, JP
Deputy Chairman and Executive Director

(appointed on 1 October 2009)

Mr. Joseph YAM Chi Kwong, GBS, JP
Deputy Chairman and Executive Director

(retired on 1 October 2009)

Mr. Peter PANG Sing Tong, JP

Executive Director

Mr. Eddie YUE Wai Man, JP

Executive Director

The Honourable Ronald Joseph ARCULLI, CVO, GBS, OBE, JP
Director (retired on 16 April 2009)
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Professor the Honourable K C CHAN, SBS, JP

Director

The Honourable CHAN Kam Lam, SBS, JP
Director (retired on 16 April 2009)

The Honourable CHAN Kin Por, JP

Director

The Honourable Tanya CHAN
Director (appointed on 16 April 2009)

Ms. Louisa CHEANG
Director (appointed on 16 April 2009)

The Honourable Ms. Eva CHENG, JP
Director

Professor the Honourable Anthony CHEUNG Bing Leung, GBS, BBS, JP

Director

Mr. Eddy FONG Ching, GBS, JP

Director

Mr. Lester Garson HUANG, JP
Director (appointed on 16 April 2009)

Mr. David LAM Yim Nam
Director (retired on 16 April 2009)

The Honourable Ms. Starry LEE Wai King
Director (appointed on 16 April 2009)

The Honourable Andrew LEUNG Kwan Yuen, SBS, JP

Director

Dr. the Honourable David LI Kwok Po, GBM, GBS, LLD (Cantab), JP

Director

Mr. Geoffrey Jay MANSFIELD

Director

The Honourable Abraham SHEK Lai Him, SBS, JP

Director

The Honourable SIN Chung Kai, SBS, JP
Director (retired on 16 April 2009)

Mr. Eddie TAN Cheng Soo

Director

In accordance with Article 109 of the Company’s Articles of Association, all
those Directors who are not Executive Directors shall retire but shall be
eligible for re-election at the next annual general meeting.
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Directors’ Interests in Transactions and Contracts

Note 33 to the financial statements of the Company sets out details of
material related party transactions entered into by the Company during the
year. The interests disclosed in Note 33 also constitute material interests of
Directors in relation to contracts which were significant to the Company or
its subsidiaries. Save as disclosed in Note 33, there was no contract of
significance, to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director could be deemed to have a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, which subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

At no time during the year was the Company a party to any arrangement to
enable any of its Directors or members of its Management to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities of, the Company
or any body corporate.

Additional Disclosures in Compliance with the

Provisions of the Insurance Companies Ordinance
(“ICO”)

During the year, the Controllers of the Company as defined in the ICO were
the Hon. John Tsang and Mr. James H. Lau Jr. (Chief Executive Officer of
the Company). Mr. Lau did not have any interests in the transactions or the
contracts which the Company had entered into during the year ended 31
December 2009.

During the year, the Company did not carry on insurance business relating
to liabilities or risks in respect of which persons were required by any
Ordinance to be insured.

The Company had entered into reinsurance arrangements with the following
approved reinsurers: Asia Insurance Company, Limited, Hang Seng General
Insurance (Hong Kong) Company Limited, HSBC Insurance (Asia) Limited,
QBE Mortgage Insurance (Asia) Limited (formerly known as PMI Mortgage
Insurance (Asia) Limited) and AlG United Guaranty Insurance (Asia) Limited.
During the year, the Company operated its mortgage insurance business
on a risk-sharing basis. Except for those mortgage insurance covers in
respect of which no reinsurance arrangement has been made, the Company
ceded 50% of the risk exposure under its mortgage insurance to each
approved reinsurer, with the remaining 50% risk exposure being retained by
the Company.
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12 Bl Auditors

FEmAR D MERRMKESFAIESMZEZ © The accounts have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire
HAEHER  EEERILBEZEET - and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

AEERR® On behalf of the Board of Directors

BRE John C Tsang

FE Chairman

aBE Hong Kong,

—ZE-EFMOA=+H 20 April 2010.
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To the shareholders of The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Report on the financial statements

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of The Hong Kong
Mortgage Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) set out on pages 114 to 207, which comprise the consolidated
and Company statement of financial position as at 31 December 2009, and
the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing
and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and
fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2009 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong,
20 April 2010.
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

HE-_TThE+-_A=+—HLLFE
for the year ended 31 December 2009

2009 2008
B 5E FHExT T
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
FEHA Interest income 6 1,338,301 1,825,214
FBEZH Interest expense 7 (300,594) (1,115,364)
EREWA Net interest income 1,037,707 709,850
Hob U A Other income 8 231,588 102,100
ey A Operating income 1,269,295 811,950
L Operating expenses 9 (157,836) (141,749)
RETRE AT HY S 2085 T Operating profit before impairment 1,111,459 670,201
BRRE R, (B Write-back of loan impairment allowances
/(loan impairment charge) 12 36,837 (36,225)
R A Operating profit 1,148,296 633,976
EIEAE AR F, (Ei8) Share of profit/(loss) of a joint venture 23 1,922 (8)
FRBE Al g A Profit before taxation 1,150,218 633,968
I8 Taxation 13(a) (144,186) (28,974)
254 B R Profit for the year 1,006,032 604,994
EAREF (BE) : Profit/(loss) attributable to:
ZNYNGT Equity holders of the Company 1,006,469 604,994
VR P2 I FE IR R Non-controlling interest (437) =
1,006,032 604,994
BIRERE Proposed dividend 16 500,000 250,000

F121Z207 EFTH M ALRAMIEHREN—3F  The notes on pages 121 to 207 are an integral part of these consolidated

N

e financial statements.
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Aok o 2 B R
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HE-_ZTNF+-_A=+—HBLLFE
for the year ended 31 December 2009

2009 2008
B 5% FERT FHET
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
AR & A Profit for the year 1,006,032 604,994
Hih 2 mE & ¢ Other comprehensive income:
AHEEES Available-for-sale securities:
- REIRULES  (F518)F58 - unrealised net gains/(losses) 32 227,272 (147,960)
- BRI F R — net reclassification adjustments for
BN EARFE realised net gains 32 (3,522) (24,329)

- HIA — tax effect 32 (37,311) 29,907

— 3y - amortization 32 2,381 338
WEMEH Cash flow hedges:

- EEEERERN — net gains/(losses) arising on hedges

Hhizs, (B51R) FH recognized directly in equity 32 25,126 (86,497)

- T8 — tax effect 32 (4,145) 14,338
HME G INE TSR E R Exchange differences on translation of

ME H = RA foreign operations

- M@ A Al — subsidiary 157 =

-&&nd — joint venture 32 1,279 (8,557)
NS H M2 Other comprehensive income for the year,

EHERTIE net of tax 211,237 (222,760)
AEEZHEHKRZAE Total comprehensive income for the year 1,217,269 382,234
EiE2mEmRE4A5E Total comprehensive income attributable to:

ViN/NETY) 358 Equity holders of the Company 1,217,707 382,234

V8 12 il e R R Non-controlling interest (438) =

1,217,269 = 382,234

F121Z207 BEFTE T AR A MIEM®MERA —H6  The notes on pages 121 to 207 are an integral part of these consolidated

7 e financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RZTZERF+_A=+—8H
as at 31 December 2009

2009 2008
B 5 FET T T
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
BE ASSETS
ReRBEHES Cash and short-term funds 17 4,067,798 3,093,258
JiE W F) B K B FX Interest and remittance receivables 18 710,530 1,334,485
TESMT A Derivative financial instruments 19 1,317,375 2,237,526
EFAEFE Loan portfolio, net 20 43,788,716 50,760,112
FEERE Investment securities:
- A HE — available-for-sale 21(a) 3,613,064 2,052,552
-FEEIH — held-to-maturity 21(b) 5,817,998 = 5,614,666
EERNEIRE Investment in a joint venture 23 115,190 113,532
Ehab=yS Fixed assets 24 21,257 14,302
JENFIE HENEMEE  Prepayments, deposits and other assets 25 32,595 30,555
RIETIH & B Deferred tax assets 13(b) - 28,904
BREEE Reinsurance assets 27 266,101 348,442
EEHE Total assets 59,750,624 65,628,334
a& LIABILITIES
JE A FILE Interest payable 445,787 469,965
FEERIE - BRI R Accounts payable, accrued expenses and
Hia i other liabilities 26 4,274,177 4,183,693
PTESmMIT A Derivative financial instruments 19 158,246 214,994
FE T 18 Tax payable 13(b) 138,329 47,866
REBIAAE Deferred tax liabilities 13(b) 15,209 -
=R Insurance liabilities 27 1,462,318 908,740
SNEF S BT Advance from Exchange Fund 28 - 8,000,000
BEETEBES Debt securities issued 29 44,495,073 42,814,988
BRITIRIBE Mortgage-backed securities issued 30 2,020,394 = 3,225,624
EEHE Total liabilities 53,009,533 = 59,865,870
EE EQUITY
BEmEE ABGERAR Capital and reserves attributable to
N the equity holders:
A& AN Share capital 31 2,000,000 2,000,000
1R V4 A Retained profits 3,925,694 @ 3,485,513
[\ B2 15 1 Contingency reserve 32 189,833 123,545
NTERE Fair value reserve 32 167,449 (21,371)
b E Hedging reserve 32 (45,685) (66,666)
bE 5 Translation reserve 32 (7,120) (8,557)
B IZ S Proposed dividend 16 500,000 250,000
6,730,171 = 5,762,464
REZEHIER R ER Non-controlling interest in equity 10,920 =
R Total equity 6,741,091 5,762,464
EERAEAE Total equity & liabilities 59,750,624 65,628,334

FEBEA-T—THENA=+EREREE
F77 -

=% NormanT.L.Chan
e Deputy Chairman

$£121 2207 B FTH M Air A BIETHRER N — 36
5’7\ o
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Approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 20 April 2010.

¥ HB%E Pang Sing Tong, Peter
#77TEFE Executive Director

The notes on pages 121 to 207 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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R RN
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RZZEZhF+=—A=+—H
as at 31 December 2009

2009 2008
hg=2 FET FAET
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BE ASSETS
BekEHEe Cash and short-term funds 17 3,924,752 = 3,054,735
JRE LRI 2, B2 B SR Interest and remittance receivables 18 698,809 1,322,591
PTEeRmIT A Derivative financial instruments 19 1,273,102 2,159,479
BRABEEFE Loan portfolio, net 20 40,817,163 46,678,285
BHIEE Investment securities:
- A HE — available-for-sale 21(a) 3,613,064 2,052,552
- e 23 H — held-to-maturity 21(b) 5,817,998 = 5,614,666
B A ARE Investment in subsidiaries 22 1,733,580 2,210,981
HERNEIRE Investment in a joint venture 23 120,554 122,097
Bl €& E Fixed assets 24 19,000 14,302
FENFIE - e REMEE  Prepayments, deposits and other assets 25 36,681 38,118
RIEFIIE & B Deferred tax assets 13(b) - 28,889
BREEE Reinsurance assets 27 266,101 348,442
EEHE Total assets 58,320,804 63,645,137
=i LIABILITIES
JE 1 F) 2. Interest payable 442,217 462,518
B ERIE - EAX Accounts payable, accrued expenses and
REAMEE other liabilities 26 4,910,949 4,979,510
PTEsmIT A Derivative financial instruments 19 158,246 214,994
AT 38 Tax payable 13(b) 131,850 47,866
RIEBIAE G Deferred tax liabilities 13(b) 15,213 -
RRBE Insurance liabilities 27 1,462,318 908,740
HINEE B & FA 3K Advance from Exchange Fund 28 - 8,000,000
BETERES Debt securities issued 29 44,495,073 = 43,260,323
=Rig k] Total liabilities 51,615,866 57,873,951
e EQUITY
s A ARG Capital and reserves attributable to
Nt the equity holders:
% A< Share capital 31 2,000,000 2,000,000
1R % Retained profits 3,893,341 3,485,678
[ B2 155 1 Contingency reserve 32 189,833 123,545
N ERE Fair value reserve 32 167,449 (21,371)
R Hedging reserve 32 (45,685) (66,666)
R % B Proposed dividend 16 500,000 250,000
SR Total equity 6,704,938 5,771,186
EEREERE Total equity & liabilities 58,320,804 63,645,137

FEEREN _Z—ZFNMA _+HHULERE®E  Approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 20 April 2010.
Flg7 -

BR=&F NormanT. L. Chan ZEE Pang Sing Tong, Peter
Bl F & Deputy Chairman #7TEZE Executive Director

F121 2207 AT AR AMEMRERN—E  The notes on pages 121 to 207 are an integral part of these consolidated
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73 ° financial statements.
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Aok 1 W 2 58 W o
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HE-_ZTNF+-_A=+—HItFE
for the year ended 31 December 2009

AR RBIRREN

Attributable to equity holders of

the Company

g
y MR R .
BA RBEM  HMEE Non- &5t
Share  Retained Other controlling
capital profits * reserves interest Total
(i FHT FHT FHEL FHET FHET
Notes  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
R-ZZBZENFE—F—H#%&#H Balance as at 1 January 2008 2,000,000 3,401,567 228,663 - 5,630,230
ARE 4 Al Profit for the year - 604,994 - - 604,994
AHHEESHRTE Net fair value losses of available-for-sale
BiEFE  EHBRHE securities, net of tax 32 = - (142,044) - (142,044)
Reme R EEFE - Net losses arising from cash flow
BMRTE hedges, net of tax 32 - - (72,159 - (72,159
REGINERFEE Exchange differences on translation
HEE & Z 8 of foreign operations
-5 NA — joint venture 32 - - (8,557) - (8,557)
REE 2K AE Total comprehensive income for the year - 604,994  (222,760) - 382,234
A R B i 7 A o 2 Transfer of 50% of net risk premium
[RBRAR E F R HI50% earned from retained profits to
ZEREE contingency reserve 32 - (26,330) 26,330 - -
EOEBEESREEM  Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits 32 - 5,282 (5,282) - -
BENZZTLFRE Dividend paid related to 2007 - (250,000) - - (250,000)
R-ZBENF Balance as at
TZA=t+—H#&&# 31 December 2008 2,000,000 3,735,513 26,951 - 5,762,464
AEE A, (R Profit/(loss) for the year ~ 1,006,469 - (437) 1,006,032
AHHEESHAFE Net fair value gains of available-for-sale
W5 - EMKREIE securities, net of tax 32 - - 188,820 - 188,820
RemE e a5 5E Net gains arising from cash flow
EMREIE hedges, net of tax 32 = = 20,981 = 20,981
BREBINEBRELE Exchange differences on translation
B BE 5 =R of foreign operations
- M B A A — subsidiary 32 = = 158 () 157
-AE QA - joint venture 32 - - 1,279 - 1,279
AEFZEEWHETE Total comprehensive income for the year - 1,006,469 211,238 (438) 1,217,269
RIETIRER R E Capital injection by non-controlling
interest - - - 11358 11,358
B R B A A 2 o Transfer of 50% of net risk premium
[RBRAR & FEEHI50% earned from retained profits to
ZEREE contingency reserve 32 - (76,313) 76,313 - -
EOEBEESREEM  Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits 32 - 10,025 (10,025) - -
BENZZZN\EFRE Dividend paid related to 2008 - (250,000) - - (250,000)
R-ZEBNE Balance as at
+-A=+—R#&& 31 December 2009 2,000,000 4,425,694 304,477 10,920 6,741,091
ORI EEAFF A=+ B BREREEMNE * As at 31 December 2009, HK$500 million (2008: HK$250 million) was
£/ # 500,000,000 L (ZTEENEF earmarked as proposed final dividend from retained earnings.

250,000,000/ 7t) fE A # R R HAARE -

F121Z207 EFTH M ALRAMIEHREN—3F  The notes on pages 121 to 207 are an integral part of these consolidated
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A Bl R R
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HE-_ZTNF+-_A=+—HBLLFE
for the year ended 31 December 2009

2009 2008
B 5 FEx FHEIT
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
REEKFBRERE Cash flows from operating activities
45 & i A Operating profit 1,148,296 633,976
LA TS EEL A Adjustment for:
FE WA Interest income (1,334,981)  (1,750,116)
FEX H Interest expense 254,642 1,071,035
&% 2 A Dividend income (42,224) (42,867)
e Depreciation 10,890 8,936
BEITEGE ST EEE Amortisation of discount on debt securities
issued 45,952 44,329
BIRE (B1#) #iE (Write-back of loan impairment allowances)/
loan impairment charge (36,837) 36,225
HIBR Uk B B 5K 18 H s Loan portfolio written off
WERHESE net of recoveries 634 716
B PTIR B B Unwind of discount on impairment (322) (335)
A EBFEEREEEEH Amortisation of unrealised loss on
3 75 R B R B3R B 1R 8 available-for-sale securities transferred
to held-to-maturity securities 2,381 338
B RETEEH Amortisation of discount on investment
securities (5,701) (75,4306)
HEAHHEZEASUZEFERE  Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale
securities (5,277) (26,026)
EMTAATEES Change in fair value of financial instruments 35,534 50,993
RIBER @ ME R BRE Change in translation of financial assets
CREEZE under cash flow hedge 25,126 (94,542)
[EAERPSS Interest received 1,361,663 1,776,266
EERRESY Interest paid (278,820) (1,073,063
R REEERBEEY Cash flows from operating activities before
MELEBAFTREME changes in operating assets and liabilities 1,180,956 560,429
R={EA BRI EHER  Decrease/(increase) in time deposits with
A (g ) more than three month’s maturity 88,971 (88,386)
JE s BE FOm A (38 A0) Decrease/(increase) in remittance receivables 597,273 (478,528)
FERIE - Ee Decrease in prepayments, deposits and other
Ko HoAth & R assets 630 11,827
B EERL (5 m) Decrease/(increase) in loan portfolio 7,007,921 (16,336,427)
EERE - BN Increase in accounts payable, accrued
Ko Ho A & R IA S 0 expenses and other liabilities 90,484 32,187
Rz & B F RGN Increase in insurance liabilities, net 635,919 265,295
HNHE TR H = 28 Exchange differences (2,848) 29,515
KRS (FTA) Re Cash generated from/(used in) operation 9,599,306 (16,004,088)
B EBFEH Hong Kong profits tax paid (51,066) (15,584)
LEEKHME, (FTA)E$  Net cash generated from/(used in) operating
HER activities 9,548,240 (16,019,672
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HE-_TThE+-_A=+—HLLFE
for the year ended 31 December 2009

2009 2008
B 5% FTER FHET
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
RETHMEBEESRE Cash flows from investing activities
BEETEEE Purchase of fixed assets 24 (17,845) (7,389)
BEAHEERS Purchase of available-for-sale securities 21(a) (3,134,672) (17,311,387)
BERERIHES Purchase of held-to-maturity securities 21(b) (2,923,038)  (3,036,106)
HESER A HEEFS Proceeds from sale or redemption of
FriS#18 available-for-sale securities 1,813,456 18,565,927
EOHAEERHBAEATSHAIE  Proceeds from redemption of
held-to-maturity securities 21(b) 2,731,226 3,518,682
SERNEIRE Investment in joint venture - (122,097)
JEU S & A R FRIB R A Decrease in amount due from a joint venture 1,543 =
BERAHEEFELFRE Dividend received from available-for-sale
securities 39,554 41,513
EERE () /834  Net cash (used in)/generated from investing
FEE activities (1,489,776) 1,649,143
BMEAMBEERA GRil) FEE Net cash inflows/(outflows) before
financing 8,058,464 (14,370,529)
METBMEESRE Cash flows from financing activities
HNEE B & FAFKFT1S 5K IE Proceeds from advance from Exchange
Fund 57,000,000 8,000,000
EEINEESIAR Repayment from advance from Exchange
Fund (65,000,000) -
BITEBESFERIE Proceeds from issue of debt securities 29 22,060,740 = 24,377,642
BROETERES Redemption of debt securities issued 29 (19,645,595) ' (16,362,840)
EBITIRBERFER Repayment of mortgage-backed securities
issued 30 (1,171,456) (1,055,906)
RIS R EE Capital injection by non-controlling interest 11,358 =
2T B Dividend paid 16 (250,000) (250,000)
BB ES (PTA) /PT84  Net cash (used in)/generated from financing
ikl activities (6,994,953) 14,708,896
REREERLEEEMFLE Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 1,063,511 338,367
FYRERERRESER Beginning cash and cash equivalents 2,764,608 2,426,241
FRESRERBEELIER Ending cash and cash equivalents 17 3,828,119 2,764,608

FANE207 EFH ARG BB IRERA —3F

The notes on pages 121 to 207 are an integral part of these consolidated
e financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. AmEdLE

EERIBEFBERAR (AR REMBA
A (R (AR B ) iR MR IIZR A E
AEIMAE ((EEEHMAE]) BMRNEE
MEHEER ([BAMHREER] (BEFRE
EANERN BB BREEN ([BEPBRSE
A - BAGEN(EBSTEA]) k2
)  BRARNEFRA - URBBABED
MR ERE

A EMBRERVIRELRANEPIRE - X2
HRARHERSRE - WATEIIENERE
EReREE(BETEERIA) NEMED

BRATTEORE SN - B FRA M HRRE
AHNEIREABERAE T EE AT 2|
BFEERMERANER K -

RENT BB BRELERNNMEHRRE AR
RETEXRGFE  MEEEERASES
SRR ABITIEL HIE - BEERS HE K
AN - RBR N HEGRE P B®RE
BEZNHRIBC AWM FAWE -

1. Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of The Hong Kong Mortgage
Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs” is a collective term which includes all
applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”),
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of available-for-
sale investment securities, financial assets and financial liabilities (including
derivative financial instruments) carried at fair value.

The principal accounting policies and methods of computation used in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements are consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. FEEFHHEUR 2.

Significant accounting policies

122

2.1 ERANA U I A ) 2.1 Adoption of HKFRSs
(a) P _BEBNIAE—H -HED#®A (a) Standards,amendments and interpretations effective on or after
O EN - BT Rk R 1 January 2009
BRARUTAE
ZERBZHBEE
b33 Applicable for BEALEEMEREA
Standard/ AES financial years Relevant to
Interpretation Content beginning on/after the Group
EBMBRELE2R MRIE(ERT — a5 8 IR KT A —ZEZNF-R—H &
HKFRS 2 Share-based payments — 1 January 2009 No
Vesting Conditions and Cancellations
ERMBRELNETR BEEHSRITIAZKE —ZEAFE-A—H b3
HKFRS 7 Improving Disclosures about Financial 1 January 2009 Yes
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HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements 1 January 2009 Yes
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Real Estate
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— BRE165%
HK (IFRIC) — Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in 1 October 2008 No
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Amendment to HKFRS 7 Improving Disclosures about
Financial Instruments

The amendment increases the disclosure requirements about
fair value measurement and reinforces existing principles for
disclosure about liquidity risk. The amendment introduces a three-
level hierarchy for fair value measurement disclosures and
requires some specific quantitative disclosures for financial
instruments in the lowest level in the hierarchy. In addition, the
amendment clarifies and enhances the existing requirements for
the disclosure of liquidity risk primarily requiring a separate
liquidity risk analysis for derivative and non-derivative financial
liabilities. The adoption of the amendment results in additional
disclosures but does not have an impact on the financial position
or the comprehensive income of the Group.

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments

The standard replaces HKAS 14 Segment Reporting with its
requirement to determine primary and secondary reporting
segments. HKFRS 8 requires a ‘management approach’ under
which segment information is presented on the same basis as
that used for internal reporting purposes. Operating segments
are components of an entity regularly reviewed by an entity’s
chief operating decision-maker. The Group has assessed the
impact of HKFRS 8 and concluded that the key impact is on the
identification of segments, measurement of segment information
in line with the management information for decisions making
and more qualitative and quantitative disclosures related to

segments.

HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

A revised version was issued in December 2007. It prohibits the
presentation of items of income and expenses (that is, ‘non-
owner changes in equity’) in the statement of changes in equity,
requiring ‘non-owner changes in equity’ to be presented
separately from owner changes in equity. All non-owner changes
in equity will be required to be shown in a performance statement,
but entities can choose whether to present one performance
statement (the statement of comprehensive income) or two
statements (the income statement and statement of
comprehensive income). The Group has elected to present two
statements: an income statement and a statement of
comprehensive income. Under the revised standard, the Balance
Sheet is renamed as the “Statement of Financial Position” and
the Cash Flow Statement is renamed as the “Statement of Cash
Flows”.
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Comparative information has been re-presented so that it also
conforms with the revised standard. According to the amendment
of HKAS 1, each component of equity, including each item of
other comprehensive income, should be reconciled between
carrying amount at the beginning and the end of the period. Since
the change in accounting policy only impacts presentation
aspects, there is no impact on retained earnings.

(b) T A AL g A 24 280 iy ¥ B0 % G R
UNTREBEMEAEEAR_ZT

(b) Standards and Interpretations issued but not yet effective

The following Standards and Interpretations have been issued
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NFtA—BkzEHR S H and are mandatory for the Group’s accounting periods beginning
) 98 Il B A B9 ZE Bl ;e 2 8 on or after 1 July 2009 or later periods:
BERARUTAHRZ
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%2R BE Applicable for ER 7 S @ AR RE
Standard/ AR financial years Relevant to
Interpretation Content beginning on/after the Group
ERVBEREERNEIT RWBLF - HREHARIK —EENFALAA S
REB G ENE27H  BERBZREKK
HKFRS 1 and HKAS 27 Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary, 1 July 2009 No
Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate
BERVHEREHERNEIR Rasf —ZETNFEA—H S
HKFRS 3 Business Combinations 1 July 2009 No
BB G EAE27R iRE B —ETENFEA—HA =
HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial 1 July 2009 Yes
Statements
BE g ER E395% CRITH WREIE - AEREPIER —TTAFLA—H 2
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and 1 July 2009 Yes
Measurements - Eligible Hedged Items
%5 (BRGBRE MEEADRFRSEE —EENFELA—HA S
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— REE17TH
HK (IFRIC) - Int 17 Distribution of Non-Cash Assets to Owners 1 July 2009 No
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— REZ18%
HK (IFRIC) — Int 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers 1 July 2009 No
EEMBREEE emIAE D DERFE —T—=%—HA—H =
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments Part 1: Classification 1 January 2013 Yes

and Measurement
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HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

The revised standard requires the effects of all transactions with
non-controlling interests to be recorded in equity if there is no
change in control and these transactions will no longer result in
goodwill or gains and losses. The standard also specifies the
accounting when control is lost. Any remaining interest in the
entity is re-measured to fair value, and a gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss. The Group will apply HKAS 27 (Revised)
prospectively to transactions with non-controlling interests from
1 January 2010.

HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement - Eligible Hedged Items

The amendment Eligible Hedged Items was issued in November
2008. It provides guidance in two situations: On the designation
of one-sided risk in a hedged item HKAS 39 concludes that a
purchased option designated in its entirely as the hedging
instrument of a one-sided risk will not be perfectly effective. The
designation of inflation as a hedged risk or portion is not permitted
unless in particular situations. This will not give rise to any
changes to the Group’s financial statements.

Improvements to HKFRS

‘Improvements to HKFRS’ contains numerous amendments to
HKFRS which the HKICPA consider non-urgent but necessary.
‘Improvement to HKFRS’ comprise amendments that result in
accounting changes for presentation, recognition or
measurement purposes as well as terminology or editorial
amendments related to a variety of individual HKFRS standards.
Most of the amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2009 and 1 January 2010
respectively, with earlier application permitted. No material
changes to accounting policies are expected as a result of these

amendments.
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HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments Part 1: Classification and
Measurement

HKFRS 9 was issued in November 2009 and replaces those parts
of HKAS 39 relating to the classification and measurement of
financial assets. Key features are as follows:

Financial assets are required to be classified into two
measurement categories: those to be measured subsequently
at fair value, and those to be measured subsequently at amortised
cost. The decision is to be made at initial recognition. The
classification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing its financial instruments and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the instrument.

An instrument is subsequently measured at amortised cost only
if it is a debt instrument and both the objective of the entity’s
business model is to hold the asset to collect the contractual
cash flows, and the asset’s contractual cash flows represent only
payments of principal and interest (that is, it has only ‘basic loan
features’). All other debt instruments are to be measured at fair
value through profit or loss.

All equity instruments are to be measured subsequently at fair
value. Equity instruments that are held for trading will be
measured at fair value through profit and loss. For all other equity
instruments, an irrevocable election can be made at initial
recognition, to recognise unrealised and realised fair value gains
and losses through other comprehensive income rather that profit
and loss. There is to be no recycling of fair value gains and losses
to profit and loss. This election may be made on an instrument-
by-instrument basis. Dividends are to be presented in profit and
loss, as long as they represent a return on investment.

While adoption of HKFRS 9 is mandatory from 1 January 2013,

earlier adoption is permitted.

The Group is considering the implications of the standard, the
impact on the Group and the timing of its adoption by the Group.

(c) Early adoption of standards

The Group did not early-adopt any new or amended standards
in 2009.
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Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up to
31 December.

(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities)
over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding of
more than one half of the voting rights. The existence and effect
of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group
controls another entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of the subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the portion of the net assets
of subsidiaries attributable to interests that are not owned by
the Company, whether directly or indirectly through subsidiaries,
and in respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of these interests which would result in
the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in respect
of those interests that meet the definition of a financial liabilities.
They are presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position and consolidation statement of comprehensive income,
separately from equity attributable to equity holders of the
Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group
are presented on the face of the consolidated income statement
as an allocation of the net profit for the year between non-
controlling interest and equity holders of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the investment
in the subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for impairment
allowances. The results of the subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable.
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(b) Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group applies a policy of treating transactions with non-
controlling interests as transactions with parties external to the
Group. Disposals to non-controlling interest result in gains and
losses to the Group that are recorded in the income statement.
Purchases from the non-controlling interests result in goodwill,
being the difference between any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the
subsidiary.

(c) Jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment of a
separate entity in which venturers have joint control over the
economic activity are referred as jointly controlled entities.
Investments in jointly controlled entities are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting and are initially recognised at
cost.

The Group’s share of its jointly controlled entities’ profits or losses
is recognised in the income statement, and its share of
movements in reserves is recognised in reserves. The cumulative
movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group’s share of losses in a jointly
controlled entity equals or exceeds its interest in the entity,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or
made payments on behalf of the entity.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the investment
in the jointly controlled entity is stated at cost less provision for
impairment allowances. The results of the jointly controlled entity
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.
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Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income statement
for all interest bearing financial instruments using the effective interest
method except for those designated at fair value through profit or
loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating the
interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the
financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When
calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows
considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument but does
not consider future credit losses. The calculation includes all fees
and points paid or received between parties to the contract that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
all other premiums or discounts.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been
written down as a result of an impairment loss, interest income is
recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the future
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

Non interest income

(a) Fee and commission income
Fees and commissions are generally recognised on an accrual
basis when the service has been provided. Upfront arrangement
fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rate are
recognised as an adjustment to the effective interest rate in
determining interest income on the loans.

(b) Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment
is established.
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2.5

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories:
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss; loans and
receivables; held-to-maturity investments; and available-for-sale
financial assets. The classification depends on the purpose for which
the investments were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its investments at initial recognition.

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets held for
trading, and those designated as at fair value through profit or
loss at inception. A financial asset is classified as held for trading
if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term
orif it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that
are managed together and for which there is evidence of recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-making. Derivatives are also
categorised as held for trading unless they are designated as
hedges.

A financial asset is typically classified as fair value through profit
or loss at inception if it meets the following criteria:

() the designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency (sometimes
referred to as “an accounting mismatch”) that would
otherwise arise from measuring the financial assets or
financial liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them
on different bases; or

(i) a group of financial assets and/or financial liabilities is
managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value
basis, in accordance with a documented risk management
or investment strategy, and this is the basis on which
information about the financial assets and/or financial liabilities
is provided internally to the key management personnel.

(i

=

Financial assets, such as debt securities held, containing one
or more embedded derivatives significantly modify the cash
flows, are designated at fair value through profit or loss.

(b) Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market and for which the Group has no intention of trading.
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(c) Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that
the Group’s management has the positive intention and ability
to hold to maturity. If the Group was to sell other than an
insignificant amount of held-to-maturity assets, the entire
category would be tainted and reclassified as available-for-sale.

(d) Available-for-sale

Available-for-sale investments are non-derivative financial
investments that are either designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. Available-for-sale
investments are those intended to be held for an indefinite period
of time, which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or
changes in interest rate, exchange rate or market prices. They
are initially recognised at fair value including direct and
incremental transaction costs. They are subsequently held at fair
value.

Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
settlement date. Financial assets are initially recognised at fair
value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at
fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair
value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value,
and transaction costs are expensed in the income statement.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the financial assets have expired or where the Group
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans
and receivables and held-to-maturity investments are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains and
losses arising from changes in the fair value of the “financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss” category are included in the
income statement in the period in which they arise. Unrealised
gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of available-
for-sale financial assets are recognised directly in equity, until
the financial asset is derecognised or impaired at which time the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity should
be recognised in income statement. However, interest calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised in the income
statement. Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in the income statement when the entity’s right to
receive payment is established.
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Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in
a foreign currency and classified as available-for-sale are analysed
between translation differences resulting from changes in
amortised cost of the securities and other changes in the carrying
amount of the securities. The translation differences on monetary
securities are recognised in income statement; translation
differences on non-monetary securities are recognised in equity.
Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary
securities classified as available-for-sale are recognised in equity.
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The fair value of quoted investments in active markets are based
on current bid prices. If there is no active market for a financial
asset, the Group establishes fair value by using valuation
techniques. These include the use of recent arm’s length
transactions, reference to other instruments that are substantially
the same, discounted cash flow analysis and other valuation
techniques commonly used by market participants.

2.6 A WA 2.6 Impairment of financial assets
(a) DASR S A 5 R 2 % 7

(a) Assets carried at amortised cost
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The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and
only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Objective evidence that a financial asset or group of assets is
impaired includes observable data that comes to the attention
of the Group about the following loss events:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

® abreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments;

e the Group granting to the borrower, for economic or legal
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, a
concession that the Group would not otherwise consider;

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation;

e the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties; or
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e observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows from a group of financial
assets since the initial recognition of those assets, although
the decrease cannot yet be identified with the individual
financial assets in the group, including:

— adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers in the
group; or

— economic conditions that correlate with defaults on the
assets in the group.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, and individually or collectively for financial
assets that are not individually significant. If the Group determines
that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes
the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which
an impairment loss is or continues to be recognised are not
included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans
and receivables or held-to-maturity investments carried at
amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance
account and the amount of the loss is recognised in the income
statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity investment has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment
loss is the current effective interest rate determined under the
contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may measure
impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an
observable market price.

The calculation of the present value of estimated future cash
flows of a collateralised financial asset reflects the cash flows
that may result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and
selling the collateral, whether or not foreclosure is probable.
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For the purposes of a collective evaluation of impairment,
financial assets are grouped on the basis of similar credit risk
characteristics which are relevant to the estimation of future cash
flows for groups of such assets by being indicative of the debtors’
ability to pay all amounts due according to the contractual terms
of the assets being evaluated.

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are collectively
evaluated for impairment are estimated on the basis of the
contractual cash flows of the assets in the group and historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar
to those in the group. Historical loss experience is adjusted on
the basis of current observable data to reflect the effects of
current conditions that did not affect the period on which the
historical loss experience is based and to remove the effects of
conditions in the historical period that do not exist currently.

Estimates of changes in future cash flows for groups of assets
should reflect and be directionally consistent with changes in
related observable data from period to period which are indicative
of changes in the probability of losses in the group and their
magnitude. The methodology and assumptions used for
estimating future cash flows are reviewed regularly by the Group
to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual

loss experience.

When a loan is uncollectable, it is written off against the related
allowance for loan impairment at the discretion of the Credit
Committee. Such loans are written off after all the necessary
procedures have been completed and the amount of the loss
has been determined. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off decrease the amount of the allowance for
loan impairment in the income statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed by adjusting
the allowance account. The amount of the reversal is recognised
in the income statement.
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(b) Assets carried at fair value
The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. If any such evidence exists for
available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss — measured
as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognised in income statement — is removed from
equity and recognised in the income statement. If, in a
subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument classified
as available-for-sale increases and the increase can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised in income statement, the impairment loss is reversed
through the income statement.

(c) Renegotiated loans
Loans that are either subject to collective impairment
assessment or individually significant and whose terms have
been renegotiated are no longer considered to be past due
but are treated as renegotiated loans.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified into two categories: financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss and other financial liabilities. All
the financial liabilities are classified at inception and recognised initially
at fair value.

The notes and Transferable Loan Certificates issued under the Debt
Issuance Programme (“DIP”) and the notes offered to retail investors
through the placing banks in standalone retail bond issues and under
the Retail Bond Issuance Programme (“RBIP”) and the notes issued
under the Medium Term Note Programme (“MTN”) are recorded as
debt securities issued on the statement of financial position. The
Mortgage-Backed Securities (“MBS”) issued by the SPEs through
the MBS Programme and Bauhinia MBS Programme are recorded
as mortgage-backed securities issued in the statement of financial
position on consolidation of the SPEs. These notes (including MBS)
are initially designated as financial liabilities either (i) at fair value
through profit or loss or (ii) other financial liabilities.
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2.8

The notes (including those issued with embedded derivative
instruments) designated as hedged items under a fair value hedge
and at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition are
carried at fair value, with changes in fair value being recorded in the
income statement.

The notes designated as other financial liabilities are measured at
cost, which is the fair value of the consideration received, net of
transaction costs incurred. The notes are subsequently stated at
amortised costs; any difference between proceeds net of transaction
costs and the redemption value is recognised in the income
statement over the period of the debt securities using the effective
interest method.

On redemption/repurchase of the notes, the resulting gains or losses,
being the difference between the redemption/repurchase amount
and the carrying amount, are recognised in the income statement in
the period in which the redemption/repurchase takes place.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
at their fair value. Fair values are obtained from quoted market prices
in active markets, including recent market transactions, and valuation
techniques, including discounted cash flow models and options
pricing models, as appropriate. All derivatives are carried as assets
when fair value is positive and as liabilities when fair value is negative.

The best evidence of the fair value of a derivative at initial recognition
is the transaction price (i.e. the fair value of the consideration given
or received) unless the fair value of that instrument is evidenced by
comparison with other observable current market transactions in
the same instrument (i.e. without modification or repackaging) or
based on a valuation technique whose variables include only data
from observable markets. When such evidence exists, the Group
recognises profits on day 1.

Certain derivatives embedded in other financial instruments are
treated as separate derivatives when their economic characteristics
and risks are not closely related to those of the host contract and
the host contract is not carried at fair value through profit or loss.
These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in the income statement.
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The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or loss
depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging
instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The Group
designates certain derivatives as either: (1) hedges of the fair value
of recognised assets or liabilities or firm commitments (fair value
hedge); or, (2) hedges of highly probable future cash flows attributable
to a recognised asset or liability, or a forecast transaction (cash flow
hedge). Hedge accounting is used for derivatives designated in this
way provided certain criteria are met.

The Group documents, at the inception of the transaction, the
relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well
as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking various
hedge transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both
at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the
derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective
in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items.

(a) Fair value hedge
Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and
qualified as fair value hedges are recorded in the income
statement, together with any changes in the fair value of the
hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting,
the adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged item for which
the effective interest method is used, is amortised to income
statement over the period to maturity.

(b) Cash flow hedge
The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives
that are designated and qualified as cash flow hedges are
recognised in equity. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective
portion is recognised immediately in the income statement.

Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled to the income
statement in the periods in which the hedged item will affect
income statement.
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2.9

2.10

2.11

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge
no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative
gain or loss existing in equity at that time remains in equity and
is recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately
recognised in the income statement. When a forecast transaction
is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that
was reported in equity is immediately transferred to the income
statement.

(c) Derivatives at fair value through profit or loss

Derivative instruments entered into as economic hedges that do
not qualify for hedge accounting are held at fair value through
profit or loss. Changes in the fair value of any derivative instrument
are recognised immediately in the income statement.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported
in the statement of financial position when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

Repossessed assets

Repossessed collateral assets are accounted as assets held for sale
and reported in “Other assets” and the relevant loans are
derecognised. The repossessed collateral assets are measured at
lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker.
The chief operating decision maker is the person or group that
allocates resources to and assesses the performance of the operating
segments of an entity. The Group has determined the Chief Executive
Officer as its chief operating decision maker.

Income directly associated with each segment is included in
determining segment performance. Funding costs are allocated to
each segment by way of internal fund transfer pricing mechanisms.
Cost allocation is based on the direct costs incurred by the respective
segment and apportionment of management overheads.
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[tems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at
year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the income
statement, except when deferred in equity as qualifying cash
flow hedges.

Translation differences on non-monetary items held at fair value
through profit or loss are reported as part of the fair value gain or
loss. Translation differences on non-monetary items classified
as available-for-sale financial assets, are included in the fair value
reserve in equity.

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group’s entities (none
of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that
have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

Income and expenses for each income statement are translated
at average exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the dates of the transactions); and

All resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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2.13

Exchange differences arising from the above process are reported
in shareholders’ equity as translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities, and of
borrowings and other currency instruments designated as hedges
of such investments, are taken to other comprehensive income.
When a foreign operation is disposed of, or partially disposed
of, such exchange differences are recognised in the consolidated
income statement as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or are
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost to their residual values over their estimated useful lives.
Leasehold improvements over the unexpired period of the lease

Furniture and fixtures over the unexpired period of the lease

Computer 3 years
Office equipment 3 years
Motor vehicle 4 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Gain and loss on disposal is determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amount. It is included in the income statement.
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2.14 Impairment of investment in subsidiaries and

2.15

non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or are not yet available for
use are not subject to amortisation, but are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An asset’s carrying
amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s fair
value less costs to sell and value in use.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the
reporting period are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised where it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised. Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising from investment in the subsidiary, except where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by
the Group and it is probable that the difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Income tax payable on profits is recognised as an expense in the
period in which profits arise. The tax effects of income tax losses
available for carry-forward are recognised as an asset when it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
these losses can be utilised.

Deferred tax related to fair value re-measurement of available-for-
sale investments and cash flow hedges, which are charged or
credited directly to equity, is also credited or charged directly to
equity and is subsequently recognised in the income statement
together with the deferred gain or loss.
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2.16 Employee benefits

(a) Employee leave entitlements
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Employee entitlements to annual leave and long-service leave
are recognised when they accrue to employees. An accrual is
made for the estimated liability for annual leave and long-service
leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to the
end of each reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave, maternity or paternity leave
are recognised when the absence occurs.

(b) Bonus plans

The Company recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses,
based on a formula that takes into consideration the profit after
certain adjustments. The Company recognises a provision where
contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created constructive obligations.

(c) Pension obligations

The Company offers a mandatory provident fund scheme and a
defined contribution scheme, the assets of which are generally
held in separate trustee — administered funds. These pension
plans are generally funded by payments from employees and by
the Company.

The Company’s contributions to the mandatory provident fund
scheme and defined contribution scheme are expensed as
incurred and are reduced by the portion of employer contributions
being forfeited by those employees who leave the scheme prior
to full vesting of the employer contributions.

The pension schemes covering all the Group’s PRC employees
are defined Contribution scheme at various funding rates, and
are in accordance with local practices and regulations.
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2.17

2.18

(d) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated
before the normal retirement date, or whenever an employee
accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits.
The Company recognises termination benefits when it is
demonstrably committed to either: terminating the employment
of current employees according to a detailed formal plan without
possibility of withdrawal; or providing termination benefits as a
result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy.
Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the end of each
reporting period date are discounted to present value.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events where it is more
likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation, and the amount has been reliably estimated.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditure
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation.

Leases

(a) Operating leases
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. The Group entered into operating leases primarily as
lessee. Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period
has expired, any payment required to be made to the lessor by
way of penalty is recognised as an expense in the period in which
termination takes place.
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2.19

2.20

(b) Finance leases

Leases of assets where the Group has substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance
leases. The Group entered into finance leases primarily as lessor.
Finance leases are capitalised as receivables at the lease’s
commencement at the lower of the fair value of the leased property
and the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
difference between the gross receivable and the present value
of the receivable is recognised as unearned finance income.
Lease income is recognised over the term of the lease using the
net investment method, which reflects a constant periodic rate
of return. Hire purchase contracts having the characteristics of
a finance lease are accounted for in the same manner as finance
leases. Impairment allowances are accounted for in accordance
with the accounting policies set out in Note 2.6.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flow, cash and cash
equivalents comprise balances with less than three months’ maturity
from the date of acquisition, including cash, balances with banks
and other financial institutions.

Mortgage insurance contracts

The mortgage insurance business of the Group is accounted for on
the annual accounting basis. Under the annual accounting approach,
the Group makes provisions based on credible estimates of future
income and outgoings to determine the underwriting result for the
current accounting period. The underwriting result includes any
adjustments arising from the correction of the previous estimates.

Gross premiums represent direct business written through the
Authorized Institutions during an accounting period. The gross
premiums after deduction of discounts, include the reinsurance
premiums to be paid to the approved reinsurers, the risk premiums
and servicing fees earned by the Group. The net premiums are
recognised as income on a time-apportioned basis during the time
the insurance coverage is effective.

Unearned premiums represent that portion of net premiums written
which are estimated to relate to risks and services subsequent to
the end of each reporting period.
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Provisions are made for outstanding claims, claims incurred but not
reported and loss reserve at the end of each reporting period. For
risk-sharing business, 50% of the net risk premiums earned in a
year is set aside as a Contingency Reserve for a reasonable period
of time and maintained in accordance with relevant regulatory
guidelines and as considered by directors to be appropriate.
Withdrawals from the Contingency Reserve can be made to meet
excess claims at any time during the period. At the end of the
reporting period, the unutilised balance of the Contingency Reserve
can be released to general reserve.

Reinsurance contracts refer to contracts entered into by the Group
with reinsurers under which the Group is compensated for losses
on one or more insurance contracts issued by the Group. Benefits
to which the Group is entitled under its reinsurance contracts held
are recognised as reinsurance assets. These assets consist of claims
recoverable from reinsurers and receivables that are dependent on
the expected claims and benefits arising under the related reinsured
insurance contracts. Amounts recoverable from or due to reinsurers
are measured consistently with the amounts associated with the
reinsured insurance contracts and in accordance with the terms of
each reinsurance contract. Reinsurance liabilities are primarily
premiums payable for reinsurance contracts and are recognised as
an expense when due.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the Group
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due,
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial
guarantees are given to investors of mortgage-backed securities
issued.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial statements
at fair value on the date that the guarantee was given. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group’s liabilities under such guarantees
are measured at the higher of the amount determined in accordance
with HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets and the amount initially recognised less cumulative
amortisation recognised. Any changes in the liability relating to
financial guarantees are taken to the income statement.

Dividend
Dividend proposed or declared after the end of each reporting period
is disclosed as a separate component of shareholders’ equity.
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3.1

Financial risk management

Strategy in using financial instruments

The principal activities of the Group are (i) to purchase portfolios of
mortgages or loans; (i) to raise financing for its purchase of assets
through issuance of debt securities; (iii) to securitise mortgage
portfolios through special purpose entities by way of issuing
mortgage-backed securities (“MBS”); and (iv) to provide mortgage
insurance cover to Authorized Institutions in respect of mortgage
loans originated by such Authorized Institutions and secured by
residential properties in Hong Kong. By their nature, the Group’s
activities are principally related to the use of financial instruments
including cash, loans, debts and derivatives.

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks and
those activities involve the analysis, evaluation, acceptance and
management of some degree of risk or combination of risks. The
Group manages the risks in a prudent manner in sustaining the
Group’s financial performance.

A new Risk Oversight Division was established in 2009 to further
strengthen the management of risk within the Group. The Risk
Oversight Division is responsible to the overall risk governance
structure of the Group’s risk management policies and major limits
for approval by the Board of Directors. The Corporate Risk
Management Committee is set up at corporate level to provide
oversight of the enterprise-wide risk matters including financial
and non-financial risks. The policies and limits are monitored and
reviewed regularly by various management committees, including
the Credit Committee, Asset and Liability Committee, Audit
Committee, Transaction Approval Committee and Operational Risk
Committee which report to Corporate Risk Management Committee.

The Credit Committee oversees the credit policies and standards
for asset acquisition and mortgage insurance. The Asset and Liability
Committee (“ALCO”) oversees the implementation of market risk
management and investment guidelines approved by the Board of
Directors. In addition, Internal Audit is responsible for the independent
review of risk management and the control environment. The most
important types of risks are credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk
which includes currency risk and interest rate risk.
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Credit risk

The Group’s principal financial assets are its loan portfolio, investment
securities, cash and short-term funds. The credit risk on liquid funds
and investment securities is limited because the counterparties are
mainly sovereigns, quasi-sovereign agencies, banks and companies
with very high credit ratings.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its loan portfolio,
which is the risk that a loan borrower will be unable to pay amounts
in full when due. Allowance for impairment is provided for losses
that have been incurred at the end of the reporting period.

Significant changes in the economy and local property market could
result in losses that are different from those provided for at the end
of the reporting period. The Group therefore has a prudent policy for
managing its exposure to credit risk.

To maintain the quality of the asset and mortgage insurance
portfolios, the Group adheres to a four-pronged approach to (i) select
Approved Sellers carefully, (i) adopt prudent asset purchasing criteria
and insurance eligibility criteria, (i) conduct effective due diligence
reviews and (iv) ensure adequate protection for higher-risk assets or
transactions. The Group has no significant concentration of credit
risk. Risk exposure is spread over a large number of customers,
counterparties and a diversified geographic distribution of underlying
collateral.

The Group undertakes ongoing credit review with special attention
paid to problem loans. Operation units will monitor these loans and
take recovery action such as establishing relief plan with borrowers
in order to maximise recoveries. Loan impairment assessment is
performed regularly and impairment allowance is charged to income
statement in accordance with the guidelines approved by the Credit
Committee.

Collateral and other credit enhancements

The Group has implemented guidelines on the acceptability of
specific classes of collateral on credit risk mitigation, which are
subject to regular review. The principal collateral types for loan
portfolio are mortgages over properties, reserve funds and deferred
consideration used for credit enhancement.

Collateral held as security for financial assets other than loan portfolio
is determined by the nature of the instrument. Debt securities are
generally unsecured, with the exception of asset-backed securities
and similar instruments, which are secured by portfolios of financial
assets.
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For financial instruments such as derivatives, exposures are
monitored against counterparty risk limits established in accordance
with the investment guidelines and credit risk policy of the Group.
These counterparty risk limits are subject to regular review by the
Credit Committee on a semi-annual basis. At any one time, the
amount subject to credit risk is limited to the current fair value of
instruments that are favourable to the Group (i.e. assets where their
fair value is positive), which in relation to derivatives is only a small
fraction of the contract, or notional values used to express the volume
of instruments outstanding. This credit risk exposure is managed as
part of the overall credit limits with counterparties, together with
potential exposures from market movements.

Settlement risk arises in any situation where a payment in cash,
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securities or equities is made in the expectation of a corresponding
receipt in cash, securities or equities. Daily settlement limits are
established for each counterparty to cover the aggregate of all
settlement risk arising from the Group’s market transactions on any

(a) Maximum exposure to credit risk before taking account of

collateral held or other credit enhancements

Maximum exposure to credit risk before taking account of

collateral held or other credit enhancements are analysed as

o follows:
rEE PN/NE]
The Group The Company
R=ZThE RZZTN\F R=ZThF R-ZEENE
+=-A=+-A +=A=1+—8© +=—A=+-A +=A=1+—8©
As at As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2009 2008 2009 2008
Fi#x FAET FiET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BE Assets:
RehEHEe Cash and short-term funds 4,067,798 3,093,258 3,924,752 3,054,735
FEUF B K FE 3R Interest and remittance
receivables 710,530 1,334,485 698,809 1,322,591
PTESRBTA Derivative financial
instruments 1,317,375 2,237,526 1,273,102 2,159,479
EXAEF8 Loan portfolio, net 43,788,716 50,760,112 40,817,163 46,678,285
BHEE Investment securities:
- A EFES — available-for-sale debt
securities 2,587,344 1,209,825 2,587,344 1,209,825
-HEZHHES - held-to-maturity debt
securities 5,817,998 5,614,666 5,817,998 5,614,666
JEfTFIE « & & Prepayments, deposits and
Hith &Z other assets 32,595 30,555 36,681 38,118
BREREE Reinsurance assets 266,101 348,442 266,101 348,442
BEABRINEK : Off-balance sheet exposures:
B IS HE IR Financial guarantees
(1B FA1bst28]  (contractual amount under
BE K2 5H) the MBS programmes) - = 1,277,647 1,717,540
[ B #& AR Risk-in-force 14,920,287 9,830,573 14,919,441 9,830,573
73,508,744 74,459,442 71,619,038 71,974,254
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o) HEEE (b) Credit quality
EREE AT The loan portfolio is analysed as follows:
r&EE AAT
The Group The Company
R=ZBERF RZZEN\F R=EBERF RZZZN\F
+=A=+-A +=ZA=+—H +=A=+-RA +=ZA=+—H
As at As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2009 2008 2009 2008
FHET FHT FTHET FHT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
SR 480 B 7T RO E Neither past due nor
impaired 42,854,818 49,761,406 39,972,073 45,740,512
80 BB SRR (B Past due but not impaired 942,532 1,026,708 853,688 965,174
ERE Impaired 5,377 22,534 5,377 22,372
BERBEABE Gross loan portfolio 43,802,727 50,810,648 40,831,138 46,728,058
EFRERE Allowance for loan
impairment (14,011) (50,536) (13,975) (49,773)
43,788,716 50,760,112 40,817,163 46,678,285

REBHRPRRBRIFRBEOER
HANEEERAU2EARERMN

The credit quality of loan portfolio that were neither past due nor
impaired as at the end of the reporting period can be assessed

BN EP T AR R AT TR o by reference to the internal rating system adopted by the Group.
& ZAYNG]
The Group The Company
R=ZBENF R-ZTTNEF R=BEAF R-ZTNF
+=A=+—-RA +ZA=+—H +t=ZHA=+—-H +ZA=+—H
As at As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2009 2008 2009 2008
THET FHET FTET FHT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAl Grades:
1238 1103 42,794,073 49,725,637 39,916,630 45,705,432
4% 4 - 2,409 - 2,409
58% 5 60,745 33,360 55,443 32,671
42,854,818 49,761,406 39,972,073 45,740,512
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Grades 1 to 3 include loans with either no credit risk or no

previous past due history; and with different levels of credit

enhancements in addition to the collateral held as security.

Grade 4 includes loans with previous past due history and with

different levels of credit enhancement in addition to the collateral

held as security.

Grade 5 includes loans with previous past due history and with
collateral held as security.
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(c¢) Loan portfolio past due but not impaired

The analysis below shows the gross loan portfolio that were past
due but not impaired at the end of the reporting period:

rEE /N
The Group The Company
R=BBRF RZZFENF R=ZBBRF RZZENF
+=A=+—-8A +=ZA=+—8 +=A=+-B +=ZA=+—H
As at As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2009 2008 2009 2008
T THT FExT THT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
i HARE R Past due:
Z@AAT Three months or less 933,096 1,021,165 844,512 959,955
NEASAT - Six months or less but
BER =8 A over three months 4,316 3,746 4,056 3,611
B~ & A Over six months 5,120 1,797 5,120 1,608
BEE Total 942,532 1,026,708 853,688 965,174
ARG R EM{=E  Fair value of collateral and
2 BE IN58 18 1 other credit enhancement
B FE 2,753,090 2,173,979 2,515,417 2,015,777

(d) O B WAL X AL A (d) Loan portfolio individually impaired
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The individually impaired loans of the Group and the Company
before taking into account the cash flows from collateral held
and credit enhancement is HK$5,377,000 (2008: The Group:
HK$22,534,000 and the Company: HK$22,372,000).

The fair value of related collateral held and credit enhancement
of the Group and the Company is HK$9,177,000 (2008: The
Group: HK$26,602,000 and the Company: HK$26,338,000)

(e) Loan portfolio renegotiated

Renegotiated loans are those that have been restructured due
to deterioration in the borrower’s financial position and where
the Group has made concessions that it would not otherwise
consider. Following restructuring, a previously overdue customer
account is reset to a normal status and managed together with
other similar accounts. Restructuring policies and practices are
based on indicators or criteria which indicate that payment will
most likely continue. These policies are kept under continuous
review. Renegotiated loans that would otherwise be past due or
impaired totalled HK$3,304,000 as at 31 December 2009 (2008:
HK$9,811,000). A renegotiated loan will continue to be disclosed
as such unless the loan has been performing in accordance with
the rescheduled terms for a period of six months.
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(f) Repossessed collateral

The Group and the Company obtained assets by taking
possession of collateral held as security, as follows:

BREE
Carrying Amount
2009 2008
FET T
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEWE Residential property 3,317 3,149

WEIMESEBRAITIER TER
HE - FISFEANRD REEE
A o WEIME R AN RN IE
REMEERT °

(g) B YT %
REBEERILENRERS - AR
AEARENSEREEEFRE
BErm BEAREEZREEYHKR
RBNE D HIRE L PIETBRRE R
% o

BBENDEERBEOTRT E
(Standard and Poor’s * Moody’s &
Fitch) » T %17 2 M EAARIZ T £ 5
HEBBHIEDN - WFEHART R
Bt - AERAESF BT ARGRR ©

Repossessed properties are sold as soon as practicable, with
the proceeds used to reduce the outstanding indebtedness.
Repossessed property is classified in the statement of financial
position within other assets.

(g) Investment securities

According to the Investment Guidelines approved by the Board
of Directors, the HKMC can only invest in debt securities with a
certain minimum credit rating. The proportion of investment
according to rating categories is monitored and reviewed by
ALCO.

The table below presents an analysis of debt securities by rating
designation as at the end of the reporting period, based on
external credit agency’s ratings (Standard and Poor’s, Moody’s
and Fitch). In the absence of issue-specific ratings, the ratings
for the issuers are reported.

BEZIHES

CIRES o Held-to-
REBRAAT Available-for- maturity Fkc]
R=ZBBAF+=A=+—8 sale securities securities Total
The Group and the Company FET FET FHET
As at 31 December 2009 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
AAA/Aaa AAA/Aaa 581,306 642,867 1,224,173
AA-ZAA+/Aa3Z Aai AA- to AA+/Aa3 to Aai 2,006,038 4,330,310 6,336,348
A-ZA+/ASZA1 A- to A+/A3 to A1 - 844,821 844,821
Mg Total 2,587,344 5,817,998 8,405,342

FAEZEIHES

A EF S Held-to-
REBRARF Available-for- maturity #zE
RZZEZENF+=ZA=+—H sale securities securities Total
The Group and the Company T FHT FHET
As at 31 December 2008 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AAA/Aaa AAA/Aaa - 506,613 506,613
AA-ZEAA+/Aa3E Aatl AA- to AA+/Aa3 to Aail 1,209,825 4,558,827 5,768,652
A-ZA+/A3EAT A- to A+/A3 to A1 - 549,226 549,226
REE Total 1,209,825 5,614,666 6,824,491
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3.3.

Market risk

The Group takes on exposure to market risks, which is the risk that
the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market risks arise from open
positions in interest rate, currency and equity products, all of which
are exposed to general and specific market movements and changes
in the level of volatility of market rates or prices such as interest
rates, credit spreads, foreign exchange rates and equity prices. The
Group’s exposures to market risk primarily arise from the interest
rate management of the entity’s financial instruments of different
repricing characteristics. The Group hedges a major proportion of
its existing interest rate risk of the fixed-rate bond issuance using
fair value hedges in the form of interest rate swaps by swapping into
floating-rate funding to better match the floating-rate assets.

The management of market risk is principally undertaken by the
Treasury Department using risk limits approved by the Board of
Directors. Strategies on interest rate risk management, financing,
hedging, investments are formulated by ALCO. A regular meeting is
held to review the latest conditions in the financial markets and the
asset-liability portfolio mix. The Treasury Department is responsible
for monitoring financial market movements and executing
transactions in the cash, derivatives and debt markets in accordance
with the strategies laid down by ALCO. The middle office monitors
the compliance of risk limits and performs stress tests to assess the
potential size of losses that could arise in extreme conditions. The
results of the stress tests are reviewed by ALCO.

A principal part of the interest rate risk management is to monitor
the sensitivity of projected net interest income under different
interest rate scenarios and to mitigate the negative impact through
hedging operations. A 20 basis points (2008: 50 basis points)
parallel downward shift of the interest rate curve as at 31
December 2009 would decrease the future net interest income
for the next 12 months by HK$18.7 million (2008: HK$5.7 million
increase) and increase by HK$13 million (2008: HK$5.7 million
decrease) for a similar upward parallel shift.
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As at 31 December 2009, if interest rates at that date had
experienced a 20 basis points (2008: 50 basis points) parallel
shift downwards, profit before tax for the year would have been
HK$5.4 million (2008: HK$5.9 million higher) lower and the reserve
would have been HK$2.9 million lower (2008: HK$8.9 million) as
at 31 December 2009. If interest rates had experienced a 20 basis
points (2008: 50 basis points) parallel shift upwards, profit before
tax for the year would have been HK$5 million (2008: HK$15.2
million lower) higher and the reserve would have been HK$2 million
higher (2008: HK$8.8 million).

As at 31 December 2009, with all other variables held constant, if
the HK dollar had weakened by 100 price interest points against
the US dollar, profit before tax for the year would have been
HK$9.3 million (2008: HK$20 million) higher. Conversely, if the
HK dollar had strengthened by 100 price interest points against
the US dollar, profit before tax for the year would have been
HK$9.3 million (2008: HK$20 million) lower.

As at 31 December 2009 & 2008, with all other variable held
constant, the weakening or strengthening of HK dollar by 100
price interest points against other foreign currencies would have
no significant impact on the profit before tax for the year.

The 20 basis points (2008: 50 basis points) and 100 price interest
points increase or decrease represent management’s assessment
of a reasonably possible change in interest rate and exchange
rates over the period until the next reporting period end.
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(a) Currency risk
The Group takes on exposure to effects of fluctuations in the
prevailing foreign currency exchange rate on its financial position
and cash flows. The Board sets allowable currencies for
investment purposes. The ALCO sets limits on the currency
exposure that may be undertaken, which is monitored daily.

TREFIAREEOINEEZRR
RAFMEAAEEZREETIED

The tables below summarise the Group’s exposure to foreign
currency exchange rate risk. Included in the tables are the

BEMREE  WIREEEESME o Group’s assets and liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised
by currency.
HAishus
BT %7t Other foreign B
HK Dollar US Dollar currencies Total
FEE F#T FET FET F#T
The Group HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
R=-ZZAEF As at 31 December 2009
+=A=+-H
BE Assets
RekEHES Cash and short-term funds 3,065,437 895,247 107,114 4,067,798
JEUFI B K FE 3R Interest and remittance receivables 495,299 207,063 8,168 710,530
TTHESRIA Derivative financial instruments 1,249,113 68,262 - 1,317,375
EREEEE Loan portfolio, net 29,289,381 14,499,335 - 43,788,716
BHILE Investment securities:
- AEHE — available-for-sale 759,851 2,853,213 - 3,613,064
-FEREH — held-to-maturity 2,379,960 3,438,038 - 5,817,998
AENAIRE Investment in a joint venture - - 115,190 115,190
TEE Fixed assets 19,000 - 2,257 21,257
BEARE - Ee Prepayments, deposits and
REMEE other assets 32,375 - 220 32,595
BREEE Reinsurance assets 266,101 - - 266,101
BEE Total assets 37,556,517 21,961,158 232,949 59,750,624
afE Liabilities
FERF) 8 Interest payable 307,265 130,390 8,132 445,787
JERBRFN ~ BB Accounts payable, accrued
kEMEE expenses and other liabilities 4,272,541 598 1,038 4,274,177
TELMTIEAE Derivative financial instruments 107,872 50,374 - 158,246
I8 Tax payable 138,329 - - 138,329
BEFIEAE Deferred tax liabilities 15,209 - - 15,209
RREE Insurance liabilities 1,462,318 - - 1,462,318
BBTESES Debt securities issued 34,214,500 8,383,249 1,897,324 44,495,073
BETRIBES Mortgage-backed securities
issued 2,020,394 - - 2,020,394
BEE Total liabilities 42,538,428 8,564,611 1,906,494 53,009,533
RS Net position (4,981,911) 13,396,547 (1,673,545) 6,741,091
BEABRING Off-balance sheet net notional
HEFE position * 4,388,318 (6,164,030) 1,869,013 93,301

# Off-balance sheet net notional position represents the difference
between the notional amounts of foreign currency derivative financial
instruments, which are principally used to reduce the Group’s exposure
to currency movements and their fair values

FRERRRINFRERRAEINETE
SRTA(EZAUREAEENER
RBHELR) MB RS EEE N TED
R e
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H At oh s
BT %5t Other foreign M
HK Dollar US Dollar currencies Total
AR H Fi#T T Fi#T T
The Company HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
R-ZEZNE As at 31 December 2009
+=A=+—~H
BE Assets
BeREHES Cash and short-term funds 3,029,501 895,248 3 3,924,752
JE MR B 2 FEFR Interest and remittance receivables 483,614 207,063 8,132 698,809
TESRTA Derivative financial instruments 1,204,840 68,262 - 1,273,102
EEE T8 Loan portfolio, net 26,317,828 14,499,335 - 40,817,163
BHEE Investment securities:
- At E - available-for-sale 759,851 2,853,213 - 3,613,064
-RBEZRIH - held-to-maturity 2,379,960 3,438,038 - 5,817,998
M@ AR E Investment in subsidiaries 1,631,520 - 102,060 1,733,580
BEARIIRE Investment in a joint venture - - 120,554 120,554
BEEE Fixed assets 19,000 - - 19,000
BRFE - Be Prepayments, deposits and
K E A& B other assets 36,681 - - 36,681
BREEE Reinsurance assets 266,101 - - 266,101
BEE Total assets 36,128,896 21,961,159 230,749 58,320,804
=L Liabilities
FE A FILE Interest payable 303,695 130,390 8,132 442,217
FERTBRSR  FETBISZ  Accounts payable, accrued
REMERE expenses and other liabilities 4,909,762 574 613 4,910,949
TEERMIA Derivative financial instruments 107,872 50,374 - 158,246
eI B IE Tax payable 131,850 - - 131,850
EXERIBEE Deferred tax liabilities 15,213 - - 15,213
RREE Insurance liabilities 1,462,318 - - 1,462,318
BEITEBESR Debt securities issued 34,214,500 8,383,249 1,897,324 44,495,073
#wERE Total liabilities 41,145,210 8,564,587 1,906,069 51,615,866
REEFR Net position (5,016,314) 13,396,572 (1,675,320) 6,704,938
BEBERING Off-balance sheet net notional
EZERE position * 4,388,318  (6,164,030) 1,869,013 93,301

FERERBERINFRERERINETE
SRMITA(EZZRURERRARER
L) MEFE S REE N TED
EH e

# Off-balance sheet net notional position represents the difference
between the notional amounts of foreign currency derivative financial
instruments, which are principally used to reduce the Company’s

exposure to currency movements and their fair values.
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H Ao
BIT ES Other foreign FEEE
HK Dollar US Dollar currencies Total
AEE T T T FHT
The Group HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
RZZENF As at 31 December 2008
+-A=+—~H
BE Assets
BehEHES Cash and short-term funds 1,715,931 1,376,710 617 3,093,258
JE RIS R B3R Interest and remittance receivables 1,100,888 228,400 5,197 1,334,485
PTESRIA Derivative financial instruments 2,147,270 90,256 - 2,237,526
EREE TR Loan portfolio, net 36,086,528 14,673,584 - 50,760,112
BHIRE - Investment securities:
- AEHE ~ available-for-sale 456,874 1,595,678 - 2,052,552
-RBEZREH ~ held-to-maturity 2,887,746 2,640,087 86,833 5,614,666
AENAIRE Investment in a joint venture 1,543 = 111,989 113,532
EEE Fixed assets 14,302 - - 14,302
BfRE - e Prepayments, deposits and
REMEE other assets 30,555 = = 30,555
EERIEERE Deferred tax assets 28,904 - - 28,904
BREEE Reinsurance assets 348,442 = = 348,442
mEE Total assets 44,818,983 20,604,715 204,636 65,628,334
BE Liabilities
JFE A 118, Interest payable 280,832 183,973 5,160 469,965
JERBRFN « BRI Accounts payable, accrued
REMEE expenses and other liabilities 4,183,693 = = 4,183,693
MESRmIA Derivative financial instruments 128,374 86,620 - 214,994
FEfTHBIE Tax payable 47,866 - = 47,866
RipBE Insurance liabilities 908,740 - - 908,740
HINE & B Advance from Exchange Fund 8,000,000 - - 8,000,000
BEITERBES Debt securities issued 37,697,553 3,816,602 1,300,833 42,814,988
BRTIREES Mortgage-backed securities
issued 3,225,624 = = 3,225,624
war Total liabilities 54,472,682 4,087,195 1,305,993 59,865,870
R R Net position (9,653,699) 16,517,520  (1,101,357) 5,762,464
BEABRING Off-balance sheet net notional
AEFRE position (97,119)  (1,006,850) 1,196,717 92,748

FEEABRRIINFRERARINEITE
SRTA(EZAUNREAEENER
REER) MEECRELNFEN
EH o

# Off-balance sheet net notional position represents the difference
between the notional amounts of foreign currency derivative financial
instruments, which are principally used to reduce the Group’s exposure

to currency movements and their fair values.
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H o
BIT EP Other foreign 4z
HK Dollar US Dollar currencies Total
ARAT FHT FHT FHT T
The Company HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
RZZETNEF As at 31 December 2008
+-B=+—~H
BE Assets
Hehmige Cash and short-term funds 1,677,408 1,376,710 617 3,054,735
JE UL FI B 2 FEFR Interest and remittance receivables 1,088,994 228,400 5,197 1,322,591
PTESRBIA Derivative financial instruments 2,069,223 90,256 - 2,159,479
EEE T8 Loan portfolio, net 32,004,701 14,673,584 - 46,678,285
BHEE Investment securities:
— At E - available-for-sale 456,874 1,595,678 - 2,052,552
— FEZRIH - held-to-maturity 2,887,746 2,640,087 86,833 5,614,666
MBQERE Investment in a subsidiary 2,210,981 = = 2,210,981
BEARIRE Investment in a joint venture 1,543 - 120,554 122,097
BEEE Fixed assets 14,302 = = 14,302
BRARE - Be Prepayments, deposits and
N E At & B other assets 38,118 - - 38,118
EREFEEE Deferred tax assets 28,889 = = 28,889
BREREE Reinsurance assets 348,442 = = 348,442
BEE Total assets 42,827,221 20,604,715 213,201 63,645,137
8 Liabilities
JE A FILE Interest payable 273,385 183,973 5,160 462,518
JETBRZX - FEfFF Y Accounts payable, accrued
RE A B & expenses and other liabilities 4,979,510 - - 4,979,510
TESRmIA Derivative financial instruments 128,374 86,620 - 214,994
e i TR Tax payable 47,866 - = 47,866
RREE Insurance liabilities 908,740 - - 908,740
SNEEEE & B Advance from Exchange Fund 8,000,000 - - 8,000,000
BEITREES Debt securities issued 38,142,888 3,816,602 1,300,833 43,260,323
#wAER Total liabilities 52,480,763 4,087,195 1,305,993 57,873,951
FR R Net position (9,653,542) 16,517,520 (1,092,792) 5,771,186
BEBEBRING Off-balance sheet net notional
BRERR position *# 97,119  (1,006,850) 1,196,717 92,748

FERERBERINFRERERINETTE
SRMITA(EZRURERRFRES
B ELR) M) B FE S REE N T ERN
EH e

# Off-balance sheet net notional position represents the difference
between the notional amounts of foreign currency derivative financial
instruments, which are principally used to reduce the Company’s

exposure to currency movements and their fair values.
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(b) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. Fair value interest rate risk
is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The Group takes
on exposure to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels
of market interest rates on both its fair value and cash flow
risks. Interest margins may increase as a result of such
changes but may reduce or create losses in the event that
unexpected movements arise. The ALCO sets limits on the
level of interest rate mismatch that may be undertaken, which
is monitored regularly.

The tables below summarise the Group’s exposure to interest
rate risks. Included in the tables are the Group’s assets and
liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by the earlier of
contractual repricing or maturity dates. The carrying amounts
of derivative financial instruments, which are principally used
to reduce the Group’s exposure to interest rate movements,
are included under the heading “Non-interest bearing”.
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—fBARE ZEARE —FN0E
—BAR Z=@A E-fF ZRF FErR
Upto Over 1 month Over 3 months Over 1 year EFHULE  Non-interest am
1 month to 3 months to 1 year to5years  Over 5 years bearing Total
A&EE FET FERT FET FET THET FET FTET
The Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R=BENE As at 31 December 2009
t-A=t-A
& Assets
ReREHES Cash and short-term funds 3,660,995 342,787 5,679 - - 58,337 4,067,798
FEUFI S RESR Interest and remittance
receivables - - - - - 710,530 710,530
fTEEMIE Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 1,317,375 1,317,375
BqiasE Loan portfolio, net 36,614,171 6,978,278 123,890 57,473 14,904 - 43,788,716
BHRE - Investment securities:
- AHE - available-for-sale 1,201,524 931,092 454,728 - - 1,025,720 3,613,064
-HAEZHH - held-to-maturity 502,010 1,000,024 41,7141 3,097,888 476,335 - 5,817,998
AERARE Investment in a joint venture - - - - - 115,190 115,190
EréE Fixed assets - - - - - 21,257 21,257
BNRE - e Prepayments, deposits and
REMEE other assets - - - - - 32,595 32,595
BREEE Reinsurance assets - - - - - 266,101 266,101
BEE Total assets 41,978,700 9,252,181 1,326,038 3,155,361 491,239 3,547,105 59,750,624
afE Liabilities
EfIFIS Interest payable - - - - - 445,787 445,787
ERERN - ERNRX Accounts payable, acorued
REMAR expenses and other liabilites 4,133,740 - - - - 140,437 4274477
{TEEMIE Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 158,246 158,246
ERHE Tax payable - - - - - 138,329 138,329
EEREEE Deferred tax liabilties - - - - - 15,209 15,209
REBAE Insurance liabilities - - - - - 1462318 1,462,318
BETERES Debt securities issued 6,043,151 6,293,644 6,664,434 19,688,772 5,805,072 - 44,495,073
BEEEES Mortgage-backed securities
issued 1,051,120 - 229,116 740,158 - - 2,020,394
BEE Total liabilities 11,228,011 6,293,644 6,893,550 20,428,930 5,805,072 2,360,326 58,009,533
HNSHBEROAE Total interest sensitivity gap* 30,750,689 2,958,537  (5,567,512) (17,273,569) (5,313,833
F®fTEIR Interest rate derivatives
(BEFENZZLH) (notional amounts of
net position) (13,406,010)  (13,453,873) 2,715,050 18,876,598 5,361,536
 REIALTESB T ASE T BYEE BT * before the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments on the
" debt securities and the mortgage-backed securities issued.

BEREFRCBEITRBESNZE -
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—@ANE  Z@AKE —FLE
—@AK E=fEA E-% BRE FHE
Up to  Over1month Over3 months Over 1 year BENE Non-interest am
1 month to 3 months to 1 year to 5 years Over 5 years bearing Total
AA7 FHT FET FHT FHT FExT FHT FHT
The Company HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000
R=BENE As at 31 December 2009
t=A=t-H
BE Assets
BeREHES Cash and short-term funds 3,550,348 325,750 - - - 48,654 3,924,752
FEYH 8 REHK Interest and remittance
receivables - - - - - 698,809 698,809
fTEERIE Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 1,273,102 1,273,102
ENisFE Loan portfolio, net 33,645,048 6,078,278 123,890 55,044 14,903 - 40,817,163
BHRE Investment securities:
- e - available-for-sale 1,201,524 931,002 454,728 - - 1025720 3,613,004
-HEEHH - held-to-maturity 502,010 1,000,024 4,74 3,007,888 476,335 - 5817998
MEBARRE Investment in subsidiaries 1,628,130 - - 2,390 - 103,060 1,733,580
RERTRE Investment in a joint venture - - - - - 120,554 120,554
EEEE Fixed assets - - - - - 19,000 19,000
BB e Prepayments, deposits and
REMEE other assets - - - - - 36,681 36,681
BRBEE Reinsurance assets - - - - - 266,101 266,101
BEE Total assets 40,527,060 9,235,144 1,320,350 3,155,322 491,238 3,501,681 58,320,804
& Liabilities
R & Interest payable - - - - - 442,217 442,217
B ENRY Accounts payable, accrued
REMEE expenses and other liabiliies 4,724,848 - - - - 186,101 4,910,949
fTESRIE Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 158,246 158,246
JERHE Tax payable - - - - - 131,850 131,850
BRBBEE Deferred tax liabilities - - - - - 15,213 15,213
RBRAE Insurance liabilties - - - - - 1,462,318 1,462,318
BREERES Debt securities issued 6,043,151 6,203,644 6664434 19,688,772 5805072 - 44,495,073
Eaf Total liabilties 10,767,999 6,203,644 6,664,434 19,688,772 5805072 2,395,945 51,615,866
HERBERO AR Total interest sensitivity gap* 29,750,061 2,941,500  (5,344,075)  (16,533,450)  (5,313,834)
FIRfTEIR Interest rate derivatives
(BATENEZLH) (notional amounts of
net position) (12,481,010) (14,378,873) 2,715,050 18,876,598 5,361,536

CARRATTAESRMIASESHD BT
BEESFNTE -

* before the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments on the
debt securities issued.
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—EAME  SEAME —E5E
—EAR =={88 E—f =HE T8
Upto  Over 1 month  Over 3 months Over 1 year RERE Non-interest fam
1 month to 3 months to 1 year to 5 years Over 5 years bearing Total
£4%E T FHTL T T FHTL T FHTL
The Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZEENE As at 31 December 2008
+-A=t-H
BE Assets
BeREHES Cash and short-term funds 2,681,817 164,800 206,150 - - 40,491 3,093,258
FEUFI S RER Interest and remittance
receivables - - - - - 1,334,485 1,334,485
fTESBIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 2,237,526 2,237,526
ERAREE Loan portfolio, net 34,856,337 15,878,446 14,041 11,288 - - 50,760,112
FHRE - Investment securities:
- A E - available-for-sale - 1,209,825 - - - 842,727 2,052,552
-HEZHH - held-to-maturity 875,431 387,550 1,401,822 2,566,293 393,570 - 5,614,666
AEDNARE Investment in a joint venture - - - - - 113,532 113,532
ERéE Fixed assets - - - - - 14,302 14,302
BHE %2 Prepayments, deposits and
REMEE other assets - - - - - 30,555 30,555
BREHEEE Deferred tax assets - - - - - 28,904 28,904
BREEE Reinsurance assets - - - - - 348,442 348,442
BaE Total assets 38413565 1764061 1622013 2567581 393570 4990964 65608334
af Liabilties
e 7 & Interest payable - - - - - 469,965 469,965
TR ERRAX Accounts payable, acorued
REMAE expenses and other liabilities 4,088,880 - - - - 94,813 4,183,693
fTESRIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 214,994 214,994
[ERFE Tax payable - - - - - 47,866 47,866
RRAR Insurance liabilities - - - - - 908,740 908,740
NEESBH Advance from Exchange Fund 8,000,000 - - - - - 8,000,000
BENERES Debt securities issued 10,079,026 5,244,478 5,791,690 14,969,795 6,729,999 - 42,814,938
BEEEES Mortgage-backed securities
issued 1,257,577 - 990,027 978,020 - - 3,225,624
BafE Total liabites 23425483 5204478 6781717 15947815 6729099 1736378 59,865,870
MEFRERD AR Total interest sensitivity gap* 14988102 12,396,143  (5,159,704) (13,380,234)  (6,336,429)
Hl=HTET A Interest rate derivatives
(HEFENEZER) (notional amounts of
net position) (16,562,510) (8723435 6,172,000 13974060 5,139,885
* REFATESBMIAEEERHEET * before the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments on the
BEREFROBITIRBESNZE - debt securities and the mortgage-backed securities issue.
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—EAKE  =EANE —FNE
—@AR =={@8 & Eaf TiA
Upto  Over 1 month  Over 3 months Over 1 year AFELE Non-interest B
1 month to 3 months to 1 year to 5 years Over 5 years bearing Total
KRR FHT T FHTL FHT T FHTL FHT
The Company HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZENE As at 31 December 2008
+-A=t+-H
BE Assets
ReREHES Cash and short-term funds 2,662,755 164,800 187,400 - - 39780  3,054735
EYA 8 RER Interest and remittance
receivables - - - - - 1,322,591 1,322,591
fTESBTA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 2,159,479 2,159,479
EisFE Loan portfolio, net 30,776,325 15,878,446 13,191 10,323 - - 46,678,285
EHRE Investment securities:
— AfLE - available-for-sale - 1,200,825 - - - 842,727 2,052,552
- HEEIH - held-to-maturity 875,431 387,550 1,401,822 2,556,203 393,570 - 5,614,666
MEARRE Investment in a subsidiary 2,208,160 - 854 967 - 1,000 2,210,981
BENARE Investment in a joint venture - - - - - 122,097 122,097
BEAE Fixed assets - - - - - 14,302 14,302
BR7E  #e Prepayments, deposits and
REMEE other assets - - - - - 38,118 38,118
BREHEEE Deferred tax assets - - - - - 28,889 28,889
BREEE Reinsurance assets - - - - - 348,442 348,442
BaE Total assets 36,522,671 17,640,621 1,603,267 2,567,583 393570 4917425 63,645,137
aff Liabilties
ERHE Interest payable - - - - - 462,518 462,518
ERER  ENAX Accounts payable, accrued
REMAR expenses and other liabilities 4,831,846 - - - - 147,664 4,979,510
fTEERIE Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 214,994 214,994
ERHE Tax payable - - - - - 47,866 47,866
REEE Insurance liabilties - - - - - 908,740 908,740
MNEES B Advance from Exchange Fund 8,000,000 - - - - - 8,000,000
BETERES Debt securities issued 10,524,361 5244478 5791690 14,969,795 6,729,999 - 43,260,323
BefE Total iabilties 23,356,207 5,244,478  5791,600 14,969,795 6729999 1,781,782 57,873,951
HMEHBERO LT Total interest sensitivity gap* 13,166,464 12,396,143  (4,188423)  (12,402,212)  (6,336,429)
FlxfTETA Interest rate derivatives
HEFENEREH) (notional amounts of
net position) (146725100 (8,723,435  5432,000 12,824,060 5,139,885

TASERSYDET

before the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments on the

L 1 ¢ 4 L R
nBETRBIEAEEREEELN
BRI ARERD ARBENERIZHE
EMREMR - AEBEFRENESRA
M - SHERTE T AT SRR AR
HEEtEHESRALRE - AEERA
FE SRR FEXGERREFSE
MBEES BERBEEZESTEH
HRBESHRETES -

el

debt securities issued.
3.4. Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk represents the risk of the Group not being able to repay
its payment obligations or to fund committed purchases of loans.
Liquidity risk is managed by monitoring the actual inflow and outflow
of funds on a daily basis and projecting longer-term inflows and
outflows of funds across a full maturity spectrum. The Group has
established diversified funding sources to support the growth of its
business and the maintenance of a balanced portfolio of liabilities.
Source of liquidity are regularly reviewed by ALCO.



& B IEIBE 5 AR A 7 The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited

— TN, FF 3R Annual Report 2009

(a) RYTBLBLE B Hr
TRIVRAE BN 2 W RIZRIER
BRFHREFTESREE A
FEEERENTESBABERNA
REEERENITESRTANR
ERE - RAKBENSERTARE
WATHRAERE  BRRERR
MR BE A KB H B Rt B R R AE
AR - ARENTETABYE
RRFREEEENN R I KRR

(a) Undiscounted cash flows analysis

The table below presents cash flows payable by the Group under
non-derivative financial liabilities, derivative financial liabilities that
will be settled on a net basis and derivative financial instruments
that will be settled on gross basis by remaining contractual
maturities as at the end of the reporting period. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the projected contractual undiscounted
cash flows including future interest payments on the basis of
their earliest possible contractual maturity. The Group’s
derivatives include interest rate swaps that will be settled on net

RBEEEGENERHREAREY

basis; and cross currency swaps, currency forward contracts

HEEH - that will be settled on gross basis.
—EARE =EAME —F5E
—fEAR Z={@5 & ZHE
Upto Over 1 month Over 3 months Over 1 year BEULE B
1 month to 3 months to 1 year to 5 years Over 5 years Total
*&EE TR Fi#a Fign TR T Figx
The Group HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000
RZBERE As at 31 December 2009
+=A=t-8
FTERE RS Non-derivative cash outflows
BfE Liabilities
BEIERKES Debt securities issued (1,118,623) (3,715,322) (7,917,958 (28,083,715 (7,500,004) (48,335,622)
BREITRBES Mortgage-backed securities issued (49,315) (30,227)  (401,388) (1,611,674) - (2,092,604)

(1,167,938)  (3,745,549)  (8,319,346) (29,695,389) (7,500,004) (50,428,226)

FTERSRA/ ()

Derivative cash inflows/(outflows)

ETHIRELEER Derivative financial instrument settled:
frEeRIA :
- FRAR - on net basis (11,212) (5,829) (84,151) (31,888) (7,253)  (140,333)
-BEEE - on gross basis
Nkt Total outflow (1,363,581)  (1,276,362)  (4,185,396) (15,797,991) (613,371) (23,236,701)
mABE Total inflow 1,357,584 1,281,986 4,187,431 15,792,814 608,060 23,227,875
(17,209) (205) (82,116) (37,065) (12,564) (149,159)
—fAAE =EARE —EHE
—~BARK Z={@A -5 ZRE
Upto Over 1 month Over 3 months Over 1 year BENL %)
1 month to 3 months to 1 year to5years  Over 5 years Total
AAT FARL FHRT FHT FHRL FHRT FHT
The Company HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZBhE As at 31 December 2009
+=A=+-H
FOTER SR Non-derivative cash outflows
BfE Liabilities
BERTEBES Debt securities issued (1,118,623)  (3,715,322) (7,917,958) (28,083,715) (7,500,004) (48,335,622

fTERERA/ (RH)

Derivative cash inflows/(outflows)

BT RELEN Derivative financial instrument settled:
fTESRTIA:
- FEEE - on net basis (11,212) (5,829) (84,151) (31,888) (7,253)  (140,333)
-BEEE - on gross basis
ot Total outflow (1,363,581)  (1,276,362)  (4,185,396) (15,797,991)  (613,371) (23,236,701)
MALE Total inflow 1,357,584 1,281,986 4,187,431 15,792,814 608,060 23,227,875
(17,209) (205) (82,116) (37,065) (12,564)  (149,159)
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—fEANE =AM E —FHE
—@ARA Z=EA E—fF ZR¥
Upto  Over 1month  Over 3 months Over 1 year AERE ek
1 month to 3 months to 1 year to 5 years Over 5 years Total
A&EE FET FHET FET FET FHET FET
The Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZEEN\F As at 31 December 2008
+=A=t+-H
FITERS R Non-derivative cash outflows
aff Liabilties
BBTERES Debt securities issued (6,660,320) (2,078,979  (3,709,327) (25,822,304)  (7,530,588) (45,801,518)
BETREE Mortgage-backed securties issued (13,068) (44,943 (1,136,283  (2,183,220) - (3377514
(6,673,388)  (2,123,922)  (4,845,610) (28,005,524)  (7,530,588) (49,179,032)
TTERERA/ (RL) Derivative cash inflows/(outflows)
RTSIRELEER Derivative financial instrument settled:
PTAESRIA:
- FREAR - on net basis 8,616 6,225 (64,687)  (106,946) 170 (156,622)
-BEEE - on gross basis
ikt Total outflow (821,700)  (4,146,870)  (2,294,685)  (9,463,556)  (1,053,100) (17,779,911)
MALR Total inflow 786,236 4,141,430 2,240,134 9,425,543 1,046,124 17,639,467
(26,848) 785 (119,238 (144,959) (6,806)  (297,066)
—fEANUE =EANKE —FUE
—@AR Z=fEA E—F ERE
Upto  Over 1 month  Over 3 months Over 1 year RAERE ik
1 month to 3 months to 1 year to 5 years Over 5 years Total
NG| FRT FHET FHT FRT FHET FHT
The Company HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZEN\F As at 31 December 2008
+=A=+-H
FTER SR Non-derivative cash outflows
aff Liabilities
BETEEES Debt securities issued (7,106,009) (2,078,979  (3,709,327) (25,822,304) (7,530,588) (46,247,207
TEBRERA/ (Rit) Derivative cash inflows/(outflows)
ETHIRELEER Derivative financial instrument settled:
TESRIA:
- REEE - on net basis 8,616 6,225 (64,687) (106,946) 170 (156,622
-BREEE - on gross basis
it Total outflow (821,700)  (4,146,870)  (2,294,685)  (9,463,556)  (1,053,100) (17,779,911)
MALE Total inflow 786,236 4,141,430 2,240,134 9,425,543 1,046,124 17,639,467
(26,848) 785 (119,238) (144,959 (6,806) (297,066)
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(b) #39 H 2 (b) Maturity analysis
TERBEBEEZRAREEHEEHBF The table below analyses the Group’s assets and liabilities into
HEBZEI B EERBEST ° relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at
the end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity date.
—fBANE ZEANL —FEHE
BEEH —@AR ZZf@A E-fF ZRF
Repayable Upto Over1month Over3months  Over 1year BENLE ERH ft]
on demand 1 month to 3 months to 1 year to5years  Over 5 years Undated Total
AEH FHT FHRE FHL TR FHT FHT FHE FHT
The Group HK$000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
RZEBRE As at 31 December 2009
+-A=+-R
BE Assets
ReRAHES Cash and short-term funds 57,248 3,593,937 410,934 5,679 - - - 4,067,798
ERds Loan portfolio 11,181 1,039,425 879,296 4,454,273 18,062,261 19,331,884 24,407 43,802,727
EHRE Investment securities
- A E - available-for-sale - 1,201,524 931,092 454,728 - - 1,025720 3,613,064
S CE - held-to-maturity - 155,071 637,241 1,023,674  3,525677 476,335 - 5817,998
BRREE Reinsurance assets - - - - - - 266,101 266,101
68,429  5980,957 2,858,563 5,938,354 21,587,938 19,808,219 1,316,228 57,567,688
g% Liabilities
RREE Insurance liabilities - - - - - - 1,462,318 1,462,318
BENERES Debt securities issued - 1,238,693 4,663,947 7,369,542 25,318,031 5,904,860 - 44,495,073
BETREES Mortgage-backed securities
issued - 53,369 64,783 361,301 1,540,941 - - 2,020,394
- 1,202062 4,728,730 7,730,843 26,858,972 5,904,860 1,462,318 47,977,785
“EAWE  =EANE —EHE
BB —-@AR E=fA E—f E5E
Repayable Upto Over1month Over3months  Over1year BENLE ERE B8
on demand 1 month to 3 months to 1 year to5years  Over 5 years Undated Total
LT FETL FHRT FHT FHRT FHT FHT T FHT
The Company HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R=2BhE As at 31 December 2009
t=A=+-A
BE Assets
ReREHES Cash and short-term funds 44,740 3,573,012 307,000 - - - - 3,924,752
Enas Loan portfolio 9,543 891,005 801,897 4,129,002 16,885,678 18,090,064 23,859 40,831,138
EHRE Investment securities
-AHNE - avallable-for-sale - 1,201,524 931,092 454,728 - - 1025720 3,613,064
] - held-to-maturity - 155,071 637,241 1,023,674  3,525677 476,335 - 5817,998
BREBEAE Reinsurance assets - - - - - - 266,101 266,101
54,283 5820612 2,677,230 5,607,494 20,411,355 18,566,399 1,315,680 54,453,053
8 Liabilities
RRAE Insurance liabilities - - - - - - 1,462,318 1,462,318
BEIERES Debt securities issued - 1,238,693 4,663,947 7,369,542 25,318,031 5,904,860 - 44,495,073
- 1,208693 4,663,947 7,369,542 25318,031  5904,860 1,462,318 45,957,391
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—EANE  SEAME —FHE
EDES 3|2 —EAR Z=fEA z—% ERE
Repayable Upto  Over1month Over 3 months Over 1 year AEMNE mR 3
on demand 1 month to 3 months to 1 year to 5 years Over 5 years Undated Total
AEE FATL FHT FATL FHT FATL AL FATL FATL
The Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZTNE As at 31 December 2008
+-A=+-H
3 Assets
BeREHES Cash and short-term funds 38,444 2,683,804 164,800 206,150 - - - 3,003,268
X344 Loan portfolio 8,729 1,006,930 1425123 5,169,544 27,003,734 16,136,222 60,366 50,810,648
BHRE Investment securities
- AfHE - avallable-for-sale - 696,856 512,969 - - - 82721 2,062,552
-RAZHH - held-to-maturity - 452472 355433 1,401,822 2,996,067 408,872 - 5,614,666
BREBAE Reinsurance assets - - - - - - 348442 348,442
47173 4,840,122 2,458,325 6,777,616 29,999,801 16,545,094 1,251,535 61,919,566
af Liabilities
REEE Insurance liabilities - - - - - - 908,740 908,740
BRTERES Debt securities issued - 6,842,666 2,387,257 5835259 20,922,519 6,827,287 - 42,814,988
BRTERBESR Mortgage-backed securities
issued - 99,301 87,224 830,998 2,208,101 - - 3,225,624
- BOM96T 2474481 6666257 23130620 6,827,287 908740 46,949,352
—EAME  ZEAME —FHE
B05 313 —BEARK =4 R ER%
Repayable Upto  Over 1 month  Over 3 months Over 1 year AEHNE ERH ok
on demand 1 month to 3 months to 1 year to 5 years Over 5 years Undated Total
ARF THET FHET THET FHET FET FiEL FET FiEL
The Company HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZBENE As at 31 December 2008
+-A=1-H
AE Assets
ReREdEs Cash and short-term funds 36,342 2,666,193 164,800 187,400 - - - 3,054,735
E44 Loan portfolio 7,869 937,317 1,248549 4,791,178 25,265,027 14,422,538 55,580 46,728,058
EHRE Investment securities
-AfHE - avallable-for-sale - 696,856 512,969 - - - 82721 2,052,552
e - held-to-maturity - 452,472 355,433 1,401,822 2,996,067 408,872 - 5,614,666
BREBAE Reinsurance assefs - - - - - - 348442 348,442
44211 4,752,838 2,281,751 6,380,400 28,261,094 14,831,410 1,246,749 57,798,453
af Liabilities
RREE Insurance liabilities - - - - - - 908,740 908,740
BREIEHES Debt securities issued - 7,288,001 2387257 5835259 20,922,519 6,827,287 - 43,260,323
- 7088001 2387057 5835250 20922519 6827287 908740 44,169,063
3.5 36 D8 Bg M B 3.5 Mortgage insurance risk
REBMAZKEES EEBHFEERE The Group offers mortgage insurance which provides cover to the
Z1BRE - sHEEBERBRREORE Approved Sellers/Servicers for first credit losses of up to 25% - 30%
e ] ERIBERZ MEEEN25% of the property value of a mortgage loan with loan-to-value ratio
E£30% - I ERGEREEDEE below 95% at origination.

B ETGHIBI5% °

EREE DR ASERREGEE The risk under any one insurance contract is the possibility that the
BRI BEME R FTSI BRI R R S EEM T ETE insured event occurs and the uncertainty of the amount of the
%o RBREASOANTFHEE - HER resulting claim. By the very nature of an insurance contract, this risk
R EPER - F UL T RETRET - is random and therefore unpredictable.
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For a portfolio of insurance contracts where the theory of probability
is applied to pricing and provisioning, the principal risk that the Group
faces under its insurance contracts is that the actual claims exceed
the carrying amount of the insurance liabilities. This could occur
because the frequency or severity of claims are greater than
estimated. Insurance events are random and the actual number and
amount of claims and benefits will vary from year to year from the
estimate established using statistical techniques.

Experience shows that the larger the portfolio of similar insurance
contracts, the smaller the relative variability about the expected
outcome will be. In addition, a more diversified portfolio is less likely
to be affected across the board by a change in any subset of the
portfolio. The Group has developed a business strategy to diversify
the type of mortgage insurance risks accepted and within each of
the key categories to achieve a sufficiently large population of risks
to reduce the variability of the expected outcome.

The frequency and severity of claims can be affected by several
factors. The most significant are a downturn of the economy and a
slump in the local property market. Economic downturn, which may
cause a rise in defaulted payment, affects the frequency of claims. A
drop in property prices, where the collateral value falls below the
outstanding balance of the mortgage loan, will increase the severity
of claims.

The Group manages these risks by adopting a set of prudent
insurance eligibility criteria. To ensure sufficient provision is set
aside for meeting future claim payments, the Group calculates
technical reserves on prudent liability valuation assumptions and
the method prescribed in the regulatory guidelines. The Group
also takes out quota-share reinsurance from its approved
mortgage reinsurers in an effort to limit its risk exposure. The
Group conducts comprehensive assessment including the
financial strength and credit ratings of the mortgage reinsurers in
accordance with the approved selection framework set by the
Credit Committee. The approved mortgage reinsurers are subject
to periodic reviews.

As at 31 December 2009, if total loss ratio had increased by 1%,
profit before tax for the year would have been HK$1.7 million
(2008: HK$1.3 million) lower. If total loss ratio had decreased by
1%, profit before tax for the year would have been HK$1.7 million
(2008: HK$1.3 million) higher.
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S A K A E A 3.6
AT EGHEMEETISERRETT
B MRS R R o

TREE L ARNAEERBARKRIE R
FEBB2IINEREERAGERRE
EEAFE EAEARGAEENR
FE - MEHENARETEENRF

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

Fair value estimate are made at a specific point in time based on
relevant market information and the characteristics of the financial
instruments.

The following table summarises the carrying amounts and fair values
of those financial assets and liabilities not wholly presented on the
Group’s statement of financial position at their fair value. Bid prices
are used to estimate fair values of assets, whereas offer prices are

(= applied for liabilities.
BREE AYE
Carrying value Fair value
2009 2008 2009 2008
FiEx FTET FiEx FTHET
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
SRMEE Financial assets
BHeMEHES Cash and short-term funds 4,067,798 @ 3,093,258 4,067,798 @ 3,093,258
BB FE Loan portfolio, net 43,788,716 = 50,760,112 43,788,716 50,760,112
BHKE Investment securities

- BEEIH

TERAE
Hib & &
BEBITERES
BEBITIRBES

— held-to-maturity

Financial liabilities

Other liabilities

Debt securities issued

Mortgage-backed
securities issued

5,817,998 5,614,666 5,935,727 5,644,179

4,133,740 4,088,880 4,133,740 4,088,880
41,648,925 38,101,573 41,655,241 38,108,085

2,020,394 3,225,624 2,011,421 3,211,027
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The following methods and assumptions have been used to estimate
the fair values of financial instruments:

(a) Cash and short-term funds

Cash and short-term funds include bank deposits. The fair value
of floating-rate deposits is the carrying amount. The estimated
fair value of fixed-rate deposits, which are normally less than 3
months, is based on discounted cash flows using prevailing
money-market interest rates for debts with similar credit risk and
remaining maturity. Therefore, the fair value of the deposits is
approximately equal to their carrying value.

(b) Loan portfolio, net, and mortgage-backed securities issued
under the MBS Pass-Through Programme
Loan portfolio is stated net of impairment allowance. An
insignificant portion of loan portfolio bears interest at fixed rate.
Therefore, the carrying value of loan portfolio and the mortgage-
backed securities issued is a reasonable estimate of the fair value.
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(c) Investment securities

Investment securities include only interest-bearing assets held
to maturity, assets classified as available-for-sale are measured
at fair value. Fair value for held-to-maturity assets is based on
market prices or broker/dealer price quotations. Where this
information is not available, fair value has been estimated using
quoted market prices for securities with similar credit, maturity
and yield characteristics.

(d) Debt securities issued

The aggregate fair values are calculated based on quoted market
prices. For those notes where quoted market prices are not
available, a discounted cash flow model is used based on a
current yield curve appropriate for the remaining term to maturity.

(e) Mortgage-backed securities issued under the Bauhinia MBS

Programme

The aggregate fair values are calculated based on quoted market
prices. For those notes where quoted market prices are not
available, a discounted cash flow model is used based on a
current yield curve appropriate for the remaining term to maturity.

(f) Other liabilities

Other liabilities represent the deferred consideration used for
credit enhancement on the mortgage loans purchased from the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
("HKSAR”) in December 2003 and January 2004. The fair value
of other liabilities approximates the carrying amount.

(g) Financial instruments measured at fair value in the financial

statements

There is no (2008: nil) financial instrument measured at fair value
using a valuation technique that is not supported by observable
market data.

TRIRIR R FEERBLARBEA TR
AENATESTNEMIA

The following table shows financial instruments recognised at fair
value, analysed between those whose fair value is based on:

s HREERBENFEM ST 2RE

(-8

e Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
(Level 1);

s RE—EREREZHEIN  HEER
BEREE (WMRME) kHE (NIKEE
RIEE) TBRZ B (E_E) &

e Those involving inputs other than quoted prices included in Level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (as
prices) or indirectly (derived from prices) (Level 2); and

s FREERABIIFENABRLZT
S8E (TR 288 (B=F) -

® Those with inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs) (Level 3).
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*Em EUY
The Group The Company
E—m E=g @it =& E=m@ @t
Level 1 Level 2 Total Level 1 Level 2 Total
THR THR T TR THR TR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
RZEEAE+-A=1-H As at 31 December 2009
BE Assets
fESBIA Derivative financial instruments - 1317375 1,317,375 - 1273102 1,273,102
EHRA Investment securities
- MEHE - available-for-sale 1,104,186 2,508,878 3,613,064 1,104,186 2,508,878 3,613,064
1,104,186 3,826,253 4,930,439 1,104,186 3,781,980 4,886,166
=t Liabilities
fTESBIA Derivative financial instruments - 158246 158,246 - 158,246 158,246
NEBAEETAAATE Debt securities issued designated
2t AERR as at fair value through profit or
BREIEBESR loss upon initial recognition - 2,846,148 2,846,148 - 2,846,148 2,846,148
- 3,004,394 3,004,394 - 3,004,394 3,004,394
AEERARRREFEEABRE= Neither the Group nor the Company hold any financial instruments
MEemITA- categorized as Level 3.
3.7 BAREH 3.7 Capital management
REBEBEN (W EHEE A The Group’s objectives when managing capital, which is a broader
BHRAREEN =] BE) ME /MW concept than the ‘equity’ on the face of the statement of financial
T position, are:
o FEBBERITHEBAYER R e To comply with the capital requirements set by the Financial
R (BB AIAI&R]) flEMERR Secretary of the Government of the Hong Kong Special
E Administrative Region (“Financial Secretary”);
o MRALEFELEMNES ¢ To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
BEAR R ER so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders;
e WRHAEENREERER: e To support the Group’s stability and growth;
e WBEMERERRERMNAENRE e To allocate capital in an efficient and risk based approach to
N %{ﬁftkﬁi\%ﬂxiﬂ’%& ﬁEﬂ optimise risk adjusted return to the shareholders; and
WwWEH &
e WFRIHEMNEAEMIFERZ ¢ To maintain a strong capital base to support the development of
R - its business.
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Capital adequacy and the use of regulatory capital are monitored
daily by the Group’s management in accordance with the guidelines
issued by the Financial Secretary. The minimum Capital-to-Assets
ratio (“CAR”) stipulated in the guidelines is 5%. The CAR is calculated
as a ratio, expressed as a percentage, of the Group’s total capital
base to the sum of its total on-balance sheet and total off-balance
sheet risk-weighted exposures.

The Chief Executive Officer is required to submit a report to the Board
of Directors on a quarterly basis by reference to the guidelines issued
by the Financial Secretary. Any breach or likely breach of the CAR
guidelines must be reported to the Financial Secretary.

The Group’s capital base comprises share capital, share premium,
retained profits and contingency reserve created by appropriations
of retained profits, allowance for loan impairment under collective
assessment and other reserve.

The capital adequacy framework takes into account different levels
of risk embedded in assets. Conversion factors are applied to assets
according to their nature and reflecting an estimate of underlying
risks, taking into account any eligible collateral or guarantee. A similar
treatment is adopted for off-balance sheet exposures, with some
adjustments to reflect the more contingent nature of the potential
losses.

The table below summarises the composition of capital base and
the ratios of the Group as at the end of the reporting period. During
the year, the Group complied with all of the capital requirement set
by the Financial Secretary.

2009 2008

FERT FET

HK$’000 HK$'000

[N Share capital 2,000,000 2,000,000

R A Retained profits 3,925,694 = 3,485,513

2B e A Contingency reserves 189,833 123,545

HAth A1 Other reserves 160,329 (29,928)
A& R EERURE Allowance for loan impairment under

BT 1 2 & collective assessment 14,011 50,536

BABE Total capital base 6,289,867 5,629,666

BARE & L K CAR 9.5% 8.7%
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Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported

amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. Estimates

and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical

experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that

are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1

4.2

4.3

Impairment allowances on loan portfolio

The Group reviews its loan portfolio to assess impairment at least
on a quarterly basis. In determining whether an impairment loss
should be recorded in the income statement, the Group makes
judgements as to whether there is any observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows from a portfolio of loans before the decrease can be identified
with an individual loan in that portfolio. This evidence may include
observable data indicating that there has been an adverse change
in the payment status of borrowers in a group or economic conditions
that correlate with defaults on assets in the group. Management
uses estimates based on historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics and objective evidence of impairment similar
to those in the portfolio when scheduling its future cash flows. The
methodology and assumptions used for estimating both the amount
and timing of future cash flows are reviewed regularly to reduce any
differences between loss estimates and actual loss experience.

Fair value of derivatives

The fair value of financial instruments that are not quoted in active
markets are determined by using valuation techniques. Where
valuation techniques (for example, models) are used to determine
fair value, they are validated and periodically reviewed by qualified
personnel independent of the area that created them. All models
are validated before they are used, and models are calibrated to
ensure that outputs reflect actual data and comparative market
prices. To the extent practical, models use only observable data,
however areas such as credit risk, volatilities and correlations require
management to make estimates. Changes in assumptions about
these factors could affect reported fair value of financial instruments.
Sensitivity analysis is set out in Note 3.3.

Impairment of available-for-sale investments

The Group determines that available-for-sale investments are
impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value below its cost. This determination of what is significant
or prolonged requires judgement. In making this judgement, the
Group evaluates, among other factors, the normal volatility in listed
price. In addition, impairment may be appropriate when there is
evidence of a deterioration in the financial health of the investment,
industry and sector performance, changes in technology, and
operational and financing cash flows.
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4.4 Held-to-maturity investments

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 on classifying non-
derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and
fixed maturity as held-to-maturity. This classification requires
significant judgement. In making this judgement, the Group evaluates
its intention and ability to hold such investments to maturity. If the
Group fails to keep these investments to maturity other than for the
specific circumstances defined in HKAS 39, it will be required to
reclassify the entire class as available-for-sale and measured at
fair value, not amortised cost.

4.5 Profits tax

The Group is subject to profits tax in Hong Kong. Significant estimates
are required in determining the provision for profits tax. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact on the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is
made.

5. Segment analysis

The Group is principally engaged in mortgage business. Other activities
such as debt issuance to fund the mortgage purchase and investment to
reinvest the surplus funds from mortgage receipt are considered ancillary to
mortgage business. The Group is also organised in such a way that
performance is measured at Group level in single segment for mortgage
business.

Although the mortgage business is managed as a single segment, the
mortgage businesses are located in four geographical areas, namely Hong
Kong, Korea, Malaysia and China. The segment for Hong Kong includes
the mortgage business in Hong Kong. The segment for non-Hong Kong
includes the mortgage assets in Korea, investment in a joint venture in
Malaysia and investment in a subsidiary in Shenzhen, People’s Republic of
China. The chief operating decision maker assesses the performance based
on geographical segments.

173




B3 £ I 5 R A
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TREWEEZEZZZNFR_FZN\F+=A The following tables represent revenue and profit information for operating
—t+tHIFELENANKE L EFER o segments for the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008. Comparative
AL EHFODEBIATAE BT HREEE]  figures have been restated to conform to the requirements of HKFRS 8.
E8MNMRTE o

B *ER 2%
Hong Kong Non-Hong Kong Total
FET FET FRT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BEZE_ZZNF+-HA=1+—HLFE Year ended 31 December 2009
FB U4 A Interest income 1,056,085 282,216 1,338,301
F B Interest expense (176,106) (124,488) (300,594)
FRLEHA Net interest income 879,979 157,728 1,037,707
H b A Other income 230,584 1,004 231,588
FE TGN Operating income 1,110,563 158,732 1,269,295
L Operating expenses (123,337) (34,499) (157,836)
RET IR B AT A 48 & i 7 Operating profit before impairment 987,226 124,233 1,111,459
B ROR (B = 8 Write-back of loan impairment
allowances 36,837 - 36,837
BihE &R a)m Share of profit of a joint venture - 1,922 1,922
W 758 Bl g A Profit before tax 1,024,063 126,155 1,150,218
TE Taxation (144,186)
AN E R A Profit for the year 1,006,032
FAREARFX Capital expenditure during the year 15,111 2,734 17,845
BB FEB FE
Hong Kong  Non-Hong Kong Total
FIBTT T FHBIT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BHEZZZ\FT+ZA=T—"HLFE Year ended 31 December 2008
F 2 A Interest income 1,475,276 349,938 1,825,214
FIEZH Interest expense (840,697) (274,667) (1,115,364)
=R ESRI PN Net interest income 634,579 75,271 709,850
E g A Other income 102,100 - 102,100
AN Operating income 736,679 75,271 811,950
gy Operating expenses (118,844) (22,905) (141,749)
ARETRUE AT A A8 A g Operating profit before impairment 617,835 52,366 670,201
EFRERE Loan impairment charge (36,225) = (36,225)
i R =N = Share of loss of a joint venture - (8) (8)
W 758 Bl g A Profit before tax 581,610 52,358 633,968
TE Taxation (28,974)
REZ i F Profit for the year 604,994
FREARHEZ Capital expenditure during the year 7,389 = 7,389
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3 FER Y
Hong Kong Non-Hong Kong Total
FHT FHT FHT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

R-ZEZEAF+=-A=+—H As at 31 December 2009
DBEE Segment assets 44,027,821 15,607,613 59,635,434
EERNRIEE Investment in a joint venture - 115,190 115,190
REE Total assets 44,027,821 15,722,803 59,750,624
DEEE Segment liabilities 37,511,123 15,498,410 53,009,533
B FEA @
Hong Kong ~ Non-Hong Kong Total
FHT FHT FHT
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000

R_ZEENF+_A=+—H As at 31 December 2008
DREE Segment assets 49,496,237 16,018,565 65,514,802
AERNEIERE Investment in a joint venture = 113,532 113,532
BREE Total assets 49,496,237 16,132,097 65,628,334
HDIEEE Segment liabilities 43,847,305 16,018,565 59,865,870
6. FlEWA 6. Interest income
AEE
The Group

2009 2008
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
I%f%‘ Hae Loan portfolio 1,060,315 1,311,680
BekEHEe Cash and short-term funds 36,328 147,117
BHERE-—LEW Investment securities — listed 82,176 68,731
BHEEE-IELET Investment securities — unlisted 159,482 297,686
1,338,301 1,825,214

NEEZFBWAEFEA88,00087L (ZZZ/\  Included within interest income is HK$488,000 for the year (2008: HK$690,000)
F 1 690,000 7T) ERIEREERMESTFE  with respect to interest income accrued on individually impaired loans.
N

7. FIEH 7.  Interest expense
AEE
The Group
2009 2008
FET FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
BARAFABHEBNRITERR Bank loans, debt and MBS issued
BRITERE RIEBES wholly repayable within 5 years 241,376 887,654
BARAFARNBHEENE BT Debt and MBS issued not
B RIREE & wholly repayable within 5 years 59,218 227,710
300,594 1,115,364

NEE R B H B 1£220,700,0008 7T (—ZFZE  Included within interest expenses are HK$220.7 million (2008: HK$399.3 million)
J\AF : 399,300,00078 7T) W IEAAFEE (LT for financial liabilities that are not at fair value through profit and loss.
ANEZMEREE -
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8. HAthlt A 8.  Other income
w5
The Group
2009 2008
FERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
REERBRAKBHIR Early prepayment fees and late charges 19,742 26,289
BEmERE F5E (sE14) Net insurance premiums earned (Note 14) 149,429 93,365
M H Z=#E Exchange difference 5,833 (40,455)
EMTEATFEES Change in fair value of financial instruments 13,011 (43,108)
A HE FHRENREW A Dividend income from available-for-sale listed investments 42,224 42,867
HEMHHERENKZFE  Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale
(P 3E11) investments (Note 11) 5,277 26,026
Hith Others (3,928) (2,884)
231,588 102,100

SRMTEAFEZHEE N U TZIBBNEM
MWEETBAFEHTHEPT ERAFE
fE518783,300,0008 T (ZEZ/)\F : Wz

Change in fair value of financial instruments represents the aggregate of (i)
HK$783.3 million (2008: HK$1,482.2 million gain) fair value loss on hedging
instruments designated as fair value hedge and HK$785.4 million (2008:
1,482,200,000/8 70) M@ ¥ mIEH A FE  HK$1,482.2 million loss) fair value gain on the hedged items; and (i) HK$31.6
W 75785,400,0008 L (ZEZ/)\F : BE  milion (2008: HK$5.4 million gain) fair value loss on derivatives designated
1,482,200,000%87T) : K ()IEEABUAFEE  as at fair value through profit or loss and HK$42.5 million (2008: HK$48.5
{LEt AR OTAE T A QA FEEE31,600,000  million loss) fair value gain on issued debt securities designated as at fair
/%E (ZZEZ)N\F : 55,400,000 7T) &? value through profit or loss. In 2009, there is no ineffectiveness recognised in
NEEZETABEMERITERESLATF  the income statement that arises from cash flow hedges (2008: nil).

@Hﬁzﬁ42,5oo,ooo;%7z (ZZZNF : B8

48,500,000/ 7T) « R —EZNF - HENE

RANTERE R FE R SRR E £ R & JIE B

(ZZEZNF - |) -

9. KEH 9. Operating expenses
RE
The Group
2009 2008
FERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
EEKA Staff costs
o RAER Salaries and benefits 102,633 91,855
RIRGRRA — R H G S Pension costs — defined contribution plans 5,608 5,216
N E Premises
e Rental 7,268 6,368
HAf Others 7,050 6,333
E=Me Directors’ emoluments - =
& (fifta4) Depreciation (Note 24) 10,890 8,936
BF 48 & F R AR T Financial information services 5,593 5,164
R & Consultancy fees 6,702 6,327
Hhgss i Other operating expenses 12,092 11,550
157,836 141,749
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10. A% B <2 10. Auditor’s remuneration
rEHE

The Group
2009 2008
FERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
E IR Audit services 867 690
H AR 7% Other services 1,186 901
2,053 1,591

11, &R RE 11. Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale

W i P RE investments
rEH

The Group
2009 2008
FERT FHET
HK$°000 HK$'000

HEAMHHERERUZEFE © Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments:
- R—A—HBERER — realisation of amounts recognised in reserves

1B N RER M FUIR up to 1 January 3,522 24,329
— AEEEAWZFHE — net gain arising in current year 1,755 1,697
5,277 26,026

12, EEERUEE |3 7 (BE) 12. Write-back of loan impairment allowances/

(loan impairment charge)

REH
The Group
2009 2008
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
BIORER R (BE) Write-back of loan impairment allowances/
(loan impairment charge)
— &S (F13E20(0) — collective assessment (Note 20 (b)) 36,837 (36,225)
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13. BiIH 13. Taxation
(a) &R AR R BRI BEIE 2y - (a) Taxation charge in the consolidated income statement
represents:
REE
The Group
2009 2008
FHET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BEEFEE Hong Kong profits tax
— REZEE — Provision for current year 126,419 39,933
- BAFEREETR — Underprovision in prior years 15,110 2,242
141,529 42,175
EFERTE Deferred taxation
- AEELH(EE) — Charge/(credit) for current year 2,657 (13,201)
144,186 28,974
BLANGE [E E A Wb 5 FE R R A% Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
16.5% (ZZZF/)\F : 16.5%) KIF1 (2008: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year.
KERBANEBREE - BIEBIE Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences
ABEEKR16.5% (ZEZEN\F : under the liability method using a principal taxation rate of 16.5%
16.5%) M X 2H X E 2 AR E (2008: 16.5%).
EH o
7N 3] /9 Bk B BT i ) 9 7 18 ER R A The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from
BANMERAENEGEHENZED the theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate
N of Hong Kong as follows:
REHE
The Group
2009 2008
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BR A% g A Profit before taxation 1,150,218 633,968
#£16.5% (ZZF )\ F ! Calculated at a taxation rate of
16.5%) BT R+ & 16.5% (2008:16.5%) 189,786 104,605
EiEE & AR CaF) Tax effect of share of
EHBEORG T E (profit)/loss of a joint venture (317) 1
AT WA Income not subject to taxation (91,044) (138,820)
DATH0F # 7 2 Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes 30,651 60,946
BEFERETR Underprovision in prior years 15,110 2,242
TIEFA X Taxation charge 144,186 28,974
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(b) BN BN R BEIE % % - (b) Provision for taxation in the statement of financial position
I'CPI'CSCIltS:
RE PN/NG]
The Group The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
FERT FHET FERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BBFEHREE Provision for Hong Kong
profits tax 138,329 47,866 131,850 47,866
EEFHBEE Deferred tax liabilities/
(BE) (assets) 15,209 (28,904) 15,213 (28,889)
153,538 18,962 147,063 18,977
—EENFR_EEN\F+ A There was no significant unprovided deferred taxation as at
;+— H - BB R S ARBER 31 December 2009 and 2008.
FEFRIE o
LL%)“LIE (BE) BENETZEMARK The major components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities and the
DRFENEFHOT - movements during the year are as follows:
AEE
The Group
AR
IRBIEHTE  Impairment
Accelerated  allowances AFEEE BEREF
tax and HIEEE Fair value Cash flow g
depreciation provisions Tax losses changes hedges Total

FHET TR FTAT TR TAT THET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R-ZZEZNF—H—H Asat 1 January 2008 2,676 (784) (199) 25,684 1,165 28,542
RUWEEERA (GFA)  (Credit)/charged to the
kR income statement (179) (138,211) 189 — - (18,201)
T AREZA (FT5E32)  Credit to equity (Note 32) - - - (29,907) (14,338) (44,245)
RZZTZTNF As at 31 December 2008
+=—A=+—8 2,497 (13,995) (10) (4,223) (13,173) (28,904)
& T Akl Charged to the income
statement 951 1,696 10 - - 2,657
RiEz= A Bk (17£32) Charged to equity (Note 32) - - - 37,311 4,145 41,456
R=ZZBZhEF As at 31 December 2009
+=—A=+—H 3,448 (12,299) - 33,088 (9,028) 15,209
ARA
The Company
RERE
IRFBEHE  Impairment
Accelerated  allowances AT {E#E) b g
tax and Fair value Cash flow k)
depreciation provisions changes hedges Total

TR FTAT TR FTAT TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R-ZZEZENF—H—H Asat 1 January 2008 2,676 (779) 25,684 1,165 28,746
sFAMKZERA Credit to the income statement (179) (13,211) = - (13,390
T AREZA (FTzE32)  Credit to equity (Note 32) - - (29,907) (14,338) (44,245)
RZZTZTNF As at 31 December 2008

+=—A=+—8 2,497 (13,990) (4,223) (13,173) (28,889
& Tkl Charged to the income statement 951 1,695 - - 2,646
A AR (f5E32) Charged to equity (Note 32) - - 37,311 4,145 41,456
R=ZZBZhEF As at 31 December 2009

+=B=+-8 3,448 (12,295) 33,088 (9,028) 15,213
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14. % i DR i 2655 A U 46 R 14. Revenue account for mortgage insurance

business
AEE
The Group
2009 2008
FHERT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
ERE Gross premiums written 839,042 477,843
BRERRE Reinsurance premiums (54,392) (119,264)
Rbz & F5E (H5E27(a) Net premiums written (Note 27(a)) 784,650 358,579
AR HAOR B /O 38 AN 58 Increase in unearned premiums, net (613,572) (224,009)
B ER B F 8 (fizE27(a) Net premiums earned (Note 27(a)) 171,078 134,570
EER B R (:E27(b) Claims incurred (Note 27(b)) (21,649) (41,205)
B2 mEREFRE (fT8) Net premiums earned after provisions (Note 8) 149,429 93,365
ERAX (fiiEa) Management expenses (Note a) (14,399) (10,144)
AR Wz Underwriting gains 135,030 83,221
ihg=a Note
(a) BIEMZ AT LET HN—BD - (a) The management expenses formed part of the operating expenses in Note 9.
15, AAFE B Vi A 15. Profit for the year
N BB TERR A E AN F E %R 5973,951,000  The profit for the year is dealt with in the financial statements of the Company
BT (ZZEZF/)\F + 603,763,000/ 7T) ° to the extent of HK$973,951,000 (2008: HK$603,763,000).
16. S 16. Dividend
/NG|
The Company
2009 2008
FET T
HK$°000 HK$'000
FRR S TR EEAR0.25/ 7T Proposed dividend of HK$0.25
(ZZEZNF : 0.125%7T) (2008: HK$0.125) per ordinary share 500,000 250,000
RIZEZNFEN _ZZN\FERE2.5EE  The dividend paid in 2009 in respect of 2008 was HK$250 million. The
Lo RZE—TFN )5] Jr B ZZEEHIRE  directors proposed a final dividend in respect of 2009 of HK$0.25 per ordinary
ZETNFRAKE BAK0.257 7T ° Itk share on 20 April 2010. The proposed dividend is not reflected as a dividend
THiEZER B 1435‘]7% I _gzﬂiﬂ—:ﬁ =+  payable as at 31 December 2009.
—HMEMEE -
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17. Bla KEHEES 17. Cash and short-term funds
@ ARAT
The Group The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
FET THT FET THT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
RITHRE Cash at banks 57,248 38,444 44,740 36,342
HR1TE HA 17 3K Time deposits with banks 4,010,550 3,054,814 3,880,012 3,018,393
4,067,798 3,093,258 3,924,752 3,054,735

MEESREBEAME REKERRESBEERIE  For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
WTERSBHEET =8 A NEIHR ek o comprise the following balances with less than three months’ maturity from
the date of transaction.

AEE NS
The Group The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
FHEx THT FHEx THT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
IRITH ® Cash at banks 57,248 38,444 44,740 36,342
RITEHEFER Time deposits with banks 3,770,871 2,726,164 3,646,012 2,708,493
RENRERIRELIBEE  Cash and cash equivalents 3,828,119 2,764,608 3,690,752 2,744,835
18. FEULH]E I TE K 18. Interest and remittance receivables
AEE ARAT
The Group The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
TEx THT TEx THT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
AT IEHEUYE S Interest receivable from
— FEBHE 4 — interest rate swap contracts 443,221 379,353 440,007 374,374
— BHEE — investment securities 77,432 89,956 77,432 89,956
— RITEHHFR — time deposits with banks 169 2,589 131 2,554
BB EMERFE K  Interest receivable and instalments,
pal- NP in transit from loan portfolio 189,708 862,587 181,239 855,707
710,530 1,334,485 698,809 = 1,322,591
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19.

182

i em T H
(a) MBI 7K T 34

AEBRATITET AP ARSE
B eREAR - LEFREEME
REBEFEB ST EREIGRERT
B HRLEE TEIEDEAR
AR FEE(CE ABSERIZATE
HIRNERETOE TR -

BRI AR B INE R A E B
A o

EMRARER/U-ARESRE
MBI B -HERSRENAGE - B
BHEBINETIMEAS OEE
i o BRETERRBIN  ZEX
TP RBMAS - AEENEER
R AR 5E FREBITEREM
EERHAONBENRSE - AEH
ZPERTATVE BRANVHEL
Bl RmSANRBERERRER
[l Bz o

ETEEZRIANGRZESHE B
RPN R RN T AR @
LEH) B - MR RS R B R
RESRENSERLEEANR
FAE - FEE - SRR A EE
FREE B ERER - BET 5T
T fE A E AR RE) - 974
TAAEHAKEEEAN (BE)
T (BENFE - TEERT
EMaNS LR eRBER - Lilg
MEAFFEBE  RMTESHE
ENMBEZRATRE  FARETREX
RRE - I ANITETARTE
N T e

19. Derivative financial instruments

(a) Use of derivative

The Group uses the following derivative instruments to hedge
the Group’s financial risks. For accounting purposes, derivative
instrument are designated as at fair value through profit or loss
or hedging instruments under fair value or cash flow hedges as
defined in HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement.

Currency forwards represents commitments to purchase
foreign and domestic currency.

Currency and interest rate swaps are commitments to
exchange one set of cash flows for another. Swaps result in an
economic exchange of currencies or interest rates or a
combination of all these. No exchange of principal takes place
except for certain currency swaps. The Group’s credit risk
represents the potential cost to replace the swap contracts if
counterparties fail to perform their obligations. This risk is
monitored on an ongoing basis with reference to the current fair
value, a proportion of the notional amount of the contracts and
the liquidity of the market.

The notional amounts of certain types of financial instruments
provide a basis for comparison with instruments recognised on
the statement of financial position but do not necessarily indicate
the amounts of future cash flows involved or the current fair value
of the instruments and, therefore, do not indicate the Group’s
exposure to credit or price risks. The derivative instruments
become favourable (assets) or unfavourable (liabilities) as a result
of fluctuations in market interest rates or foreign exchange rates
relative to their terms. The aggregate contractual or notional
amount of derivative financial instruments on hand, the extent to
which instruments are favourable or unfavourable, and thus the
aggregate fair values of derivative financial assets and liabilities,
can fluctuate significantly from time to time. The fair values of
derivative instruments held are set out below.
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AEE
The Group
2009 2008
an APE &/ ATE
aas Fair values ABDH Fair values
Contract/ Contract/
notional HE afE notional BE a 1%
amount Assets Liabilities amount Assets Liabilities
FET FHET FET FHET FHET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
) EEARFEZ( () Derivatives designated as at
SABENITETR fair value through profit or loss
il &= 8 Interest rate swaps 20,736,942 127,084  (106,858) 40,867,628 217,361  (149,931)
Gt Currency swaps 902,100 - (993) - - =
E¥EH Currency forwards - - - 9,915,468 1,375 (230)
127,084 (107,851) 218,736 (150,161)
(i) FHEABRFEEH (i) Derivatives designated as
MHTETR fair value hedge
&2 Interest rate swaps 31,372,819 1,034,874 (2,847) 25,357,353 1,866,586 (318)
E¥EH Currency swaps 8,629,385 133,867 (40,521) 4,952,742 123,655 (52,490)
1,168,741 (43,368) 1,990,241 (52,808)
(i) EERBRETL R (i) Derivatives designated as
MITETR cash flow hedge
EEs Currency swaps 11,760,464 21,550 (7,027) 14,769,947 28,549 (12,025)
21,550 (7,027) 28,549 (12,025)
BHERITEEE/(AfE)  Total recognised derivative
ek assets/(liabilities) 1,317,375 (158,246) 2,237,526 (214,994)
VNG|
The Company
2009 2008
e AFE an/ ATE
EREE Fair values EHER Fair values
Contract/ Contract/
notional BE =1 notional EE A fE
amount Assets Liabilities amount Assets Liabilities
FER FRT FER FHET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
() BEARFEEEL () Derivatives designated as at
SABEMITATA fair value through profit or loss
&2 5 Interest rate swaps 20,736,942 127,084  (106,858) 40,867,628 217,361  (149,931)
e Currency swaps 902,100 - (993) = = =
BEES Currency forwards - - - 9,915,468 1,375 (230)
127,084 (107,851) 218,736 (150,161)
(i) EERDTEL® (i) Derivatives designated as
MITETR fair value hedge
il &= 8 Interest rate swaps 30,447,819 990,601 (2,847) 23,467,353 1,788,539 (318)
EEs Currency swaps 8,629,385 133,867 (40,521) 4,952,742 123,655 (52,490)
1,124,468 (43,368) 1,912,194 (52,808)
(i) FHEABREREMH (i) Derivatives designated as
MPTETR cash flow hedge
EHis Currency swaps 11,760,464 21,550 (7,027) 14,769,947 28,549 (12,025)
21,550 (7,027) 28,549 (12,025)
BRERITEEE/(AfE)  Total recognised derivative
B assets/(liabilities) 1,273,102  (158,246) 2,159,479 (214,994)
(b) ¥ 93 ) (b) Hedging activities

WOTE TERAFELEPHRER
b pLEFREME - ARKA

BEIPER -

Derivatives may qualify as hedges for accounting purposes if

they are fair value hedges or cash flow hedges.
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(i) AFEHF
AEBNAFEHIEERE
BRRERES M IAAT
BB B 1E & B) 5| BU 7 R
[E\Ff B0 | 3 [ B HE s H o

(i) Fair value hedges
The Group’s fair value hedge principally consists of interest
rate and currency swaps that are used to protect interest
rate risk resulting from any potential change in fair value of
fixed rate financial instruments.

(i) BEERE (ii) Cash flow hedges
rEEFABRSREINE
G EREI R INE R T BB €
Tt B = A R EE D SNE R o

The Group hedges a portion of foreign exchange risks arising
from variability of cash flows from foreign currency
denominated financial instruments using currency swaps
under cash flow hedge.

(c) T RA B A R A £ BB
BEERAREEMAMEGBERKE
EEMITETAEANRA - BEXR
REERBREBRERBEAHEE

(c) Replacement costs and potential future credit exposures
The replacement costs represent the cost of replacing all
derivative contracts that have a positive value when marked to
market. The potential future credit exposure amounts refer to
Lt &5 (FE3.7) st ER & o A the amount as computed in accordance with the Capital-to-
SENRBIZHEFTIEONGE Assets ratio guidelines (Note 3.7). The Group has not experienced
bk any non-performance by its counterparties.

TETEAHNEERARBER
REERBREBHNTX - ZEF2
RN E AR ZEFHETERS
BRBNTE -

The replacement costs and potential future credit exposure
amounts of the derivative contracts are as follows. These
amounts do not take into account the effects of bilateral netting
arrangements with the counterparties.
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K&
The Group
2009 2008

BIE R R VBAE AR R

BERE FERK BBEKAR FERR

Replacement Potential future Replacement Potential future

cost credit exposure cost credit exposure

FERT FET FHET FHET

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000

MEEH Interest rate contracts 1,556,847 182,660 2,428,610 203,271
EREL Exchange rate contracts

— Bl — Currency swaps 184,827 945,386 177,630 980,171

— B¥RE — Currency forwards - - 1,375 99,155

184,827 945,386 179,005 1,079,326

1,741,674 1,128,046 2,607,615 1,282,597

PiN/NE|
The Company
2009 2008

TBIEARRK BIERR

BEERAE EE R BERAN EERRE

Replacement Potential future Replacement Potential future

cost credit exposure cost credit exposure

FERT FERT FHET FHET

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000

MEESH Interest rate contracts 1,509,359 179,160 2,345,583 197,521
EXE4 Exchange rate contracts

— Bz — Currency swaps 184,827 945,386 177,630 980,171

— ERHE — Currency forwards - - 1,375 99,155

184,827 945,386 179,005 1,079,326

1,694,186 1,124,546 2,524,588 1,276,847
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20. B G 20. Loan portfolio, net
(a) BEFKALA DRI (a) Loan portfolio less allowance
AEHE AR T
The Group The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
FHT THT FHT THT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
RiENHEE Mortgage portfolio
F= Residential
- BB - Hong Kong 21,980,141 | 27,624,099 20,323,237 25,420,270
— gHN - Overseas 15,441,285 15,905,032 15,441,285 = 15,905,032
[(EES Commercial 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000
BHIEE Securitised portfolio
(Ffﬁ%34) (Note 34) 1,314,685 1,878,761 - =
R B ERAE Non-mortgage portfolio 1,066,616 1,402,756 1,066,616 1,402,756
43,802,727 | 50,810,648 40,831,138 46,728,058
BERRERE Allowance for loan impairment (14,011) (50,536) (13,975) (49,773)
43,788,716 = 50,760,112 40,817,163 = 46,678,285

RZZBEZNF+= H =+—8"' K As at 31 December 2009, the mortgage portfolio had a weighted

EREHREETE - RRFTAR average remaining term of 9 years (2008: 9 years) on a contractual

iﬁ?ﬁ%fiﬁmiﬁﬁml D N basis, without taking into account any prepayment of local

BERAEONEFEFERRN mortgage loans. Final maturity of the mortgage portfolio is in the
F(ZEENF : LF) - RBEXN year 2040.

HARER _ZTNTFIH -

ERRERERBEETES MK Total allowance for loan impairment as a percentage of the
EEASEBROBHLOT ¢ outstanding principal balances of the loan portfolio is as follows:
rEH P N/NE]
The Group The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008

EFRERE Total allowance for loan
BB EFRMEA  impairment as a percentage
WA DL of the gross loan portfolio 0.03% 0.10% 0.03% 0.11%
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(b) 18 £ 3k AL A 1 £33 IR A 5% A (b) Allowance for loan impairment on mortgage portfolio
RE RAF]
The Group The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
FERT FHET FERT FHB T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
HAETE Collective assessment
n—A—H As at 1 January 50,536 13,930 49,773 12,970
W 3H & 5K Loans written off (2,748) 4,227) (2,748) 4,227)
RUzSR A (B E) /  (Released)/charged to
Rk (Ff7E12) income statement (Note 12) (36,837) 36,225 (36,110) 36,422
Y [e] B 85 & 3R Recoveries of loans previously
written off 3,382 4,943 3,382 4,943
BERRERD Unwind of discount on allowance (322) (335) (322) (335)
R+=—A=+—H As at 31 December 14,011 50,536 13,975 49,773
FHEFRERER  EZEE Allowance for loan impairment was made after taking into account
REFHERBHERTE - # the current market value of the collateral of the delinquent loan.
EREIRAERBERESE There is no impairment provided for overseas and commercial
LR EREE TR EFRER mortgage portfolio. During the year, allowance for loan impairment
52,641,000 T (ZZEZEN\F : of HK$2,641,000 (2008: HK$3,563,000) has been transferred
3,563,000/ T) BB E W E & to repossessed assets (Note 25).

E (ffak2s) o

LA A R E M E B BB E E 3K Individually impaired loans collectively assessed under portfolio
DT basis are analysed as follows:
REH /NG|
The Group The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
FHERT FHB T FHERT FHB T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
HEEFEEEE  Gross impaired loan portfolio 5,377 22,534 5,377 22,534
BERRERRE Allowance for loan impairment (1,811) (6,636) (1,811) (6,636)
3,566 15,898 3,566 15,898
EXRERE Allowance for loan impairment
HREEREE as a percentage of gross
BENBEAL impaired loan portfolio 33.7% 29.4% 33.7% 29.4%
MEERHEE Gross impaired loan portfolio
BELEERAESE as a percentage of
BENBEAL gross loan portfolio 0.01% 0.04% 0.01% 0.05%
LA A A RGN ] B 4R B Allowance for loan impairment under collective assessment for
FYEE FURE R 512,200,000/ 7T loans not individually identified are HK$12,200,000 (2008:
(ZZZ )\ : 43,900,000 7T) ° HK$43,900,000).
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(c) BEARALS MWl AL 1 B ¥ (c) Net investments in finance leases included in loan portfolio
REERARE
The Group and the Company
2009

RIEEWAER
MIERE AR Y REEWRELD
Present value FIE WA REAR
of minimum Interest income Total minimum
lease payments relating to lease payments
receivable future periods receivable
FERT FERT FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

LA EAR EUCERIE © Amounts receivable:

- —FR — within one year 93,661 20,369 114,030
- —FRERFA — after one year
but within five years 335,541 63,433 398,974
- AFi& — after five years 637,414 69,650 707,064
1,066,616 153,452 1,220,068
REERARF
The Group and the Company
2008

(K FE YT 4
HIEBE SRR HA R Y K FEHFE LY
Present value FEBA HIBHEEE
of minimum Interest income Total minimum
lease payments relating to lease payments
receivable future periods receivable
FHET T FAET
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000

RUAT BRI FEUCERIA © Amounts receivable:

- —FRA — within one year 110,808 26,884 137,692
— —FERERER — after one year
but within five years 419,158 85,251 504,409
— AF% — after five years 872,790 100,757 973,547
1,402,756 212,892 1,615,648
RIBEZNF+_A=+—HEZ= There is no impairment allowance for finance lease receivable as
TR N\F+-_F=+—H K&EH at 31 December 2009 and 31 December 2008 of the Group and
NN BN S E HE R GRIE the Company.

TR BUE R -
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21, HBHEE 21. Investment securities
(a) WL B 2 (a) Available-for-sale securities
REBERARF
The Group and the Company
2009 2008
FET T
HK$’000 HK$’000
EAFEYERNERSFES  Debt securities at fair value
JE LT Unlisted 2,452,054 1,160,924
RBEE L™ Listed in Hong Kong 78,466 48,901
RBEABAIME ET Listed outside Hong Kong 56,824 =
2,587,344 1,209,825
2N B 5 BR #Y E A 75 3 Other securities at fair value
REB LT Listed in Hong Kong 1,025,720 842,727
Al HEEA5ER Total available-for-sale securities 3,613,064 2,052,552
HthFEHERSGMEEE S RFEH Other securities refer to exchange-traded funds and real estate
ERAET - investment trust.
BEITRBRER DT EEES Available-for-sale securities are analysed by categories of issuers
LU as follows:
AEBERARA
The Group and the Company
2009 2008
FERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
RITREM S R Banks and other financial institutions 2,452,054 = 1,160,924
N Public sector entities 135,290 48,901
H A Others 1,025,720 842,727
3,613,064 2,052,552
AEHEFESNEESHMMT The movement in available-for-sale securities is summarised as
follows:
AEBRARF
The Group and the Company
2009 2008
FERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$’'000
n—A—8 As at 1 January 2,052,552 4,038,250
il Additions 3,134,672 17,311,387
EFHEAFEEEHER  Reclassification to held-to-maturity
5 debt securities - (641,322)
BE (LENER) Disposals (sale and redemption) (1,811,701) (18,564,231)
X Amortisation 8,539 72,357
NEEE Change in fair value 227,272 (147,960)
SNEERE K R Exchange difference 1,730 (15,929
®R+=—A=+—H As at 31 December 3,613,064 2,052,552
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DEKEXLIE € (b) Held-to-maturity securities
AEERARA
The Group and the Company
2009 2008
FHET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
R SR AR BR M E 75 5 %5 Debt securities at amortised cost
RBEE L™ Listed in Hong Kong 1,166,552 = 1,147,001
RBEBIZIN LT Listed outside Hong Kong 2,244,441 1,138,537
3,410,993 2,285,538
JE LT Unlisted 2,407,005 3,329,128
BEEEIHE A A Total held-to-maturity securities 5,817,998 = 5,614,666
EhmESHmE Market value of listed securities
- KAEEIH — held-to-maturity 3,504,167 = 2,291,021

BBETHRBER DT AEEIH

ko

Held-to-maturity securities are analysed by categories of issuers

=113

Has as follows:
REERARQE
The Group and the Company
2009 2008
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
RIT R H M B Banks and other financial institutions 3,939,368 3,664,530
NGIRES Corporate entities 622,626 561,422
N Public sector entities 715,548 771,730
R BT Central governments 293,287 343,610
Hth Others 247,169 273,374
5,817,998 5,614,666
BEZIPBEFNEHPamT : The movement in held-to-maturity securities is summarised as
follows:
REERARQE
The Group and the Company
2009 2008
FHET FHET
HK$°000 HK$'000
w—HA—8 As at 1 January 5,614,666 5,500,024
0 Additions 2,923,038 3,036,106
EM AR HEEERFES Reclassification from available-for-sale
debt securities - 641,322
FE [ Redemption (2,731,226) (3,518,682)
5 Amortisation (2,838) 3,079
HNEE BE 5 = R Exchange difference 14,358 (47,183)
R+ZA=+—H As at 31 December 5,817,998 5,614,666
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22. MEARHE 22. Investment in subsidiaries
AR H

The Company
2009 2008
Tz T
HK$’000 HK$’000
ELEMRG - KAE Unlisted shares, at cost 103,060 1,000
M8 2~ Bl PR FRIE Due from a subsidiary 1,630,520 2,209,981
1,733,580 2,210,981

B R BT R FROE B AR M E FERE) - I The amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured and has no fixed term of
BEHHFIERET B - repayment. Interest is charged at market rates.

RIZBEZNE+_A=+—H MBARIMFE  The details of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2009 are:

ICEUNNE
[Eh: 35774
Bk AR 5 1
FE AR S 3t 2 Particulars of P B R AR 4
B Place of EEBEK issued/registered Effective equity
Name incorporation Principal activities capital held
BEBRBER & BAKER 1,000,000/ 75 100%
BRAA RI/BER BAEEREEIET
HKMC Mortgage Hong Kong Mortgage purchases HK$1,000,000 100%
Management and servicing of HK$1 ordinary
Limited share each
RN 2 BB EAR A RIBE N AREAET 90%
BRAA BIRFER T AR AR
Bauhinia HKMC PRC Mortgage guarantee RMB100 million 90%
Corporation Limited business registered capital
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REE
The Group
2009 2008
FHT FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
®n—A—AH As at 1 January 111,989 -
EE Capital injection - 120,554
MR IER EEREF (BEB) Share of profit/(loss), net of tax 1,922 ®)
SMISIE K, = 58 (4 732) Exchange differences (Note 32) 1,279 (8,557)
115,190 111,989
A& RNEIFTRRIA Due from a joint venture - 1,543
R+=—HA=+—H As at 31 December 115,190 113,532
PiN/NE]
The Company
2009 2008
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
JE LT - BEKANE Unlisted shares, at cost 120,554 120,554
B ENRIFTRFKIA Due from a joint venture - 1,543
120,554 122,097
RIZEZEANF+_A=+—H A2 2880  The details of the joint venture as at 31 December 2009 are:
BT
HERE
EERA D
FE AR S 4 B BEITRANEE sl mERl % of
B Place of FEBEK Nominal value of Class of ordinary shares
Name incorporation Principal activities issued capital shares held directly held
Cagamas HKMC BRA LR RIBERERED BB il 50%
Berhad SREES®%1T
Cagamas HKMC Malaysia Mortgage guaranty RM100 million of Ordinary 50%
Berhad business RM1 each
AEBREERARIMNEROT The Group’s interest in the joint venture is as follows:
PR E DL
BE B WA EFL/ (B8) % of
Assets Liabilities Income Profit/(Loss) Interest held
TER TAR TAT TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZEZNF+=-A=+—H Asat31 December 2009 231,855 1,475 6,777 3,844 50%
RZZEZENF+=-_A=+—H Asat31 December 2008 227,365 3,387 3,703 (16) 50%
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24. B E&E 24. Fixed assets
REM
The Group
WAERE -
B RER
AENE office
#{&  equipment, RE
Leasehold furniture S Motor okl
improvement  and fixtures Computers vehicle Total
Figw FHT FHT FHT FHT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
ARE Cost
RZEZNF—A—H As at 1 January 2009 8,038 6,395 111,784 226 126,443
NE Additions 1,137 994 15,714 - 17,845
R=ZZFEBEAE+=-HA=1+—H Asat31December 2009 9,175 7,389 127,498 226 144,288
E i Accumulated depreciation
RZZEENF—HF—H As at 1 January 2009 5,331 5,284 101,375 151 112,141
REZHE (H:E9) Charge for the year (Note 9) 1,627 725 8,482 56 10,890
R=-Z2FEAFE+=-H=+—H As at31 December 2009 6,958 6,009 109,857 207 123,031
BREFE Net book value
R-ZBEBEAFE+=-HA=+—H As at31December 2009 2,217 1,380 17,641 19 21,257
R-ZEZN\F+_-_A=+—H Asat31 December 2008 2,707 1,111 10,409 75 14,302
NG
The Company
WOAZHE
R RERE
HEWE Office
#{&  equipment, RE
Leasehold furniture S Motor et )
improvement  and fixtures Computers vehicle Total
Fi#x FHEL FHEL FHT FHT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
ﬁi$1§ Cost
RZZEZNF—H—H As at 1 January 2009 8,038 6,395 111,784 226 126,443
NE Additions 601 123 14,387 = 15,111
R-ZEZFEAE+=-HA=1+—H Asat31December 2009 8,639 6,518 126,171 226 141,554
/\E'Jrﬁ% Accumulated depreciation
—EENF—RA—H As at 1 January 2009 5,331 5,284 101,375 151 112,141
$¢F;%ﬁ% Charge for the year 1,480 553 8,324 56 10,413
R=ZZFEZBEAFE+=-A=1+—H As at31December 2009 6,811 5,837 109,699 207 122,554
R FE Net book value
R-ZEZFEAE+=-HA=1+—H Asat31December 2009 1,828 681 16,472 19 19,000
R-ZZEZEN\FE+=-_H=+—H Asat31 December 2008 2,707 1,111 10,409 75 14,302
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25, TEAFERIE - e S H A 25. Prepayments, deposits and other assets
&
AEE FNG
The Group The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
FHEx THT FHEx THT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Uy B & B Repossessed assets 3,317 3,149 3,317 3,149
NEIGFEES Corporate club debentures 750 750 750 750
fEY ATt & (=)  Dividend receivable from
HERE available-for-sale
investments (listed) 15,530 12,860 15,530 12,860
EHAth Others 12,998 18,796 17,084 21,359
32,595 30,555 36,681 38,118
26. JEATHRIE ~ FEATBH S X 26. Accounts payable, accrued expenses and
HoAth 1 1 other liabilities
AEE ARF
The Group The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
FHRT THT FHRT THT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FEHERIE R EFM S Accounts payable
and accrued expenses 126,205 81,475 172,018 134,464
H b FE T IR Other payable - - 591,108 742,966
Hih B 1E Other liabilities 4,133,740 4,088,880 4,133,740 4,088,880
Hih# Other provisions 14,232 13,338 14,083 13,200
4,274,177 4,183,693 4,910,949 4,979,510

HBaEREANR _EE=F+_AR_ZZ
mE—ABEBRITRR ([FARR]) BUF
BENRBEFRNREELHNRELERE -

HEZTZAF+ZA=1+—80 ' RAAM
Bauhinia MBS Limited ! £ 3018/ T 12 8 & 5%
BRI THBEZAERLBESENHE
B MRIZBERAIEREEFHE]  UER
[ H 4th & {5 5138 | T 52 — 28 JE 1 Bauhinia MBS
Limited® B E - RZZEZEAF+_A=+—
B ARAMBEKIERPHEMENKEA
591,108,000/ 7t (ZZZ J\4F : 742,966,000
EIL) e

Other liabilities represented the deferred consideration used for credit

enhancement on the mortgage loans purchased from the Government of

and January 2004.

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“HKSAR”) in December 2003

Up to 31 December 2009, the Company sold HK$3 billion of mortgage

loans to Bauhinia MBS Limited for securitisation, in which, the Company

continues to recognise the mortgage loans in “Loan portfolio, net” to the

extent of the guarantee and continuing involvement. A liability due to

Bauhinia MBS Limited shown as “Other payable” has also been recognised.

As at 31 December 2009, other payable was HK$591,108,000 (2008:

HK$742,966,000) in the Company’s statement of financial position.
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27. RBxEE N R EE 27. Insurance liabilities and reinsurance assets
FEBERAFA NEE R AA R
The Group and the Company The Group and the Company
9 2008
EX ) BRI B £t BRE FE
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net
F#T FHET FHRT FHT FBT FHT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Aom AR B R E Provision for unearned premium 1,372,427 240,738 1,131,689 829370 311,253 518,117
RRABREE Provision for outstanding claims
- BEH/(kE) B R - claims reported/(recovery) 2,001 (27) 2,118 188 (41) 229
- BEABRRPRER - claims incurred but not reported 87,800 25,390 62,410 79,182 37,230 41,952
89,891 25,363 64,528 79,370 37,189 42,181
1,462,318 266,101 1,196,217 908,740 348,442 560,298

(a) A% 000 DR ¢ J s 58 ) 00 AT o

(a) Analysis of movements in provision for unearned premiums

AEBREDT REERAATA
The Group and the Company The Group and the Company
2009 2008
£ ) BRE FE Est| BRE bkl
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net
FHET FET FHET FHET FiET FiET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
®—A—H As at 1 January 829,370 311,253 518,117 658,569 364,461 294,108
FREWERE (F15£14)  Premiums written during the year
(Note 14) 839,042 54,392 784,650 477,843 119,264 358,579
ERNDHERE (F514)  Premiums eamed during the year
(Note 14) (295,985)  (124,907)  (171,078) (307,042  (172,472)  (134,570)
R+=ZA=1+—H As at 31 December 1,372,427 240,738 1,131,689 829,370 311,253 518,117
(b) A Ye v & B flii 52 W) 2> B F (b) Analysis of movements in provision for outstanding claims
AEBREDT REERAATA
The Group and the Company The Group and the Company
2009 2008
£ ) BRE FE ESt| BRE ik
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net
FHET FET FHET FHET FiET FiET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
®—A—H As at 1 January 79,370 37,189 42,181 2,817 1,922 895
RENL:ES Claims paid (1,804)  (1,969) 165 (486) (400) (86)
BlE®RE Claims recovery 1,207 674 533 477 310 167
BEERER (MF14) Claims incurred (Note 14)
- EREHR - claims reported 2,500 1,310 1,190 146 78 68
~ BELBERHBREZR - claims incurred but not reported 8,618  (11,841) 20,459 76,416 35,279 41,137
®+=-R=+—H As at 31 December 89,891 25,363 64,528 79,370 37,189 42,181

(c) FAE T8 2 ik
EITRERRAAE  EEERHE
HWRERELFREEEMALTIHE
RenEmREGE  ARBTRR
TERNFR-BENE T A=
T—R AEEERHRREE -

(c) Liability adequacy test
The liability adequacy test considers current estimates of all
contractual cash flows, and of related cash flows such as claims
handling costs, the test shows that, as at 31 December 2009
and 2008, the Group’s insurance liabilities are adequate.
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28. AL 4 AKX 28. Advance from Exchange Fund

INEESBBEBEEREARRIEMI00E  The Exchange Fund through the HKMA has provided the Company with a
BIL(ZEZNF  300FB L) EREE - HK$30 billion (2008: HK$30 billion) revolving credit facility. Advance from
HNPE R S e IR R EEEE K 0 ™S the Exchange Fund is unsecured and has no fixed term of repayment. Interest
FERAB R _ZTTZNF+-_HA=+—H % is charged at market rate. As at 31 December 2009, there was no
EETEESAEENGEHR(ZZZTN\F : 808 outstanding balance under this facility (2008: HK$8 billion).

BIT) °
29. EBITERES 29. Debt securities issued
AEE N
The Group The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
T FHET Fi#T FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
R85 R A 51 BR Y Debt securities carried
BRXESF at amortised cost
B TEEIES DIP notes 4,218,169 8,123,942 4,218,169 8,569,277
TEESHHTsrE/ % RBIP and other notes
E &S - 86,980 - 86,980
TREESH A AT BR Y Total debt securities carried
BEIEE S B at amortised cost 4,218,169 = 8,210,922 4,218,169 8,656,257
EEBAFEYHHN  Debt securities designated
BEES as fair value hedge
B LA EIES DIP notes 24,013,513 22,517,865 24,013,513 22,517,865
TEESH3775rEI%  RBIP and other notes
HAh &% 1,760,614 2,619,612 1,760,614 2,619,612
FEREFHEITETEIES MTN notes 11,656,629 4,753,174 11,656,629 = 4,753,174
BEARNFEL S  Total debt securities designated
[EUEEa e as fair value hedge 37,430,756 = 29,890,651 37,430,756 = 29,890,651
RIBEREBIEES L Debt securities designated
AFEB{LEt ABE  as at fair value through profit
WERKES or loss upon initial recognition
B TEEIES DIP notes 2,329,306 4,358,210 2,329,306 4,358,210
TEESHETT5rEI%  RBIP and other notes
HAthE% 167,341 355,205 167,341 355,205
P EAE AT EIES MTN notes 349,501 - 349,501 -
RIIATEREFIEE AL Total debt securities designated
ANFEZ{Ft ABE  as at fair value through profit
R ETS B S B or loss upon initial recognition 2,846,148 @ 4,713,415 2,846,148 @ 4,713,415
EEITEHESME  Total debt securities issued 44,495,073 = 42,814,988 44,495,073 = 43,260,323
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RER - NEBRVIAERNEETZECRA
EH2,272,000,0008 L (ZEZT )\ F :
4,113,450,000/87T) & EEUAFEZLE

AB# - ZEERMABRZIATHEEBRNELE
MR - RGBT IEE RARFER

fErt A BEN e GRAERAEERES
HMRERBBSARESHAAINNEED
581,062,000/ 7T (ZZFZ )\ : %10,465,000
BIT) e

ZERER/ARHEIRNERAEREEMA
BEXBEREARBZEERRE

During the year, the Group designated on initial recognition
HK$2,272,000,000 (2008: HK$4,113,450,000) nominal value of such
financial liabilities as at fair value through profit or loss. The fair value
changes are attributable to changes in benchmark interest rates for the
debt securities designated as at fair value through profit or loss. The carrying
amount of the financial liabilities designated as at fair value through profit
or loss upon initial recognition is HK$581,052,000 (2008: HK$10,465,000
higher) lower than the amount that the Group would be contractually
required to pay at maturity to the note holders.

There were no significant gains or losses attributable to changes in the credit
risk of the Company for those financial liabilities designated as at fair value.

BRITEEESNEGBMNT The movement in debt securities issued is summarised as follows:
AEE ART]
The Group The Company

2009 2008 2009 2008

FET FiET FiEx FET

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000

R—A—H As at 1 January 40,967,452 32,958,185 41,412,787 33,064,076
RAFE AT Issuance for the year 22,688,680 24,405,704 29,092,736 28,065,344
o AFEEER Less: Redemption for the year (19,645,595) = (16,362,840) (26,494,986)  (19,683,036)
HNESTE =R Exchange difference 13,083 (33,597) 13,083 (33,597)

FEBEESR Total nominal value 44,023,620 40,967,452 44,023,620 41,412,787
FEARBED D Unamortised portion of discount (665,658) (83,670) (665,658) (83,670)
REERHE Fair value adjustment 1,137,111 1,931,206 1,137,111 1,931,206

R+—A=+—8H As at 31 December 44,495,073 42,814,988 44,495,073 43,260,323

REFBITHES Notes issued during the year comprise:
AEE /NG|
The Group The Company

BEH¥ITAR ZEES o i 35 BBIA SEES 5

& BiTatE BiTErE g ] BiTRE BiTRtE

DIP RBIP MTN DIP RBIP MTN

FExT FERT FiExT FiExT FERT FERT

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

BRTEEEAE Amount issued at nominal value 15,462,000 - 7,226,680 21,866,056 - 7,226,680

2 4B IE Consideration received 14,881,380 - 7,479,360 21,285,435 - 7,179,360
FIEEBTHNERESFIBAEEEEIFE Al the debt securities issued are unsecured obligations of the Group, and

£ MBETZEFEBESFSERE—
ERIEBRERE

/'L)\)\L/é?

are issued for the purposes of providing general working capital and
refinancing.
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30. EEEAT A 2 30. Mortgage-backed securities issued
@
The Group
2009 2008
FET THT
HK$’000 HK$’000
BREBHER AT RAIZIBES MBS at amortised cost
RigE ST &l MBS Programme 60,305 83,522
Bauhinia#%z 15 & (b 51 &l Bauhinia MBS Programme 990,815 = 1,174,055
1,051,120 1,257,577
EERAATFEHEFNIZREES MBS designated at fair value hedge
Bauhinia & #5 #& %1t 51 &I Bauhinia MBS Programme 969,274 = 1,968,047
B EATIRIBE H 485 (MTFE37) Total MBS issued (Note 37) 2,020,394 3,225,624
®n—A—H As at 1 January 3,147,577 4,203,483
A FRER Less: Redemption for the year (1,171,456)  (1,055,906)
BEEEE Total nominal value 1,976,121 3,147,577
N EFAE Fair value adjustment 44,273 78,047
R+ZA=+—8© As at 31 December 2,020,394 3,225,624

FIBRBESFEGAFERATNIEIFET - LA  All MBS are collateralised obligation of the SPEs and are issued for the
EAAFEEIZIBEREAIRMTEESLMETT ©  purpose of providing funds to purchase mortgage portfolios from the
B ERHEAF1,905,793,0008 7L (ZZZ /A Company. HK$1,905,793,000 (2008: HK$2,621,727,000) of mortgage
F 1 2,621,727,000/870) EEAATETTIZIEE  portfolio are collateralised for the MBS issued (Note 37). Out of the total
HFHEA S (ME37) - B#ITILBFE  MBSissued, nominal value of HK$1,276,120,000 (2008: HK$1,707,577,000)
F4EEH1,276,120,0008 L (ZZEZ/\F :  are guaranteed by the Company.

1,707,577,000/& 70) BV E (B A R A HELR ©

31. AR 31. Share Capital
—ZEEAER
—EEN\E
2009 and 2008
FHET
HK$’000

VETE Authorized
SR EE 1S T R30E T E 3 billion ordinary shares of HK$1 each 3,000,000
BETRAEE Issued and fully paid

BAREE 1S TH 2018 R T AR 2 billion ordinary shares of HK$1 each 2,000,000
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32. HAhfEM 32. Other Reserves
REE
The Group
EF#EE ATERE S JE R E
Contingency Fair value Hedging  Translation Fek
reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZZENFE—H—H As at 1 January 2008 102,497 120,673 5,493 - 228,663
AHEHEESFNRAFEZE :  Change in fair value of
available-for-sale securities:
- REBREBFE - unrealised net losses - (147,960) = - (147,960)
- HEREH - realisation on disposal = (24,329) - - (24,329)
— B8 (5E13(0)) ~ tax effect (Note 13(b)) - 29,907 = = 29,907
— & — amortization * = 338 = = 338
RemEH Cash flow hedges
— ERRERBERE S — net losses arising from hedges
EERNEBREE recognized directly in equity - = (86,497) = (86,497)
— B8 (PHFE13(0) ~ tax effect (Note 13(b)) = = 14,338 = 14,338
EHkE N =58 Currency translation difference
— &8 An (f5E23) — joint venture (Note 23) - - - (8,557) (8,557)
Hit2HE A Other comprehensive income - (142,044)  (72,159) (8,557)  (222,760)
HIRE & NEEDRARR Transfer of 50% of net risk
REZFENS0%E AR EEE premium earned from retained
profits to contingency reserve 26,330 - - - 26,330
£ BB (o 1 2] (R B v A Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits (5,282) - - - (5,282)
R-ZZNE+=-A=+—H,/ Asat 31 December 2008/
—ZZNF—A—H 1 January 2009 123,545  (21,371)  (66,666) (8,557) 26,951
AHEEEFNRFEEZS :  Change in fair value of
available-for-sale securities:
- RERUHFE - unrealised net gains - 227,272 - - 227272
— HERZHR - realisation on disposal - (3,522) = = (3,522)
— Bi1E (PHEE13(b) — tax effect (Note 13(b)) - (37,311) - - (37,311)
— B - amortization * - 2,381 - - 2,381
B & Cash flow hedges
— ERERERBERE S - net gains arising from hedges
EERN WG FE recognized directly in equity - - 25,126 - 25,126
— Bi1E (M =E13(0)) - tax effect (Note 13(b)) - - (4,145) = (4,145)
EMEREZS Currency translation difference
— MBAR — subsidiary = = = 158 158
— a2 27 (fizF23) — joint venture (Note 23) - - - 1,279 1,279
Hh 2 EKA Other comprehensive income - 188,820 20,981 1,437 211,238
HiRE & NEEERARR Transfer of 50% of net risk
REZFENS0%E AR EEE premium earned from retained
profits to contingency reserve 76,313 - - - 76,313
£ BB (o 1 2] (R B v Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits (10,025) - - - (10,025)
R=ZZBZEAFE+=-H=+—H As at31 December 2009 189,833 167,449 (45,685) (7,120) 304,477

C AREEEERAHEERSERERSERIMES

iSNEaES 3

securities transferred to held-to-maturity securities.

* amortization of unrealised loss to income statement on available-for-sale
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VNG
The Company
=44 REEGRE P
Contingency Fair value Hedging B
reserve reserve reserve Total
FTHT FHET THT FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZEZENF—F—H As at 1 January 2008 102,497 120,673 5,493 228,663
HEEEELFNATEZS :  Change in fair value of available-
for-sale securities:
- REREHEFES - unrealised net losses = (147,960) = (147,960)
— HERZHR - realisation on disposal - (24,329) - (24,329)
— Bi3E (M52 13(b) - tax effect (Note 13(0)) - 29,907 - 29,907
— B - amortization * - 338 - 338
RemEn Cash flow hedges
— EERESERRE Y - net losses arising from hedges
EERNEEFE recognized directly in equity = - (86,497) (86,497)
— BiaE (ff=E13(b) - tax effect (Note 13(b)) - - 14,338 14,338
HihZ2ERA Other comprehensive income - (142,044) (72,159) (214,203)
B R B A B R R B Transfer of 50% of net risk premium
REFHERS0%ER KRG earned from retained profits to
contingency reserve 26,330 - - 26,330
HEREERRZRE &F Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits (65,282) - - (65,282)
R-ZTZ/\FE+-A=1+—H,/ Asat 31 December 2008/
“TTHhF—-HA—H 1 January 2009 123,545 (21,371) (66,666) 35,508
AEHEEFNA T EZE Change in fair value of
available-for-sale securities:
- RERWHFHA - unrealised net gains - 227,272 - 227,272
— HERKER - realisation on disposal - (3,522) - (3,522)
— Hi18 (M5 13(0)) - tax effect (Note 13(b)) - (37,311) = (37,311)
— B — amortization * - 2,381 = 2,381
RemEH Cash flow hedges
— HERESRERRE Y - net gains arising from hedges
EERNREFEE recognized directly in equity = = 25,126 25,126
— %18 (FfIEE13(0)) - tax effect (Note 13(b)) - - (4,145) (4,145)
Hip 2 EBRA Other comprehensive income - 188,820 20,981 209,801
F {R B |5 B R R Transfer of 50% of net risk premium
REFHERS0%ZER KIS earned from retained profits to
contingency reserve 76,313 - - 76,313
HEREERERZRE & T Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits (10,025) - - (10,025)
R-ZZEZBhE+=-HA=+—H As at 31 December 2009 189,833 167,449 (45,685) 311,597

* REHEERAHEESSAEREFEEEHES * amortization of unrealised loss to income statement on available-for-sale

iSNEaES 3

securities transferred to held-to-maturity securities.
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33. HLABAANLFILAEKR
L5

(a) B ATREB RN EERHEEE
FATHEHEZ - ALTHBREZE
REBEAFZENINAL  XHRA
BHSEHARERZENALIE
BRAEBAL - BRALAIREA
HEMERE -

FA - ARBEEEALERITR
AIREEREFUZIERS - X5
MMEEHIN TR

33. Material related party transactions

(a) Related parties are those parties which have the ability, directly
or indirectly, to control the other party or exercise significant
influence over the other party in making financial and operating
decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are
subject to common control or common significant influence.
Related parties may be individuals or other entities.

During the year, the Company entered into various transactions
with related parties on an arm’s length and commercial basis.
The nature of the relationship is set out in the following table:

BRXAMMEE -
R ha
Nature of related
e B transaction -
Name Interests see the notes below
BEELE KT BHE AR (2)(9)(13)
The Honourable John TSANG Chun Wah, JP SEESHEEA
Financial Secretary
Controller of the Exchange Fund
BRER %i SBS ' AF#+ ERCHERREH (1) ) (9) (10) (11)
(RZZZNFTR—HEZMA) Chief Executive of the
Norman CHAN Tak Lam, SBS, JP Hong Kong Monetary Authority
(appointed on 1 October 2009)
EERm %4 - GBS - AF#+ BESREERAES (1) (2) (9) (10) (11)
(RZZZNFTA-HBRA) (BZ=ZZNFNA=TH)
Joseph YAM Chi Kwong, GBS, JP Chief Executive of the
(retired on 1 October 2009) Hong Kong Monetary Authority (up to 30 September 2009)
YREEA  KEEt EEERERBEIRH (1) (2) (9) (10) (11)
Peter PANG Sing Tong, JP Deputy Chief Executive of the
Hong Kong Monetary Authority
REXFKE  KF@E+ BECRERREIER (1) @) (9) (10) (11)
Eddie YUE Wai Man, JP Deputy Chief Executive of the
Hong Kong Monetary Authority
EfE®%E  CVO GBS ' OBE AT #T EHEASHERRRABA (15)
(RZZEZAEMA T/ BEMA) (AITBEERE A RIEM AR SR
The Honourable Ronald Joseph ARCULL, SHEMEHAEE)
CVO, GBS, OBE, JP Senior Partner of King & Wood
(retired on 16 April 2009) (formerly known as Arculli Fong &
Ng in association with King & Wood)
RFBARK - SBS - AFML MESEBEREBRRER (3) (13)
Professor the Honourable K C CHAN, SBS, JP Secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury
BREMSEA + SBS * KF#+ LEBHE @)
(RZZENFWA T BEMA) BEFEEZEEZ%8
(EZZZTNF=R=1—RH)
The Honourable CHAN Kam Lam, SBS, JP Legislative Councillor
(retired on 16 April 2009) Member of The Hong Kong Housing Authority
(up to 31 March 2009)
g Eﬂ&/zzt BB LBEERTARAR (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (14)
(RZZZNEWA T BEZHE) SREEABRSELLE
Louisa CHEANG (appointed on 16 April 2009) Regional Director, Personal Financial Services,
Asia-Pacific
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
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(RZZZNFWA+TRBRAE)
The Honourable SIN Chung Kai, SBS, JP
(retired on 16 April 2009)

BRARSMME -
A ik
Nature of
®E B related transaction -
Name Interests see the notes below
gt KM+t BHREERRR (3)(13)
The Honourable Ms. Eva CHENG, JP EEREZEBCTRE
Secretary for Transport and Housing
Chairman of The Hong Kong Housing Authority
RIMR 2% GBS * BBS * AF#+ BEEEZERZE )
Professor the Honourable Anthony Member of The Hong Kong Housing Authority
CHEUNG Bing Leung, GBS, BBS, JP
MAmEEE RERT (FE) BRAREIEE (3) (4) (5) (6)
(RZZZTNFWA+BEMR) Deputy Chief Executive of
David LAM Yim Nam Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
(retired on 16 April 2009)
FEHERL RORTERDAEFERITBEH (3) (4) (5) (6)
GBM ' GBS ' LLD (Cantab) * A ¥4+ Chairman and Chief Executive of
Dr. the Honourable David LI Kwok Po, The Bank of East Asia, Limited
GBM, GBS, LLD (Cantab), JP
EfffEfE - SBS - KFML BEEEZERZE ®)

(EZE=FFNF=A=1-R)
Member of The Hong Kong Housing Authority
(up to 31 March 2009)

REHTE
Eddie TAN Cheng Soo

TEERTEARE ¢ A% (BH R
Regional Treasurer, Asia Pacific, Citibank, N.A.
(based in Singapore)

(12

1) ARRMAEESRERR
([BEELER] IEEMRE
BIERREERZRGRIEH
KB BEARREITNES
FHEREEAEREEARBR
e RZTTAF  AAH
RZERBATESERX
80BHEIL (ZTT )\ F ¢
11084 7T) °

2 INEECEREASERM
AR BHRHE3001E B T IR
EE -RZZTEENF+=A
=+—H8 WEREEHE
—EENF : 80EE L) A
1RRAF B 22,0708 8 T (=
TT)\F : 47088 7T) ©

(1)

The Company is a member of the Central Moneymarkets
Unit Service operated by the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority (“HKMA”) which provides custodian and clearing
agent services for the debt securities issued by the
Company. In 2009, the Company paid HK$0.8 million
(2008: HK$1.1 million) by way of fees to the HKMA for
such services.

The Exchange Fund through the HKMA has provided the
Company with a HK$30 billion revolving credit facility. As
at 31 December 2009, there was no outstanding balance
(2008: HK$8 billion) and the interest thereon was HK$20.7
million (2008: 4.7 million).

201



B3 o3 W e ik
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

202

RS BRI B AR A
FIVAE kAL R
MRTEEREREEA
B HAEMBER LB
T A -

SEZIBRIRFTE - TE B
RRIRIBRRAREARF
FVACE Ak 3
MRTEERRREEZA
B HEMBER LR
IRA -

BIEAETERFHAEER
EK 8 - B400EBLEBL
BT B AR AFT 1
FHERBENRITESR
BREREAE  HEBARE
REMTBEIHA -

BIFRECEIRTT - 3200188
TEEEFETEEAR
GENACELokAsE 2030k
TEFAEMERAR  H
MERBE R bt [ R
7 o

ERTER e NOF-FEF S N
SEEEBEEHA - 2EE
AE—HEZERIBESHE
77 (‘B #5308 % st Bauhinialz
BEHETE) BARARRZ
HENESHEENRITES
AEBERANE - HIEEE
BER EA A RA -

ZERIVEERTHHESH
TRIBIMRZHEARR S
B KX B AT S 1 o 1O 2 B0 A
BHRTEEHEREEA
B HAMBESR Lt (8
#IRA -

Being an executive director or senior officer of a financial
institution or organisation as specified under the column
headed “Interests” in the above table which has entered
into an agreement with the Company in respect of the
purchase of mortgage loans by the Company from time to
time under the Mortgage Purchase Programme.

Being an executive director or senior officer of a financial
institution or organisation as specified under the column
headed “Interests” in the above table which has entered
into an agreement with the Company in respect of the
application for mortgage insurance cover from time to time
under the Mortgage Insurance Programme.

Being an executive director or senior officer of a financial
institution as specified under the column headed “Interests”
in the above table which has entered into an agreement
with the Company, as primary dealer or selling group
member in the HK$40 Billion Debt Issuance Programme.

Being an executive director or senior officer of a financial
institution as specified under the column headed “Interests”
in the above table which has entered into an agreement
with the Company, as a placing bank in the HK$20 Billion
Retail Bond Issuance Programme.

Being an executive director or senior officer of a financial
institution as specified under the column headed “Interests”
in the above table which has entered into an agreement
with the Company, as arranger or lead manager/co-lead
manager in one or more of the Company’s MBS issues,
including the US$3 Billion Bauhinia Mortgage-Backed
Securitisation Programme.

Being an executive director or senior officer of a financial
institution as specified under the column headed “Interests”
in the above table which has entered into an agreement
with the Company, as arranger or dealer in the US$3 Billion
Medium Term Note Programme.
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On 21 April 2004, the Company entered into a lease for a
period of 6 years commencing on 1 January 2005 with
The Financial Secretary Incorporated (“FSI”) by which the
FSI let to the Company Suite 7902 on 79th Floor and the
whole of the 80th Floor, Two International Finance Centre,
8 Finance Street, Central, Hong Kong. At the direction of the
FSI, the Company paid rental to the HKMA. In 2009,
the Company paid a total of HK$6.4 million (2008: HK$6.4
million) of rental to the HKMA.

With effect from 26 May 2009, the HKMA provided to the
Company the use of Suite 7807, 78th Floor, Two
International Finance Centre, 8 Finance Street, Central,
Hong Kong for a service fee. In 2009, the Company paid a
total of HK$0.3 million (2008: nil) of service fee to the
HKMA.

During the year, the HKMA provided a back-up site, with
respect to the period from 1 January 2009 to 6 December
2009, at 16th Floor, PCCW Tower, King’s Road, Quarry
Bay, Hong Kong, and with respect to the period from
7 December 2009 to 31 December 2009, at Unit 901,
9th Floor of the same building to the Company for a service
fee. In 2009, the Company paid a total of HK$0.3 million
(2008: HK$0.2 million) of service fee to the HKMA.

Members of the Citi group have entered into agreements
with the Company in respect of the matters set out in
paragraphs (3), (4), (5), (6), (7) and (8) above.

In 2009, the Company purchased about HK$173 million
of mortgage loans from the FSI (2008: HK$71 million).
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(14 RZTEZTRFALA=+H"
AR E (KA B 4E) Shinhan
Mortgage Second Inter-
national Limited (277 A)
Shinhan Mortgage Second
Securitization Specialty Co.,
Ltd.(E7) ~ Shinhan Bank
(BR) R BB LEEZR:T
A BR A A]Seoul Securities
Branch (( AR ZBFAZ —) &T
SNEBERE B AR
M 17 A B A Shinhan
Bank# i& 1) 12 18 B 5P 2 5
BABETRIE °

(15) RZZEZTNF - &HEAE
BREZEARASEEEEE
B MASEREPEERE
BERREMEERY &
EMEBMNEEBEREE
BB BT ©

(b) LEFEAH
IREHERERIMEEEIR
BERS  EERENAEEEYR
MAL BREFEEMAEEA

AEETEEERBABNHNHE

(14) On 30 September 2009, the Company entered into a
purchase agreement with, inter alia, Shinhan Mortgage
Second International Limited (as issuer), Shinhan Mortgage
Second Securitization Specialty Co., Ltd. (as purchaser),
Shinhan Bank (as seller) and The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited Seoul Securities Branch (as
one of the joint arrangers) pursuant to which the Company
purchased from the issuer a US$400 million note backed
by mortgage loans originated by Shinhan Bank.

(15) In 2009, King & Wood was appointed as legal adviser for
providing Chinese legal advice and other legal services to
the Group and the total amount of legal fees of King &
Wood incurred was HK$0.9 million.

(b) Key management personnel
Key management are those persons having authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities
of the Group, directly or indirectly, including directors and senior
officers.

Key management personnel compensation for the year

& comprises:
2009 2008
FERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
FeRHEMEHEERF  Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 13,120 13,036
BB 2 18 A Post-employment benefits 942 817
14,062 13,853
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34. Special purpose entities and securitisations

The Company uses two special purpose entities (“SPE”) namely HKMC
Funding Corporation (1) Limited and Bauhinia MBS Limited to securitise
mortgage portfolio that result in the transfer of mortgage portfolio to two
SPEs. These transfers may give rise to full or partial derecognition of the
mortgage portfolio concerned from the Company’s statement of financial
position.

Full derecognition occurs when the Company transfers its contractual right
to receive cash flows from the mortgage portfolio and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.

Partial derecognition occurs when the Company sells or otherwise transfers
mortgage portfolio in such a way that some but not substantially all of the
risks and rewards of ownership are transferred but control is retained. These
mortgage portfolio are recognised on the statement of financial position to
the extent of continuing involvement.

The majority of mortgage portfolio transferred to the SPEs, that do not qualify
for full derecognition, are MBS guaranteed by the Company.

The rights and obligations that the Company retains from its continuing
involvement in securitisations are initially recorded as an allocation of the
fair value of the financial asset between the part that is derecognised and
the part that continues to be recognised on the date of transfer.

HK(SIC) INT-12 Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities requires
consolidation of SPEs when the substance of the relationships between the
SPE and the reporting entity indicates that the SPE is controlled by the
reporting entity. This results in consolidating back the transferred assets to
the consolidated statement of financial position. The following summarises
the outstanding principal balances of the mortgage portfolio transferred to

EES (FAREZES) 2EF1 25}Tﬁﬁ§%ﬁi the SPEs that were derecognised from the Company’s statement of financial
BEFAGAPBERREROIZIBERHES 2 KE  position but were consolidated back to the consolidated statement of
BADEH o financial position as a result of HK(SIC) INT-12.
2009 2008
FHET T
HK$’000 HK$’000
BERIBELFME (F-)ARRDA HKMC Funding Corporation (1) Limited 59,829 82,702
Bauhinia MBS Limited Bauhinia MBS Limited 1,254,856 1,796,059
BEZTHEAFNKBEERES Mortgage portfolio transferred to the SPEs
(PR 3F20(a)) (Note 20(a)) 1,314,685 1,878,761
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35. K 35. Commitments
(a) B (a) Capital
REE RAF]
The Group The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
FERT FHET FERT FHBT
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000

BEHEBRETL Authorized but not

contracted for 19,643 19,616 19,352 19,616
(b) BEHE (b) Operating lease
REMBR - BRETAFHENLE Total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
MHmAELNRRFEBS AR operating lease at the end of the reporting period are analysed
BBEHOWWAT as follows:
REE FIN/NG|
The Group The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
FERT FHET FERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
WRAEYE Office premises
NER—F not later than one year 7,264 6,368 6,368 6,368
ZR—FR later than one year and
NERAF not later than five years 306 6,368 - 6,368
7,570 12,736 6,368 12,736
2N ~ . .
36. Ti4E DRI SEHS 36. Mortgage insurance business

RAFEZEBRBAREHEDERR - &£2  The Company operates its mortgage insurance business on a risk-sharing
RIBRBER - basis with its approved reinsurers.

MNIZEZEAF+-_F=+—8  BBRITERATE  As 31 December 2009, the total risk-in-force was approximately HK$14.92
HB149. 2B L (ZZZT)\F : 98.3BE L) ©  bilion (2008: HK$9.83 billion) of which HK$3.33 billion (2008: HK$4.12 billion)
Hh333EB T (ZEET)\E : 41288 7T) 2 was ceded to the approved reinsurers and the balance of HK$11.59 billion
iz ERRRAREBEBRE  MAXREBE  (2008: HK$5.71 billion) was retained by the Company.
TARERTI59EET (ZETNF : 57.1F

BT R o
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37. CiEWEE

KRARIEHEEEBRMEERIEBIEMT
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37. Pledged assets

SPEs have charged their assets as securities or otherwise transferred by
way of security for issuing guaranteed or non-guaranteed MBS in accordance
with the provisions under the relevant securitisation programmes. The
security trustee appointed under the relevant securitisation programmes
will enforce the securities over the relevant pledged assets when the relevant
SPE (and, in the case of guaranteed MBS, the Company as guarantor)
defaults in payment under any series of MBS or otherwise on the occurrence
of an event of default in respect of any series of MBS.

AEE
The Group
2009 2008
Fi#T FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
EEBEE Assets pledged

$R1TE HR 17 3K Time deposits with banks 28,317 36,420
BHEE Investment securities - 445,335
RIBERAEE Mortgage portfolio 1,905,793 2,621,727
& ULF B, Interest receivable 267 653
1,934,377 3,104,135

BiRAEE Secured liabilities
B TRIBE S (5E30) Mortgage-backed securities issued (Note 30) 2,020,394 3,225,624

ETMWQT B a BRERORERMAHN

EHFIRBE A /\(Pﬁ&%) SEERIBE
FESRERISESEZEEN EFEAF
BINERREE (Ht26) -

5708 B TTHYE MifF RE H IR T IRITERT
RIBEREBNRES

%.@ﬂ%%ﬁ%

EERN_T-ZTFMOA T RBEERMBER
= o

Mortgage portfolio pledged included securitised mortgage portfolio recorded
in the SPE’s book (Note 34) and the transferred mortgage portfolio continued
to be recognised as assets in “Loan portfolio, net” to the extent of the
guarantee and continuing involvement (Note 26).

Time deposits of HK$5.7 million are pledged as security deposits with a
bank for mortgage guarantee business in China.

38. Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on
20 April 2010.
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1. BB IRTT

2. REIERTT (B %)

3. RIBIRTTIRAD AR A

4. RDIRTT

5. B R AR 1T (M) BRI AR A A
6. B R ERTT (M) AR AR
7. ERBAT

8. B EER1T

9. FEHIRTT (BH) R DA

10.  PIERERTT

1. KFRTT

12, ERRT(EE) BRQF

18. BMLIT(FB)BRAA

14, ZEBEATE (FE) BRI
16, HABFRIITHR BUF

16, 1BARTT

17.  EBEFEHRERAA
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List of Approved Seller/Servicers
as at end of December 2009

1.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

ABN AMRO Bank N.V.

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd.

The Bank of East Asia, Limited

China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited

China Construction Bank (Asia) Finance Limited

Chiyu Banking Corporation Limited

Chong Hing Bank Limited

Citibank (Hong Kong) Limited

CITIC Ka Wah Bank Limited

Dah Sing Bank, Limited

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Fubon Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

GE Capital (Hong Kong) Limited

The Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Hang Seng Credit Limited
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18. EAHMBERATF 18. Hang Seng Finance Limited

19. BAFEZE® 19.  The Hong Kong Housing Authority

20. BEEEmE 20. Hong Kong Housing Society

21. BB LEEZERTT 21.  The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
22. RAEAMBEERAT 22.  Inchroy Credit Corporation Limited

23. HEImmRT (M 23. Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
24. The Link Finance Limited 24.  The Link Finance Limited

25 AEHBELPL 25.* Metro Credit Union

26. EHERTT 26. MEVAS Bank Limited

27.  MAFEBEERIT 27.  Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited

28. BAOLEMERAT 28. ORIX Asia Limited

29 BWATHBRBEEERRAA 29.* ORIX Finance Services Hong Kong Limited

30.  ARBRIT(BB)ARAQF 30. Public Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

31. LEMmERT 31. Shanghai Commercial Bank Limited

32. BRI (BB BRAF 32. Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

33. KFRTT 33. Wing Hang Bank, Limited

34.  KERTT 34.  Wing Lung Bank Limited

*RZEREHHE * Approved as Seller only
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List of Mortgage Reinsurers, Primary Dealers
and Selling Group Members of Debt Issuance
Programme, Placing Banks of Retail Bond
Issuance Programme, Programme Arrangers
and Dealers of Medium Term Note Programme
and Programme Arranger and Dealers of

Bauhinia MBS Programme

Mortgage Reinsurers

AlG United Guaranty Insurance (Asia) Limited

Asia Insurance Company, Limited

Hang Seng General Insurance (Hong Kong) Company Limited
HSBC Insurance (Asia) Limited

QBE Mortgage Insurance (Asia) Limited

Debt Issuance Programme

Primary Dealers

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

DBS Bank Ltd.

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Merrill Lynch International

Mitsubishi UFJ Securities (HK) Capital, Limited

UBS AG

Selling Group Members

Bank of China International Limited

The Bank of East Asia, Limited

Barclays Bank PLC

BNP PARIBAS

Citicorp International Limited

Commonwealth Bank of Australia

Credit Agricole Corporate and Investment Bank
Deutsche Bank AG, Hong Kong Branch
Goldman Sachs (Asia) L.L.C.

Hang Seng Bank Limited

J. P. Morgan Securities (Asia Pacific) Limited
National Australia Bank Limited, Hong Kong Branch
The Royal Bank of Scotland plc

Société Générale Asia Limited

Standard Bank Asia Limited

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
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FH M B AT

e R AT

RERTT (BE)
ZBRITRDERRRER DT
RERTT

T BZERIRTT (SR B AR A
SRIRTT

BIBLRTT

TEHERTT (BB) AR A A
RIERERTT

RFIRTT

ERRT (BB BERAF
EHRT (BB BERAA
BAERTT

BB LBERRT
HETERTT (M)
MF B ERRT

LBEmERT

BITRTT (FE) BRAF

KT IRTT

KEERTT

v 300 25 B A it

G K $ 20

BB LBESRTT

J.P. Morgan Securities Ltd.
R 5w

B R TT
VEBI AR ERTT

Citigroup Global Markets Limited
EERRITHMNE ST
2 (RN AREERA
B LBESRTT

J.P. Morgan Securities Ltd.
B B R

BITIRTT

Im L iR7T

Bauhinia% 3 i Z2 {b 5l #1
wh P4
EMBR

]

B IRTT
TEEBRBER A
ERRTT(BE)BERAA
BESRITEEDTT

g LEZRTT
BRABES (X)) BRAF
ENEES

ML IRTT

Retail Bond Issuance Programme

Placing Banks

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd. Hong Kong Branch
The Bank of East Asia, Limited

China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited
Chiyu Banking Corporation Limited

Chong Hing Bank Limited

Citibank (Hong Kong) Limited

CITIC Ka Wah Bank Limited

Dah Sing Bank, Limited

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Fubon Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited

Shanghai Commercial Bank Limited

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Wing Hang Bank, Limited

Wing Lung Bank Limited

Medium Term Note Programme

Programme Arrangers

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
J.P. Morgan Securities Ltd.

Dealers

Barclays Bank PLC

BNP PARIBAS

Citigroup Global Markets Limited

Deutsche Bank AG, Singapore Branch

Goldman Sachs (Asia) L.L.C.

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
J.P. Morgan Securities Ltd.

Nomura International plc

Standard Chartered Bank

UBS AG

Bauhinia MBS Programme

Programme Arranger

Merrill Lynch International

Dealers

Barclays Bank PLC

Citicorp International Limited

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Deutsche Bank AG, Hong Kong Branch

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
J. P. Morgan Securities (Asia Pacific) Limited

Merrill Lynch International

UBS AG
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Key Business Statistics

ZZTNF ZTTNEF ZTITNF
—A —A =
EEBEE Asset Purchase Programme Jan-09 Feb-09 Mar-09
WEER/ BEERREEEE Number of Approved Sellers/Servicers 34 34 34
EERE BB Number of Active Sellers 28 28 28
FEZRIBEFREE Number of Residential Mortgage Loans 66,914 66,480 66,341
REEACHTB(EESBT) Outstanding Principal Balance (HK$ million) 29,599 29,267 29,558
90 H LA EH#E /R % (%) >90-Day Delinquency Ratio (%) 0.06% 0.06% 0.05%
& ARAER (%) Monthly Prepayment Rate (%) 0.47% 0.74% 0.86%
nRE 15 B Weighted Average**
THEREFNEREEYEBEL X (%) Loan-to-Value Ratio at Origination (%) 69.2 69.2 69.0
fh 5t A B SR B ) BB L K (%) Estimated Current Loan-to-Value Ratio (%) 58.5 57.5 56.7
BE B B A E TS TR L 2R (%) Debt-to-Income Ratio at Origination (%) 36.3 36.3 36.6
AHFBF(A) Remaining Contractual Term to Maturity (months) 189 188 186
EHREE(A) Seasoning (months) 46 47 48
AHFH(A) Contractual Life (months) 235 235 234
REX Number 839 832 817
REBASHB(EEST) Outstanding Principal Balance (HK$ million) 5,386 5,369 5,344
4R B Total Number 67,753 67,312 67,158
REBASRHE(BEET) Total Outstanding Principal Balance (HK$ million) 34,985 34,636 34,902
ZZTNF ZTTNEF ZTITNF
—A —A =
RBREETE Mortgage Insurance Programme Jan-09 Feb-09 Mar-09
2EBITHE Number of Participating Banks 24 24 25
NEEHEAAIE Year-To-Date
EHRUERTE Applications Approved
Eit/EREE A Number of Applications Approved 1,431 3,327 5,313
weE(BEBT) Total Amount (HK$ million) 2,967 6,920 11,212
VX 5 HE Types of Property Transaction
—F (%) Primary (%) 12 8 8
—ZF (%) Secondary (%) 88 92 92
BERINER Loans Drawn Down
EiRIEREE Number of Loans Drawn Down 475 1,083 1,772
wemE(EEET) Total Amount (HK$ million) 998 2,256 3,685
YIER 55ER Types of Property Transaction
—F (%) Primary (%) 33 18 14
ZF (%) Secondary (%) 67 82 86
155 FA 2= (%) Usage Rate (%)
BERERE (B eHE) By Applications Approved (Loan Amount) 26.4 30.6 28.5
ERBRER(BEREH) By Loans Drawn Down (Loan Amount) 16.2 17.0 16.6
—TEAE —FTHF —TEAF
REPEHFEHE Outstanding Treasury Securities —A —A =
(ZEmEE) (in nominal value) Jan-09 Feb-09 Mar-09
EFT AR TE(BEEET) Debt Issuance Programme (HK$ million) 28,885 31,085 31,635
FHEIE ST E (BB BT Medium Term Note Programme (HK$ million) 4,658 4,603 4,610
TEBHF(BEBT) Retail Bonds (HK$ million) 3,011 2,877 2,045
Bauhinia #1857 % (A 848 7T) Bauhinia MBS (HK$ million) 3,049 3,033 3,004

" NBEERRABE R T2 RE
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Notes:

# Excluding mortgage loans with co-financing and special arrangements
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—ETNF —ETNF —ETNF —ETNF —TTNF —ETNF —ETNF —ETNF —ETNF
MA AR N A + A R LA +A +—A +=A
Apr-09 May-09 Jun-09 Jul-09 Aug-09 Sep-09 Oct-09 Nov-09 Dec-09
34 34 34 34 34 34 34 34 34
28 28 28 28 28 28 28 28 28
EEIERBEN (BECESLNEBER

Hong Kong Residential Mortgage Loans (including Securitised Mortgage Loans)
65,861 65,032 64,009 62,850 61,936 60,879 59,674 58,573 57,527
28,980 28,384 27,679 26,880 26,281 25,508 24,678 23,876 23,123
0.06% 0.08% 0.08% 0.08% 0.08% 0.09% 0.08% 0.07% 0.07%
1.17% 1.29% 1.72% 2.14% 2.13% 2.25% 2.46% 2.42% 2.31%
69.0 69.0 69.0 68.9 68.9 68.9 68.8 68.8 68.7
54.6 52.6 50.4 48.9 47.5 46.0 44.8 44.4 441
36.6 36.6 36.6 36.6 36.6 36.6 36.6 36.5 36.5
185 183 182 181 181 179 178 177 177
49 50 50 51 52 53 54 54 55
234 233 232 232 233 232 232 231 232

BERICERBERNIERBEE
Hong Kong Non-Residential Mortgage and Non-Mortgage Assets
808 803 794 781 766 747 728 715 695
5,320 5,302 5,280 5,256 5,221 5,183 5,142 5,111 5,067
EREFBEELAS
Overall Hong Kong Portfolio

66,669 65,835 64,803 63,631 62,702 61,626 60,402 59,288 58,222
34,300 33,686 32,959 32,136 31,502 30,691 29,820 28,987 28,190
—ETNF —ETNF —ETNF —ETNF —TTNF —ETNF —ETNF —ETNF —ETNF
MA AR N A + A R LA +A +—A +=A
Apr-09 May-09 Jun-09 Jul-09 Aug-09 Sep-09 Oct-09 Nov-09 Dec-09
25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25
7,448 10,682 18,257 22,350 25,861 29,753 32,690 35,056 37,142
16,330 23,761 41,462 51,743 60,623 70,801 78,101 83,993 89,242
10 12 13 12 12 11 11 10 9
90 88 87 88 88 89 89 90 91
2,745 4,022 5,798 7,706 9,365 10,998 12,637 14,057 15,285
5,814 8,717 12,735 17,407 21,393 25,510 29,478 33,044 36,046
13 14 15 15 13 13 12 11 10
87 86 85 85 87 87 88 89 90
26.7 26.6 32.5 31.4 30.4 30.5 29.9 29.2 28.7
17.7 18.2 18.6 18.4 18.7 18.5 18.6 18.4 18.1
—ZENEF —EENEF —ZETNEF —TENEF —EENF —ZEENEF —TENEF —ZEENF —EENEF
MmA A A NA + A AV | A +A +—A +=A
Apr-09 May-09 Jun-09 Jul-09 Aug-09 Sep-09 Oct-09 Nov-09 Dec-09
31,048 29,375 30,065 30,395 31,995 32,415 32,180 31,740 30,195
5,697 6,046 6,040 6,047 10,675 11,479 11,949 11,988 11,914
2,049 2,058 1,915 1,915 1,915 .81 1,915 1,915 1,915
2,991 2,867 2,856 2,842 2,825 2,812 2,796 2,669 1,916
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ABBREVIATIONS USED IN THIS REPORT

ALCO
BLRs
CAR
Code
CRC
DIP

FSI
GDP
HIBOR
HKASs
HKFRSs
HKICPA
HKMA
HKMC/Corporation
HKSAR
HSLS
ICAC
ICO

ISM

LTV
MBS
MIP
Moody’s
MPP
MTN
ORC
PIPS
RBIP
RBPS
S&P
SCHLS

SPE

214

Asset and Liability Committee

Best Lending Rates

Capital-to-Assets Ratio

Corporate Governance Code

Corporate Risk Management Committee
Debt Issuance Programme

Financial Secretary Incorporated

Gross Domestic Product

Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate

Hong Kong Accounting Standards

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong Monetary Authority

The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
Home Starter Loan Scheme

Independent Commission Against Corruption
Insurance Companies Ordinance
Information Security Manual
Loan-to-Value

Mortgage-Backed Securities

Mortgage Insurance Programme

Moody’s Investors Service, Inc

Mortgage Purchase Programme

Medium Term Note

Operational Risk Committee

Portfolio Information Processing System
Retail Bond Issuance Programme
Risk-based Pricing Scheme

Standard & Poor’s

Sandwich Class Housing Loan Scheme

Special Purpose Entity
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